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1 APPEARANCES, cont. 1 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on Wednesday, July 25,
2 For the Los Angeles Unified School District and the 2 2001, commencing at the hour of 10:11 am., thereof, at
3 Pgaro Vdley Unified School Digtrict; 3 theLaw Offices of Morrison & Foerster LLP, 400 Capitol
4 LOZANO & SMITH 4 Mall, Suite 2300, Sacramento, Cdlifornia, before me,
5 BY: SARAH LEVITAN KAATZ, ESQ. 5 TRACY LEE MOORELAND, a Certified Shorthand Reporter in
6 20 Ragsdale Drive, Suite 201 6 the State of California, there personally appeared
7 Monterey, California 93940 7 SHERRY GRIFHTH,
8 8 caled asawitness herein, who, having been duly sworn
9 The Intervener: 9 totdl thetruth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
10 CALIFORNIA SCHOOL BOARD ASSOCIATION | 10 truth, was thereupon examined and interrogated as
11 BY: JUDY CIAS, ESQ. 11 hereinafter set forth.
12 3100 Beacon Boulevard 12 ---000---
13 West Sacramento, California 95691 13 EXAMINATION BY MR. JACOBS
14 14 Q. Ms Griffith, I'm Michael Jacobs. | represent
15 15 theplaintiffsinthiscase.
16 ---000--- 16 Y ou hold a couple of different positions right
17 17 now in the -- with state agencies; is that correct?
18 18 A. Yes.
19 19 Q. What arethose positions?
20 20 A. I'm the division director for the curriculum
21 21 frameworks and instructiona resources division for the
22 22 Department, and I'm the designee for the state
23 23 superintendent as executive secretary to the curriculum
24 24 development and supplemental materials commission.
25 25 Q. Doyouhaveany other positionsin-- asan
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1 employee of the State of Cdifornia? 1 quotation from the article from you.
2 A No. 2 MR. VIRJEE: Takeyour time. Read whatever you
3 Q. Areyouamember of the Publishers Resource 3 wanttoread.
4 Group, Inc.? 4 THE WITNESS: Okay.
5 A. Publishers Resource Group? 5 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Didyou say thewordsthat are
6 Q. Uhhuh 6 setforthinthearticle?
7 A. No. 7 A. ldontrecal.
8 Q. NASTA, Nationa Association of State Textbook 8 Q. Doyourecal generaly being interviewed about
9 Adminigtrators? 9 thattopic?
10 A.  Automatically you're amember of that group 10 A. Yes
11 when you're the textbook or instructional materias 11 Q. Doyou recall the genera thrust of your
12 coordinator for your state. Those are administrators 12 comments?
13 for each dtate, so you become a participant in that 13 A, Yes
14 process. 14 Q. What wasthegenerd thrust of your comments?
15 Q. Areother State of Cdiforniaemployeesmembers | 15 A.  Thegenerd thrust of my commentsis that each
16 of NASTA? 16 school district would assess its need based both on
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 17 school sites, grade level and content areasin a
18 THEWITNESS: | don't know. 18 particular year, and determine where they had greatest
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sotothebest of your 19 need, and then they would begin to select their
20 knowledge, you are the State of California 20 materiasfor those areas that are of highest priority
21 representativeto NASTA? 21 @t that particular time.
22 A. Yes 22 For example, if they had just purchased history
23 Q. Haveyou had your deposition taken beforein 23 socia science books in 1999, they wouldn't be
24  any case? 24 addressing that issue, they would go to perhaps another
25 A. Yes, in 1979. 25 area, and each district would be different, to focus
Page 7 Page 9
1 Q. Whakindof case? 1 ther time and energy and their funding on a content
2 A. A car accident. 2 aeawherethey found they had greatest need for
3 Q. [I'll remindyou of therules. | ask you 3 additiond instructional materias, new and revised
4 questions, you give me answers, the court reporter takes 4 maerias.
5 it down. Various uses can be made of that in the 5 So my thrust of the comments here are based on
6 litigation. Your testimony is under oath. | think you 6 thefact that every didtrict in Cdiforniaisat a
7 know from reading the papers what that means in terms of 7 different stage of sdection, and it's an ongoing
8 your obligationsto give truthful testimony. 8 processthat they're involved with on aregular basis.
9 If you don't understand a question, pleasetell 9 It'scyclicd, and it adheresto the curriculum
10 me. I'll assume you understand it. Both lawyers, 10 framework cyclesinthe sate.
11 youll find, for you, object frequently if they don't 11 Q. By "curriculum framework cycles," what do you
12 like the question, but unless they instruct you not to 12 mean?
13 answer, your obligation stands to answer the question 13 A.  The State develops curriculum frameworks in
14 unlessyou don't understand it yourself. Okay? 14 gradesK to 12 in every subject. There arefour core
15 A. Uh-huh. 15 subjects, math, reading language arts, socia science
16 Q. Youwerequoted inan article on September 16 history, soit's history socia science.
17 17th, 2000, in the Press Enterprise of Riverside, 17 Q. That'sonetopic?
18 Cdifornia. 18 A. Yes. History socia science, and science. We
19 MR. VIRJEE: What wasthe date? 19 dso prepare curriculum frameworksin the aress of
20 MR. JACOBS: I'm handing it out now. 20 foreign language, physica education and hedlth, and
21 MR. VIRJEE: Areyou going to mark this? 21 thenfindly visua performing arts. That's for al of
22 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 22 K-12.
23 (Exhibit SAD-53 was marked.) 23 The curriculum frameworks are developed by the
24 MR. JACOBS: Fed freetotakealook at the 24 curriculum commission with the assistance of my office
25 articleasawhole, but I've marked in yellow the 25 through apublic review process, and then they're
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1 approved by the State Board of Education. 1 Q. Butlet'stakethecydes, for example, six
2 And they're on cycles. For the core subjects 2 yearsand eight years that you described. Hasthat
3 it'severy six years, and for the non-coreit's every 3 been -- have those been the periods of the cycles for a
4 eight. 4 |east thelast deven years?
5 Q. Thisaspect of the -- that you've just 5 A Yes
6 described has been in existence for how long? 6 Q. Sowhenyousad, every digtrict in Cdifornia
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Also calls 7 hasavey different textbook situation -- let me just
8 for speculation, that it'sall been in existence at the 8 putin the record the quote from the article -- said,
9 sametime 9 Sherry Griffith, who oversees textbooks issues for the
10 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 10 State Department of Education, some districts, for
1 MS. KAATZ: Join. 11 example, may put most of their money in reading or math
12 THE WITNESS: | don't understand your question. 12 because they are concerned about their test scoresin
13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: You described what youmeantby | 13 that area, it's all amatter of priorities.
14 curriculum framework cycle, and described acycleand a 14 Let me ask you, first of al, isthat
15 process for adopting curriculum frameworks, right? 15 consistent with your understanding of the thrust of what
16 A. Uh-huh. Yes 16 you were conveying to the reporter?
17 Q. Tothebest of your knowledge, how long a 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection to the extent you
18 period isthe description that you just gave me 18 darted that question with, "when you said." She's
19 accurate? 19 dready said that she didn't say this specifically.
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Assumes 20 MR. JACOBS:. That'sfair. Let me start over.
21 factsnotinevidence. Assumesit'sall been 21 Q. Havingreadinto the record what the article
22 comprehensive and in effect for the same amount of time. 22 quotes you as saying and now having had a description
23 THE WITNESS: | till don't understand your 23 from you of what the thrust of your remarks were to the
24 question. 24 reporter, do you see any inconsistency in what'sin the
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Did the system changein recent 25 article from your recollection of the thrust of what you
Page 11 Page 13
1 yearssothat the description you just gave usis 1 conveyed to the reporter?
2 gpplicable to aperiod going back to '98 or '99, or has 2 A Yes
3 thisdescription been accurate that you just gave me 3 Q. What'stheinconsistency?
4 back tothe early '90s or earlier? 4 A. Itdoesntincludethefull detail of what |
5 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection. Vagueand 5 sad.
6 ambiguous. 6 Q. Whenyouwerereferring to avery different
7 Which system are you talking about, just a 7 textbook situation, were you in any way referring to
8 system of curriculum frameworks? 8 whether particular schools have what you understand to
9 MR. JACOBS: The answer the witness just gave 9 be shortages of textbooks?
10 me 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
11 THE WITNESS: Areyou asking what year this 11 evidence. Assumesthat she referred to avery different
12 process began? 12 textbook situation. She didn't say she used those
13 MR. JACOBS: No. 13 words, she gave you generally the thrust of what she
14 Q. I'maskingfor how long the description that 14 sad.
15 you gave mein answering the question, what did you mean 15 MR. JACOBS:. Fram, | haveto ask youto --
16 by curriculum framework cycles, would be -- isathen 16 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
17 accurate description of the system? 17 MR. JACOBS: -- Giveashort, smple abjection
18 MR. VIRJEE: Same objection. Compound. 18 and not coach the witness.
19 To the extent maybe you're asking how long has 19 MR. VIRJEE: I'll make my objection in the way
20 exactly what you just described been the state of 20 | choose. And that misstates her testimony and assumes
21 dffairs. 21 factsnot in evidence.
22 THE WITNESS: Many years. 22 Y ou are trying to trick the witnessinto
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And do you know whenit 23 agreeing that's what she said when she's dready told
24  darted? 24 you shedidn't, so I'll haveto ask you not to
25 A. | couldnt give you theinception date. 25 mischaracterize her testimony.
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Canyouanswer my question?
A.  Couldyou repeat the question.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Could you have the reporter
read it back.

MR. JACOBS: Let mestart over. I'll withdraw
the question.
Q. Didyou-- did the thrust of your remarks
include the thought, in words or substance, that every
digtrict in Cdlifornia has avery different textbook
Stuation?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: | don't understand your question.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wédl, | asked you whether there
was anything inconsistent between what | read in the
article and your recollection of the thrust of what you
conveyed to the reporter. And your answer asto the
inconsistency was that it didn't convey the full content
that you relayed to usin this deposition when | asked
you for your recollection of the thrust of your remarks.
So | didn't understand you to be saying that you did not
convey in the thrust of your remarks to the reporter
that every district in Californiahas a very different
textbook situation.

So let me ask you that, is there anything
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Q. Doyourecdl any better what words you used?
A. Yes
Q.  What were the words you used?
A.

What | stated previoudly to you.
MR. VIRJEE: What she's dready testified to.
THE WITNESS: I've dready answered that.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Soinyour conversation with
the reporter, were you referring to what you understood
to be shortages of textbooks in any particular schoal or
school district in the State of California?
A. No.
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to the term "shortage."
MS. KAATZ: Join.
MS. ALTAMIRANO: | joinaswdll.
THEWITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: To putitinthe converse, what
you were referring to then was not whether there are
sufficient numbers of textbooks in schools or school
digtrictsin the state, but rather the notion that
different school districts werein different stages of
the adoption cycles asit related to the State's
adoption of curriculum frameworks?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "sufficient numbers.”
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NNNNNRPEPRRRRRERRRE
RONRPOQOWONOURNWNERO

25

Page 15

inconsistent as opposed to subtractive or additive?

MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'm going to object inthe
sense that you're misstating what she said earlier.
Earlier she said that she conveyed much more to this
reporter than what's in this quote.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Right. Did you not convey to
the reporter the thought that every district in

Cdlifornia has a very different textbook situation?

A. Repesat your question.

MR. VIRJEE: You are asking in sum and
substance, | assume?

MR. JACOBS: Yes.

MR. VIRJEE: So, Sherry, the questionisin sum
and substance, did you tell the reporter that every
school district has a different textbook situation?

Fair enough?

MR. JACOBS: Inwords or substance, yes.

THE WITNESS: Should | be answering this
guestion?

MR. JACOBS: Yes.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Yes, | did convey to the
reporter that every district in California has avery

different textbook situation in words or substance?
A. Yes. Not in these terms.
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MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

MS. KAATZ: Join.

THE WITNESS: Thefirst part of your sentencel
can respond to, the second part | cannot.

MR. JACOBS: Let'stakethefirst part.

THE WITNESS: If you can repeat thefirst part.

(Record read.)

THE WITNESS: At theword cycle, | can answer
yes.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Did thereporter ask youin
that conversation about whether you had information
about whether there was sufficient numbers of textbooks
in schools or school digtrictsin the state?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "sufficient numbers.”

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: | don't recall.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thetopic of thearticle-- one
topic inthe article isthe claim by the ACLU, referred
to in the fourth paragraph of page 4. The ACLU claims
it knows of more than 30 schools statewide that don't
have enough books in core subjects, such as math and
science, for studentsto usein class or to take home.
They say most of the schools with textbook shortages are
in predominately poor or minority communities.

5 (Pages 14 to 17)
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Do you seethat paragraph?
A.  Uh-huh

MR. VIRJEE: Y ou haveto speak audibly for the
reporter.

THEWITNESS: Yes.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyour conversation with the
reporter cover the ACLU claim as described in that
paragraph?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.

THE WITNESS: No, not specificaly the case. |
was cdled upon to provide information by phone to them
regarding the cycles of the frameworks, the funding
streams that are available from the State, and the
process that's used by local governing boards.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: When you say "caled upon,” did
you mean to imply that you were asked by somebody in

PBoo~w~ounnswneR
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that are available for districts to use.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Those are Shiff-Bustamante and
IMF?

A. SaelMF yes.

MR. VIRJEE: Moveto strike her testimony as
nonresponsive to the extent she's saying that's what she
would have said.

If you did say that, that'sfine. | want you
to tell him what you did say.

MR. JACOBS: Y ou can moveto strike, but you
can't instruct this witness, so please continue.

THE WITNESS: | informed the reporter about the
Shiff-Bustamante instructional materials program, the
state instructional materials fund, how those funding
streams work, the per pupil apportionments that were
provided at that time, the requirements for the use of

17 the-- in state government to answer those questions, or 17 those funds, and general information about textbook
18 you were caled by the reporter and asked those 18 pricing that's done at the state level.
19 questions? 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'dliketo ask efficient
20 MR. VIRJEE: Or something else. 20 questions, and o if thisworks for you, grest, if not,
21 MR. JACOBS: Or something ese. 21 I'll bresk it down.
22 THE WITNESS: Our department communications 22 Asyou just described the topics that you
23 director refers callsto particular individualsin the 23 provided to the reporter, can you tell me what your best
24  Department that have background and expertisein certain 24 recollection is of what you told the reporter on those
25 aress, and then | would provide information about the 25 topics?
Page 19 Page 21
1 State process. 1 A. For Shiff-Bustamante | would have given the
2 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andthatis, infact, the 2 totd appropriations for the fisca year, | would have
3 processtha was handled -- that was followed in this 3 given the per pupil amount, | would have discussed with
4 case? 4 them the use of those funds, that they must be used for
5 A. Yes 5 dandards aigned materids, instructional materials
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 6 approved by the State Board for K-8, kindergarten
7 THEWITNESS: Yes. 7 through grade 8, and approved by high schools, grades
8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Didyou have adiscussionwith 8 9-12.
9 thereporter about the funding available from the State 9 For the state instructional materials fund, |
10 for textbook purchases? 10 would have given them the genera apportionment for the
11 A. Yes 11 date, the per pupil amount for grades K-8 and 9-12, and
12 Q. What doyourecal of what you conveyed to the 12 how those funds should be used.
13 reporter on that topic? 13 Asit rdates to pricing of materials, | would
14 MR. VIRJEE: Other than what she's dready 14 haveinformed them of the price quotesthat are
15 tedtified to? 15 submitted at the time the materids are approved by the
16 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 16 State. Those pricesare good for two years, and they
17 THE WITNESS: | can't recdl every specific 17 canberevised biannualy.
18 response. 18 And | would have informed the district -- or
19 MR. VIRJEE: He'sjust askingtotell him what 19 thereporter, excuse me, that there are purchase lists
20 you remember you told the reporter. 20 that would be used by the districts to make their
21 THEWITNESS: What | would have conveyedtothe | 21 decisions, and that those purchase lists are on cycles
22 reporter isthe amount per pupil that's provided, and 22 approved by the State Board for a core area a six
23 someof that isreflected inthis article, | think, to 23 years. Soadigtrict would have the opportunity any
24 some extent, though | want to note it'sincorrect. | 24 timewithin that Six years to evaluate materids at the
25 would talk about the two categorical funding streams 25 loca level and determine if they wanted to purchase

6 (Pages 18 to 21)
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1 theminthat content area 1 inwhichyou compared available funding to cost of
2 Q. Forthefiscal year that you were commenting on 2 textbooks?
3 inyour discussion with the reporter, what were the per 3 A. |dontrecal having that discussion at all.
4 pupil amounts as conveyed in your conversation? 4 Q. Didyou discusswith the reporter that there
5 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection. Vague. Could we 5 were potentially other sources of funding available for
6 getthefiscal year? 6 textbook purchases besides Shiff-Bustamante and state
7 MR. JACOBS: For Shiff-Bustamante. 7 IMF availableto school districts?
8 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Could we get the fiscal year 8 A Yes
9 down, which year it is? 9 Q. Andwhatisyour best recollection of what you
10 MR. JACOBS: That'safair question. 10 conveyed to him on thet topic?
11 Q. What year were you talking about? 11 A. I would convey that they are able to use any
12 A. Wel, wework onafiscal cycle, which would be 12 resource availableto them at thelocd leve to
13 JulytoJduly. Thisarticle was September 17th, 2000, so 13 purchaseinstructional materias, and they are expected
14 1 would have been providing information for fiscal year 14 to combine those resources with the dedicated accounts
15 2000, 2001. 15 that the State provides.
16 Q. Wha wasthe per pupil amount that you hadin 16 Q. Andby "expectedto," what do you mean?
17 mind when you were having a conversation with the 17 A.  Tha they are under obligation to purchase
18 reporter for Schiff-Bustamante? 18 materias using the sources the State provides and any
19 MR. VIRJEE: To the extent that you can recall. 19 other additiona resources available to them.
20 THE WITNESS: Well, | recall that | would give 20 Q. Andtheobligationyou'rereferring to is what?
21 an approximate, which is $42 per pupil for gradesK to 21 A. Thatthey, a theloca level, will need to
22 12 22 determine from their budget whatever flexible resources
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And for the state IMF, same 23 they have that can be used to purchase the materials
24 question. 24  that they need, aong with any state funds that are
25 MR. VIRJEE: Same year t00? 25 provided.
Page 23 Page 25
1 MR. JACOBS:. Uh-huh. 1 Q. Soby"obligation" you were not referring to
2 THE WITNESS: | would have given an gpproximate 2 some specific requirement written into state law or
3 apportionment of $31 per pupil for K-8, and $20 for 3 regulaion?
4 grades9to12. 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor alegd
5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Tothebest of your knowledge 5 conclusion.
6 sitting here today, aside from the fact that it was an 6 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
7 agpproximation, are those figures accurate for that year? 7 THE WITNESS: No.
8 MR. VIRJEE: Thank you. 8 Q. BY MR JACOBS: No, | wasnot?
9 THE WITNESS: Yes, it'san approximation. 9 A. No, | wasn't referring to aparticular statute.
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Butit'snot the casethat 10 Q. Wereyou referring to any -- what were you
11 you're sitting here today, realizing that what you had 11 referring to then, other than the notion that school
12 inmind at that time and told the reporter wasin some 12 digtricts have flexibility to use funds from other
13 materia way incorrect? 13 sources?
14 A. No. 14 A. Purchasing decisions are made at the local
15 Q. Thenwhat did you havein mind at that time 15 leve, so publisher representatives come to the schoal
16 about textbook pricing that you believe you would have 16 digtrict, present what they have available. They're
17 conveyed to the reporter? 17 based on the prices they've submitted to the State for
18 MR. VIRJEE: Other than what she's already 18 K-8.
19 testified to? 19 The district makes determinations, once they've
20 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 20 determined they're going to purchase, what portions of
21 Q. Justthatthe pricing information is available, 21 the program they want to purchase and what additional
22 or did you actually say to him, our understanding is 22 supplementsto a program they want to purchase, and they
23 that it costs roughly this amount to purchase textbooks? 23 can determine that they'd like to purchase, for example,
24 A. No, | didn't say that. 24 just apupil edition and a student edition within the
25 Q. Didyou have any discussion with the reporter 25 confines of their budget and their ability. They may

7 (Pages 22 to 25)
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1 chooseto purchase student edition, teacher's edition, 1 components are gpproved by the State Board of Education
2 workbooks, CD ROMSs, graphs and posters within the means 2 and can be used under atraditiond adoption for a
3 that they have at thelocal level. 3 standards aigned review that's done by the State.
4 So when | indicated obligation, if they chose 4 Q. | understood everything except the "but al of
5 to purchase a program in which their dedicated funds did 5 the components' part of your answer. Let me seeif I'm
6 not provide for the extra support materials they wanted 6 hearing you correctly.
7 to purchase, then they would be obligated to find those 7 If the publisher has proposed for review and
8 resourceswithin their local budgets. Those costs would 8 agpprova by therelevant state-level entities ancillary
9 not come as areimbursement from the State. 9 materias such asworkbooks or posters or CD ROMs, and
10 Q. Andthereasonitwouldnt comeasa 10 those have been reviewed and approved, then, for
11 reimbursement from the State is because -- is not 11 example, Schiff-Bustamante funds could be used by the
12 because those funds can't be used for purchasing the 12 digtrict to purchase those ancillary materids; is that
13 incremental materials, but rather, in your hypothetical, 13 correct?
14 if you will, those funds have simply already been used 14 MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'll object. It'svaguein
15 for the purchase of, say, the student edition; is that 15 the sense of approved.
16 right? 16 Do you mean adopted by the State?
17 A. | couldn't speak to every district and the 17 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
18 status of their purchases. 18 MS. ALTAMIRANO: By the Board of Education?
19 Q. Thatwasn'twhat | wasgetting at. Itis 19 MR. JACOBS:. Okay.
20 possible under the rulesfor Shiff-Bustamante to 20 THE WITNESS: Y es, they can purchase that.
21 purchase items such as teacher editions, workbooks, 21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Butthereare casesinwhich
22 postersand CD ROMs. 22 the publisher doesn't submit those ancillary items for
23 If the underlying curriculum meets the State 23 gpprova or where they're submitted and not approved, in
24 framework, Shiff-Bustamante doesn't preclude the use of 24 which caseif adistrict wanted to purchase those, they
25 moniesfor that purpose; isthat correct? 25 would have to use other funds?
Page 27 Page 29
1 A. Yes |needtoclarify. They can purchase 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
2 those, but they must be reviewed at the state level and 2 to"other."
3 approved by the State Board of Education before they can 3 Outside of Schiff-Bustamante?
4  usethose funds. 4 MR. JACOBS: Correct.
5 Q. Soisit the case that adoption of a textbook 5 MR. VIRJEE: And the IMF account, or including
6 doesn't necessarily mean adoption of the workbook, for 6 the--
7 example? 7 MR. JACOBS: We haven' gotten to the IMF yet
8 A. Whatit meansiswhen you're going through an 8 because| think thereis some flexibility.
9 adoption cycle, which occurs every six years -- 9 THEWITNESS: | don't understand your question.
10 Q. For the six-year cycle? 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'mtrying to tease out two
11 A. For the six-year cycle. -- whatever the 11 different possibilities. Oneisthat in making a
12 publisher submits for that K-8 adoption and then is 12 purchasing decision, they've exhausted their per student
13 reviewed at the state level by the curriculum 13 amounts under, say, Schiff-Bustamante and therefore in
14 commission, content experts and then finaly the State 14 deciding to purchase ancillary materials, they have to
15 Board, can be purchased using Schiff-Bustamante, but 15 gotofunding sources. That's one case, it seemed to
16 there are additional components of a program that a 16 me, could exist.
17 publisher may include that are optiona for purchasing. 17 Another caseisthat in deciding to purchase
18 So my exampleis adistrict, in looking at its 18 ancillary materials they discover the ancillary
19 budget, may determine, based on the price quotes, that 19 materias have not been approved by the State Board of
20 thisyear they can afford to buy the basics, the student 20 Education and therefore have to use other funds.
21 edition and the teacher's edition, but they may not be 21 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Y ou mean adopt each time
22 inthe position to buy, let's say, support or extraneous 22 you're saying approved, right?
23 materids, so they may wait to purchase those for a 23 MR. JACOBS: | think you said approved.
24 subsequent year or they may choose not to purchase 24 THEWITNESS: State Board approved, adopted
25 those. Sothey can be taken separately, but al of the 25 would be the same.
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MS. ALTAMIRANO: | just want to make sure of
the terms.

I'll answer it intwo parts. They could not
purchase materids that were submitted and rejected by
the State Board of Education under Schiff-Bustamante.

If they chose to buy materids that were
rejected by the State Board of Education, the only way
they could do that isif they were approved for what's
caled legal and socid compliance, and they would have
to use another resource, of which 30 percent of the
gtate IMF, instructional materials fund, could be used
to purchase those materids that were not approved by
the State Board.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Changethe casealittle bit.
It hasn't even been submitted and approved for legal and
socia compliance, what then isthe district's option?

A.  They can't purchase those materials.

Q. Using even general funds available to the

schoal digtrict?

A.  The Staterequires digtricts to purchase
ingtructional materials from either State Board approved
lists. And for 9-12, local certified approved

materials, or thelega and socia complianceligt,

those reviews are conducted by our office.

Q.  What's the mechanism for legd and socia -- |
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they go through the legal and social compliance review
conducted by the State, there are numerous Ed codes that
guide that, and they pay afee for that review, and if

they pass legal and social compliance, they're put on
thelist. That listisgood for six years.

A district can then use 30 percent of their IMF
or other resources to purchase from that list, which
then could supplement any materid that they have bought
with Schiff-Bustamante or the 70 percent IMF.

Q. Okay. Soleaving aside literature, whichis
treated separately, a state is prohibited -- a school
digtrict is prohibited from purchasing instructional
materials that have not been approvedin, A, the
adoption cycle, or, B, thelegal and social compliance
review?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Overbroad. Compound.
Depends on the situation. That's what she's dready
testified to.

THE WITNESS: Thereisflexibility. For
example, in the 30 percent of IMF, 5 percent of the 30
can be used to purchase tests, teacher professional
development support, distant learning resources, other
technology support, not the equipment, but educationa
content technology. So there isflexibility thereto
purchase other resources that strengthen the curriculum
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want to cut to the chase on legal and socia compliance.
If aschool digtrict says, | want to purchase
for an English class anovel that was released this
year, we think it's terrific for our kids, can they
submit it for alega and socid compliance and get a
relatively rapid review and approval of that?
A. Literatureistreated differently. Ifit's
literature, they can use their state or classroom
library funds to purchase literature materias. They
could use their state instructional materials fundsiif
the novel was on the state legal and socia compliance
list.
Q. And how does -- and how does adistrict get a
novel onthelist if they want to purchase it?
A.  Wadl, again, most publishers are not submitting
literature to the list, soit's not aslikely that they
would use those funds for that purpose. They would use
their library funds or other resources, perhaps, for
literature.
The publishers that are submitting the legal
and socia compliance are publishers who are offering
supplemental materials that help to reinforce and
strengthening the curriculum in the classroom. That'sa
typical submission. So it might be a spelling book, for
example, that would supplement in the second grade. And
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in the classroom.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thisis5 percent of the 30
percent, or 5 percent of the 100 percent?
A.  It's5 percent of the 30 percent.
Q.  Andthisamount can be used to purchase these
materials even if they have not been approved for legal
and socid compliance?
A. Yes
Q. Andevenif they do not -- even if they are not
by the vendor linked to the support of an approved
textbook?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "textbook."

THE WITNESS: | don't understand your question.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Onepossibility isthat the
rule says you can purchase these things using the 5
percent of the 30 percent, but they have to be vended by
the vendor as supplemental materials with respect to
textbooks that have been approved by the State?
A. No.
Q.  Nosuch requirement?
A. No.
Q. Justtobeclear, because "no" isambiguousin
English, there is no such requirement, correct?
A.  Thereisno such requirement that it be
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1 connected to the vendor of other materids. 1 not trying to be difficult.
2 Q. Sowehavetwo categoriesright now wherethere | 2 MR. JACOBS: That'shelpful. If wecangeta
3 isnorequirement of passage through the adoption cycle | 3  parlance down, that helps.
4 or passage through legal and socid compliance. One 4 Q. What parlance do you think is appropriate?
5 category isliterature, and the other isthe tests, 5 A.  Wadl, I'mtrying to understand how you're using
6 teacher professiona development, distant learning, 6 thetermcurriculum. Curriculum is developed at the
7 other technology content category. 7 locd level. Theinstructional materials support that
8 Have | summarized your testimony so far 8 curriculumthat's developed at alocal level. Sothe
9 correctly? 9 termreading curriculum would not be used in the work
10 MR. VIRIEE: I'll object asvague and ambiguous | 10 that we're discussing.
11 and compound. Also the testimony will spesk for itsdlf. | 11 Q.  Okay. Solet'scal itinstructional materials
12 AndI'll dso object on the grounds of categories. 12 then.
13 Categories of what? 13 A.  Uh-huh
14 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 14 Q. Soaschool district has chosen acurriculum
15 THE WITNESS: For purposes of this process, 15 and wants to purchase the associated instructional
16 yes, but there are additional opportunities for 16 materials and werein reading and language arts, and
17 digtrictsto provide materials for their teachers, for 17 just to smplifyit, werein K through 8, and it is not
18 teacher professiona support under other categories or 18 what might be regarded as supplemental materials that
19 categoricals. But for purposes of the state 19 they wishto purchase, but rather the primary
20 requirements for the use of these funds and the adoption | 20 instructional materials that are going to be used to
21 process and the legal and socia compliances, yes. 21 support that curriculum.
2 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Just to take another 22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
23 hypothetica case, a school district wants to adopt, in 23 to"primary" and "supplemental.”
24 a-- let'stake acore subject area-- areading 24 Q. BY MR JACOBS: What flexibility do they have
25 curriculum that has not been adopted as part of the 25 to make that purchase?
Page 35 Page 37
1 adoption cycle for reading and language arts, isthe 1 MR. VIRJEE: Also objection. Vague and
2 didtrict prohibited, regardless of the source of funds, 2 ambiguous and calls for -- incomplete hypothetica and
3 from purchasing those materias? 3 calsfor speculation.
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Incomplete 4 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
5 hypothetical. 5 THE WITNESS: Asit rdlaesto purchasing
6 Areyou asking has it gone through legal and 6 instructional materias, as| stated before, if they're
7 socid compliance, what kind of funds are they using, 7 inK-8, they need to purchase from the K-8 State Board
8 what kind of materials are they purchasing? 8 adopted listsfor the content areas | have mentioned.
9 MR. JACOBS: | sad curriculum, and as| 9 Andfor 9-12, if it's Schiff-Bustamante in particular,
10 understood it, that was a clear question under the 10 they need to purchase materials certified by the local
11 various-- 11 governing boards, standards aligned.
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 And, as | stated before, the IMF funds, the use
13 to"curriculum" and same objections. 13  of those funds would guide their purchases for the 70
14 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin. 14 percent and the 30 percent.
15 THE WITNESS: | don't know what you mean by 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andjust tobeclear onthis,
16 reading curriculum. 16 thisisnot merely arule about the use of state
17 MR. JACOBS: In my hypothetical this reading 17 categorica funding for instructional materias
18 curriculumincludes aprimary set of instructiona 18 purchased. Therulethat you just described appliesto
19 materias. It might be cdled atextbook, it might be 19 purchasing decisions regardless of the source of funds?
20 called something else, but it is the core thing that you 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That misstates her
21 haveto purchase in some quantitiesin order to deliver 21 testimony. Infact, sheidentified the sources of funds
22 thiscurriculum. 22 that shewasreferring to.
23 MR. VIRJEE: | think the problem is parlance. 23 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin.
24 | don't think you purchase curriculums. Y ou purchase 24 THE WITNESS: | can't spesk to the question.
25 ingtructional resources or instructional materias. I'm 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Why not? What part did you not
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1 understand? 1 avalabletodistricts.
2 A. Becauseyou're asking meto speak to other 2 The high schoal districts have the opportunity
3 fundsthat | have no knowledge of. 3 tothoroughly review the materids that they use and
4 Q. That'swhy I'masking you about what rule 4 makether choices, and use the funding sources provided
5 you'redescribing. 5 by the State to do so.
6 Are you describing arule about the use of 6 The funding sources themsalves have flexibility
7 Schiff-Bustamante and IMF? 7 within to make important decisions that support the
8 The rule you just gave me about what the school 8 needs of the schoals in the district by providing,
9 didtricts can purchase, isthat arule about the use of 9 through the State Board's policy, various options
10 thosefunds, or isthat arule about what the districts 10 through the percentages, for instance, under the IMF
11 can purchase under your understanding of the applicable 11 fund. Sol don't consider it closed at dll.
12 datelaw and regulations regardless of the source of 12 Q. Let'strythisagain. | asked you apretty
13 funds? 13 concrete hypothetical, and then you answered a broader
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 14 question. So let's stick with the hypothetical.
15 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 15 WereinK through 8, not 9 through 12. First
16 THE WITNESS: My understanding of your question 16 step. Okay?
17 isyou're asking me about decisions made by adistrict 17 A.  Uhhuh
18 tomake purchasing decisions outside of the system 18 Q. Werepurchasing atextbook for reading
19 that's been set up by the State. 19 language arts and everybody would agree it's a textbook.
20 MR. JACOBS: I'll take that characterization. 20 Okay. Second part of the hypothetical. Are you with
21 THE WITNESS: Okay. | don't have any knowledge 21 me?
22 of what digtricts are doing to make purchases outside of 22 Do you understand that element of a
23 thefunding streamsthat the State is providing them. 23 hypothetical?
24 Andas| stated before, the courses of study and the 24 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou're asking her to assume
25 curriculum offered in the classroom is determined at the 25 everybody would agreeit's a textbook?
Page 39 Page 41
1 locd levd. 1 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | think we can connect on this, 2 THE WITNESS: Sure.
3 butit'snot that difficult aquestion. 3 Q BY MR. JACOBS. Sowe have K through 8
4 Y ou described sort of a closed-loop systemin 4 textbook, reading language arts, and the district wants
5 which there are gpprovals of various sorts at the state 5 to purchase such atextbook that has not been approved
6 level and those gpprovals affect the uses of funds, 6 aspart of the adoption cycle for reading and language
7 whether it's Schiff-Bustamante or the 70 or 30 percent 7 ats
8 or the5 percent of the 30 percent of IMF. 8 Under your understanding of the range of
9 Do you agree that that's kind of a closed-loop 9 freedom available to the school district, if they do not
10 system? Isthat characterization fair? 10 use Schiff-Bustamante or state IMF, can they purchase
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and anbiguous as 11 that textbook?
12 to"closed-loop system.” 12 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection. Vague. Areyou
13 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 13 talking all funding sources from the State, or are you
14 MS. KAATZ: Join. 14 talking about al in the whole world?
15 MR. VIRJEE: To the extent you're saying they 15 MR. JACOBS: | said Shiff-Bustamante or state.
16 have no choices outside of that, | think that 16 Q. Do you understand what | mean by
17 mischaracterizes her testimony. 17 Schiff-Bustamante or state IMF?
18 THEWITNESS: No, | wouldn't agreeit'sa 18 A. Uh-huh.
19 closed-loop system. 19 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Areyou talking about all
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Why not? 20 funding sources which are even local, not just state?
21 A. Wadl, thelaw requiresthat the state boards 21 MR. VIRJEE: I'll also object on the grounds
22 ensurethat there are avariety of options available to 22 that it's an incomplete hypothetical.
23 digtricts to purchase on the state adopted lists because 23 MR. JACOBS. What part isincomplete? Let's
24 of theimportance, as stated in the legidative intent 24 getitright.
25 of the statute, that there be diversity in the choices 25 MR. VIRJEE: For example, you're not talking
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1 about whether the text has been approved for legd and 1 questionisthat districts are typicaly not purchasing

2 cultura compliance. 2 K-8ingtructional materias, they teach by grade levd,

3 MR. JACOBS:. No, | only said it has been 3 s0your hypothetical is difficult to respond to.

4 approved as part of the adoption cycle, that's correct. 4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Third grade?

5 Anything €lse? 5 A. Athird-grade book?

6 MR. VIRJEE: It dealswith the issue of what 6 Q. Intendedto be used for the year?

7 funding source they're going to be using, soin order to 7 A. Forafull-year course of study?

8 answer the question, you need to know what funding 8 Q. Correct.

9 sourcetheyreusing. 9 A.  Orother grades, but that gradein particular?
10 MR. JACOBS: Wél, | said they're not using 10 Q. Uh-huh
11 Schiff-Bustamante or state IMF. 11 A.  What thedistrict would need to do if they have
12 Is there any remaining ambiguity? 12 reviewed al materids that the State has approved in
13 MR. VIRJEE: It calsfor speculation depending 13 the sense of K-8 basic instructional materials and they
14 onthefunding source. Also cdlsfor alega 14 want to use any instructional material funds, state IMF
15 conclusion. 15 or Schiff-Bustamante, to purchase those materias, those
16 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 16 arecasesthat I'm aware of.
17 THE WITNESS: It would be difficult for meto 17 So, for example, the process they would go
18 respond because | don't know what the submissionlooks | 18 through -- thereis a clausein the statutes that allows
19 like or the materids that you're hypothetically 19 districtsto seek waiversfor the use of
20 presenting to meinthisscenario. | don't know exactly 20 Schiff-Bustamante and seek petitions for the use of the
21 ifit coversafull course of study for the year, | 21 instructiona materiasfund. They would needto do a
22 don't know if it's a supplemental. It would be 22 loca review, conduct a public hearing, consult with
23 difficult for meto respond toit. 23 their local bargaining unit and the teachersin the
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Wdl, what doweneedto 24 schools affected, and they would need to thoroughly
25 clarify? We need to respond whether it covers the fulll 25 review al materids that the State has adopted to

Page 43 Page 45

1 courseoftheyear? Yes. It'snot supplementd. It's 1 ensurethat they cannot meet the maximum efficiency of

2 thetextbook. The textbook, underline the, for that 2 pupil achievement in that particular district and the

3 reading and language arts curriculum that the district 3 schools affected by the waiver, or in the case of IMF,

4 has decided to adopt. 4 thepetition. They would then submit that information

5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 5 tothe State, cometo our officefirst.

6 to "thetextbook," whatever that might mean. 6 They are now required to include al of their

7 It's till an incomplete hypothetical. 7 achievement data by school for the subjects intended for

8 MR. JACOBS: What's missing? 8 the materialsthey desire to purchase with these

9 MR. VIRJEE: For example, they have aright to 9 dedicated sources.
10 gototheBoard and seek awaiver. 10 That evidence then would be analyzed, their
11 MR. JACOBS:. Do they? 11 achievement data, the assurance that they had their
12 MR. VIRJEE: I'm not going to tell you al the 12 local hearing, they have sign-off by al the local
13 thingsthat are missing. That'snot my job. It'san 13 leadership, the administrators, the governing board
14 incomplete hypothetical. 14 president, et cetera, and that waiver would be analyzed
15 MR. JACOBS: Good. Please pipe down. 15 toinclude, from the Department, arecommend or not
16 MR. VIRJEE: No, | can still make my objection 16 recommend to the State Board.
17 asincomplete hypothetica and it's inappropriate for 17 It would be scheduled for aboard meeting. The
18 youtotell meto pipedown. | specificaly didn't talk 18 digtrict would come forth to the meeting and testify
19 about thewaiver issue. Y ou asked me not to coach the 19 before the Board and provide evidence through the
20 witness, so | didn't dothat. Y ou asked methe 20 package, the waiver andysis, aswell astheir verbal
21 question, now I'm giving it to you. There are other 21 testimony, why it wasin the best interest of those
22 permutations to the hypotheticd that are missing as 22 studentsto be using a non-adopted book, grade three or
23 wadl, but I'm not here testifying. 23 for afull school site, and the Board would then render
24 MR. JACOBS: Grest. 24 adecision of recommend the waiver or not recommend. If
25 THE WITNESS: A couple of problems with your 25 they recommend, it's typicaly for atwo-year period.
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In other cases the Board will also ask the
digtrict to come back to the State Board at the end of
the two years and report out their achievement datato
ensure that the students indeed benefited from using
materias that were not adopted by the State Board.
Q.  Asyou understand the process you've just
defined -- firgt of al, we are now, again, talking
about a process involving the use of, and you can
clarify which one, Schiff-Bustamante or state IMF funds,
correct?

A.  Uhhuh.

Q. Andwhichonewasit, or both?

A.  Widl, the petitions work in the same way.
Theres alittle more flexibility with petitions. I'm
more than happy to explain that.

Q.  Maeaning that you can petition for using the
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legal and social compliance approved list, again, absent
an exception?
A.  Yes, dl materials have to be approved for
legal and social compliance regardless of the list
they're on.
Q. Doyouunderstand thereto be arule applicable
to school districts that precludes them from purchasing
basic instructiona materialsinapplicableto agradein
K through 8 -- let me start over again.

Do you understand there to be arule for
purchases applicable to K through 8 grades with respect
to the purchase of basic instructional materials that
gppliesif the district does not use Schiff-Bustamante
or state IMF funds?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to"rule." Also incomplete hypothetical.

17 processes you just described for flexibility in the use 17 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Cadllsfor alega conclusion.
18 of Schiff-Bustamante and state IMF funds? 18 MR. VIRJEE: Cdlsfor alega conclusion as
19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Misstates her 19 well.
20 tedtimony. She said the petition processis for IMF and 20 THE WITNESS: | can respond in regardsto the
21 thewaiver isfor Schiff-Bustamante. 21 obligation that districts have to conduct an annual
22 THE WITNESS: Right. Let meclarify. Whet | 22 public hearing.
23 explained to you was for the use of Schiff-Bustamante. 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | wasn't going inthat
24 For petitionsit'sasimilar process, but it 24 direction. | wasgoing inthe direction of it's not on
25 involves arequest to the State Board to use more than 25 thelega or socia compliancelist and it's not been
Page 47 Page 49
1 the 30 percent that's set aside for legd and social 1 approved as part of the adoption cycle, but the district
2 compliance materias only, or the 5 percent within that. 2 wishesto purchase it and they're not using state IMF or
3 They would petition the Board, it'scalled a 3 Schiff-Bustamante funds. Arethere rules applicable to
4 petition, they would then petition to exceed that 30 4 that purchase?
5 percent, so their full apportionment for that year. 5 A.  Wadl, if youlet mefinish my thought, this
6 For example, they may want to use an additiond 6 might be helpful.
7 10 percent of the funds for a supplemental purchase, so 7 Q. Okay.
8 they would comeinto the Board with their petition 8 A.  Under the public hearing requirement in which
9 reguest. Wenow aso require achievement datafor those | 9 thedistrict conducts at least one hearing to ensure
10 particular requests as well and the subjects affected by 10 ample public input, community, teachers --
11 therequest. 11 Q. 601197
12 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Inyour answer you used the 12 A. Right. -- they areto certify that they have
13 phrase"basic ingtructional materials.” Isthat aterm 13 sufficient materias for pupils within the cycles of the
14 that you usein your day-to-day work? 14 curriculum frameworks, and those frameworks contain the
15 A, Yes 15 evaluation criteriawhich guide the development and
16 Q. Andwhat doesit mean? 16 approvd of al K-8 basicinstructiona materials, as
17 A. It'sdefinedin statute for purposes of 17 wedl as9-12.
18 adoption of materidlsin K-8, and it's defined as 18 So if they have to abide by 60119 and certify
19 ingructional materials that provide for afull year's 19 sufficient materials based on those cycles which contain
20 course of study. 20 theevaduation criteria, which develop those materids,
21 Q. Sofirst of al, absent awaiver or approva of 21 which then go through an evaluation process a the state
22 apsition, I'm not sure which applies here, can you use 22 level, then are approved or rejected, then they must
23 the 30 percent of IMF for basic instructional materials? 23 comply with that.
24 A,  Yes 24 Q. Arethereany other rulesthat relateto a
25 Q. Andthat 30 percent, again, hasto be on the 25 digtrict's flexibility in making purchasing decisions
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1 for basicingtructional materidsin K through 8 that 1 THE WITNESS: | would just state again that the
2 arenot on the -- approved as part of the adoption cycle 2 certification by the local governing board through the
3 orareonthelega and social compliance list? 3 hearing processis that they have sufficient materias
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 4 that relate to the cycles of the framework which contain
5 Incomplete hypothetical. 5 thecriteriato approve the materids. They're
6 And you're asking in addition to the rules 6 interconnected. You can't separate them.
7 she'smentioned, or al her previous testimony? Because 7 The hearing isn't about certifying that you've
8 she's mentioned other rules, that's why I'm asking. 8 purchased materials that aren't on any state lists, that
9 MR. JACOBS: | don't know that we have any 9 arejust extrasupport materias, it's not about that.
10 other rules. 10 It'sabout ensuring that the public can be assured that
1 MR. VIRJEE: She'stalked about the waiver 11 you have sufficient materialsin line with the cycles of
12 process, for example. She has mentioned others. 12 theframework, which is the foundation of the
13 Also object that it calls for alega 13 development of content digned materiasin gradesK to
14 conclusion. 14 12 for al subjects, and for those that don't have
15 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 15 standards, the guidance that's provided in the
16 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto "rule.” 16 framework.
17 THE WITNESS: | don't have knowledge of genera 17 MR. JACOBS: Could you read back that answer,
18 datutesrelated to your question. | can tell you that 18 please.
19 the compliance procedures that the State uses, the audit 19 (Record read.)
20 guideling, isapplicable to the hearing process | just 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you understand that if the
21 mentioned to you. Sointhat way, aswell as the use of 21 district wishesto use non-Schiff-Bustamante funds and
22 thefundsthat the State dedicates, thereisa 22 non-state IMF funds, that there is any other rule other
23 compliance review to ensure that the funds were not used 23 than 60119 that appliesto that purchasing decision and
24 to purchase programs that were not approved by the state 24 saystothedistrict, were sorry, we have a process,
25 or loca governing board at grades 9to 12. Sothe 25 it'sgot to be -- notwithstanding the fact that you're
Page 51 Page 53
1 compliance mechanismisrelated to that. 1 not using Schiff-Bustamante or state IMF, you can't make
2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: To st up the hypothetical 2 that purchase?
3 again, werein K through 8, we're not getting -- we're 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered,
4 notfiling a petition or an application for awaiver, 4 and aso incomplete hypothetical. She's provided
5 "we" being aschoal digtrict, we wish to purchase 5 information about what other processesthere are.
6 materidsthat are not on the approved list as part of 6 And it is also an incomplete hypothetical asto
7 the adoption cycle and have not been approved for lega 7 what's been purchased, what funds are being used. And
8 andsocia compliance, and at the public hearing we are 8 it'sasovague and ambiguous asto "rule."
9 going to state that we are -- to our electorate, our 9 THE WITNESS: | have no knowledge.
10 congtituencies that we have made this purchasing 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Y ou have no knowledge of such a
11 decision, and, again, we're not using Schiff-Bustamante 11 rule?
12 and we're not using state IMF, do you understand there 12 A. | havenoknowledge.
13 tobeany rulein place that would preclude the school 13 (Recess taken.)
14 digtrict from making that purchasing decision? 14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Which entity actually -- before
15 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Same objection asbefore, plus | 15 it's sent to the State Board of Education for approval,
16 she'sdready answered that she doesn't know of any 16 what isthe ultimate gpproval step in the process of
17 others. 17 adopting instructional materials?
18 MR. VIRJEE: Shedready testifiedto a 18 A.  Thecurriculum commission.
19 particular rule. It'saso vague and ambiguous as to 19 Q. Andthat'sthe oneto which you are executive
20 ‘"public hearing." 20 secretary?
21 Areyou talking about the 60119 public hearing 21 A.  Executive secretary.
22 or some other public hearing? 22 Q.  Thecurriculum commission reviews the content
23 MR. JACOBS: In the context of your previous 23 of proposed materials to see how they match up against
24 testimony | think it is clear I'm talking about the 24 the curriculum framework, correct?
25 60119 public hearing. 25 A.  Thecurriculum framework and the evaluation
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criteriaincluded in the framework.

Q. Aretheevduation criteria confined to issues
of content, or do they go to other issues? And the one
I'minterested inis pricing in particular.

MR. VIRJEE: Areyou asking whether the
evaluation criteriaregarding the curriculum framework?

MR. JACOBS: The ones shejust referred to.

MR. VIRJEE: She said the evaluation of
criteriain the curriculum framework.

MR. JACOBS: Y ou can answer.

MR. VIRJEE: If you understand it. It'svague
and ambiguous and nonsensical.

THEWITNESS: The criteriadoes not include
informeation about prices.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Does pricing comeinto the
adoption process at al?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to"pricing" and "at al."

MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'll join.

THE WITNESS: There's aprocess that requires
publishers to submit their price quotes prior to
adoption.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isthat process?
A.  Atthetimethat they're preparing to submit
their materialsto the State for review through the
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isembodied only in regulation, or do you understand
that it's aso arequirement in the applicable statutes?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "embodied," and also cdlsfor alegal conclusion.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: It'sin statute and regulation.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andisthereany explicit
prohibition in statute, as you understand the statutes,
that bars the curriculum commission or State Board of
Education from explicitly considering the amount of the
price quote in deciding whether to approve materias for
adoption?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered,
and also cdlsfor alegal conclusion.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: Can you restate the question?
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: You stated in statute and
regulation there is a-- that pursuant to statute and
regulation the State ensures compliance with this MFN,
most favored nations, pricing requirement, correct?
A.  Uh-huh
Q. Andl tekeit that that's the extent of the
role of the curriculum commission or your officein
controlling the prices of the materidsthat are
submitted for approvd; isthat correct?
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curriculum commission with our office assistance to the
curriculum commission, they're asked to submit a price
quote. If they're adopted by the State Board dfter the
evaluation by the curriculum commission and by action of
the Board, that price quoteis then in effect for two
years.

Q.  Doesthe curriculum commission consider the
price quote as afactor in deciding whether to approve
the materials that have been submitted?

A. No.

Q. Andistherea-- isthere astatutory -- you
understand the factors that the commission can consider,
is there a statutory reason why the commission does not
consider the price quote?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor alegd
conclusion.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: The curriculum commission and the
State Board and the Department of Education ensure that
publishers comply with what's called the most favored
nations clause, and that's in materials that they've
submitted in Californiamust be at no greater price and
of the same quality that they have submitted or sold in
any other parts of the nation.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andisthat arequirement that
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MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
Also misstates her testimony to the extent you've now
included her office. Her questions (sic) were
previoudly about the commission, because that's what you
asked about.

MR. JACOBS: She specificaly referred to her
office. Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: No.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What additional steps doesthe
commission or your office take in that regard?
A. Thestepsarerequired of the publishersfirst.
The statute requires that they submit the price quote
prior to approval by the State Board. That price quote
must remain for two years. They cannot increase their
prices.

The Board takes into account the totdlity of
the information that's presented to them. They approve
the materials. The price quote stands. They sdll those
materials. If districts choose to purchase them, they
cando so. The pricelistsarewith our office, and we
ensure compliance that those prices are not raised
during the biannual period.
Q. Ifapublisher submits materias for approval
that are in your judgment -- let'stake you. You're
sitting there, you're looking at some materiasin the
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1 various capacities within which you operate with your 1 that thelast component, or any others?
2 employer and you conclude that in your personal opinion 2 A. No
3 that the proposed materials are expensive, but you do 3 Q. Ididn'tunderstand your answer.
4 not understand the publisher to be out of compliance 4 A. Yesh I think youre confused about what I'm
5 withthe MFN requirement and you understand them to be 5 saying. What guides the publishersin developing
6 committing to the two-year rule that you just described, 6 materidsiswhat the State is asking them to produce.
7 canyou do anything with that information? 7 It'saprivate market. They produce those materials,
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 8 they ascertain their costs to produce those materials,
9 to"expensive," and completely overbroad asto “can you 9 they submit a price quote based on the evaluation
10 do anything with that information." 10 criteriarequirements and what they fed the costs were
11 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 11 that they bore for the production of those materials
12 MS. KAATZ: Join. 12  based on Cdifornids requirements.
13 THE WITNESS: Every adoption is different. 13 Q. |takeityour point wasif Caiforniaexpands
14 Instructional materialsis based on the evauation 14 thereguirementsin any particular context, that might
15 criteria so | couldn't answer that. 15 reatethen to the pricing by the publisher. Isthat
16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | think you said that the 16 what you were saying?
17 evauation of the criteriado not in themselves include 17 A. No, | didn't say that.
18 pricing; isthat correct? 18 Q. What did you mean when you said that the
19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 19 components of the criteria-- my question to you was
20 The testimony speaks for itself. 20 about control of pricing, and your answer was about the
21 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 21 components of the criteria
22 THE WITNESS: The criteria determines what the 22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That misstates both
23 Stateisasking for inthe materials, and that differs 23 your question and her answer.
24 with each gpprova of each framework. So the evaluation 24 MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'll join.
25 criteriaincludes what components are expected to be 25 THE WITNESS: It'salittle broader than that.
Page 59 Page 61
1 submitted by publishers, which thus also impacts the 1 |think you're asking meto tell that there's price
2 price submissions. 2 directionsin the criteria, and thereis not.
3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Canyou give meaforinstance 3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: AndI'm asking you, though, in
4 of how the evaluation criteriarelates to the 4 addition -- I'm asking you a subtler question, whichis,
5 components? 5 among the mix of factors that you would consider in
6 A. What doyoumean? 6 deciding whether to approve a proposed set of
7 Q. Anexample. | don't understand what you just 7 ingtructional material, are you alowed to consider the
8 said, so I'm hoping an example will elucidate your 8 pricethat has been submitted pursuant to your process
9 testimony. 9 for getting the price quote from the publisher?
10 A. Typicaly the criteriaasks for five aspects of 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 aprogram, content dignment, the grade-level content 11 to"you."
12 aignment; rules about program organization within the 12 Now do you mean Sherry Griffith, her office,
13 materias; requirements regarding assessment, individual 13 the commission, the Board?
14 pupil assessment, summative, informative assessment; it 14 MR. JACOBS: Any of the above.
15 includes requirements for universal access, can dl 15 MR. VIRJEE: Alsoincomplete hypothetical and
16 students access the curriculum through the materials. 16 aso asked and answered.
17 Q. For example, blind students or students with 17 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
18 disabilities? 18 THE WITNESS: Can | request amore specific
19 A.  Whaisavailableinthe materids, right, for 19 question on this?
20 specia populations, English language learners, for 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Specificinwhichway?
21 instance. 21 A. Whoyouretaking about in particular.
22 And then finally descriptions of what should be 22 Q. | dartedwiththisline of questioning with
23 included for instructional strategies and support for 23 you, you're sitting there and in whatever way you have
24 teachers. Those are the main components. 24 input into this adoption process. And | redlizel
25 Q. Andthe componentsthat relateto pricing, is 25 haven't asked you al the ways in which you have input,
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so I'm asking you about -- I'll change the question a
little bit. Just you in your role and you see aprice
quote, because you've asked for the price quote and it's
been given you, and you have no issue -- as you look at
this, you have no MFN issue that you've identified and
you have no two-year adherence issue that you've
identified, but it |ooks expensive to you, how can you
use that, if you want to, in whatever input you provide
into the adoption process?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "looks expensive" and "have input."

MS. ALTAMIRANO: And dsoasto "you" again,
because she has different positions which give her
different authority.

MR. VIRJEE: | guessthat would makeit
compound.

| understand he means "you" to be you in any
role.

MR. JACOBS: Yes.

THE WITNESS: No, my division does not have
authority to determineif the price istoo high or too
low.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: The program organization factor
that you described, can you explain what that is?
A.  Submissions of materials are evauated based on

PBoo~ooswNE

NRNNNNRNNRE R R R R R
ORWONRPROOWONOUDWN

Page 64

It could be multifaceted, and should be multifaceted, in
their approach.
Q.  Asl understand your testimony, one of the
criteria, and in particular this assessment criteria, is
an evaluation by the -- as one step in the process, the
curriculum commission, of the quality of the assessment
content that is provided with this set of instructional
materials; isthat right?
A. Yes
Q. Andonuniversa access, we talked about
specific populations in terms of English language
learners and physical disabilities; isthat correct?
A.  Specia education populations would beincluded
in that description.
Q. Andjust to come back to our pricing
discussion, universal access does not include an
evaluation of whether -- of affordability of the
proposed materials?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "affordability." Also incomplete hypothetical.

MS. KAATZ: Join.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THEWITNESS: Inevdudtion criteriait's
related to universal access for the student.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Asapposed towhat? Whyis
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how a program is organized in the sense of how the
content is presented, is it easy to follow, could the
teacher draw from that, could the student draw from
that, is it sequential, doesit build upon the previous
chapters. Those would be examples.

Q. By assessment did you mean does the -- do the
materials that are being proposed for adoption include
related assessment tools?

MR. VIRJEE: Y ou're asking about component
No. 3 now, the assessment requirement?

MR. JACOBS: Yes.

THE WITNESS: Could you restate that again.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS. What did you mean by assessment
asacriteria?

A.  Assessment would primarily -- depending if it's
astudent edition or the teacher's edition. Student

edition would include practice questions to assess their
knowledge, perhaps, of the chapter. That could also be
included in other components of the program. That would

be an example.

For the teacher's edition, it would include not
only what the student is using to ascertain their
knowledge of the materials, but it would include other
assessment strategies the teacher could use to determine
that they've achieved grade-level standard, for example.
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that responsive to my question?
A.  Why don't you restate your question.
Q. Doesuniversd accessinclude an evauation of
the -- | take it from your earlier answer that universa
access does not include an analysis of the affordability
of the materials?

MR. VIRJEE: Same objection.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Same.
Q. BY MR. JACOBS: The answer is|I'm correct,
right?
A. Yes
Q.  What did you mean by thelast criteria, which |
didn't quite get down, instructional strategies and
support for teachers, | think?
A.  Uhhuh.
Q.  What doesthat mean?
A.  What it typicaly meansis the teacher's
edition would include strategies that the teacher can
usein the classroom. It may involve the instructional
materials, it may not. It may provide additiona
activities that the teacher can introduce in the
classroom for beyond the instructional materias. It
may include strategies on pacing the material, how to
ddiver the materia throughout the year.
Q. S0, again, thisis an assessment of the quality
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of the proposed materids, in terms of providing this
kind of guidance and support to teachers, how to
actually impart the materia as opposed to strictly an
evaluation of the content that is to be imparted?

MR. VIRJEE: Okay. Vague and ambiguous.
Assumes those are two different things. Assumesthat
structures and strategies and pacing wouldn't be part of
the content.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: | don't understand your question.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thisisan assessment of the
qudity of the materials in terms of providing guidance
and direction to teachers about how to impart the
content of the materids; is that correct?

A. Wdll, they'reinterrelated.

Q.  Soyou actudly are looking at the content to

see whether the content itsdlf is easily imparted, or
areyou redly looking at -- if | understood your
testimony, you're looking at, for example, here are some
tips for teachers about how to cover this chepter as
opposed to the chapter itsdf.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS. AmI incorrect?
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Aretherecasesinwhich
materias are submitted for approva pursuant to the
process weve been discussing, and they are basic
instructional materials, but the publisher has chosen
not to submit a teacher's edition?
A. | know of no cases of that.
Q. Soingened, then, or all the cases you're
aware of, ateacher's edition is proposed along with the
student edition?
A. Ingenerd, yes.
Q.  Whenaschool decides whether to purchase
materias that have been approved pursuant to the
process that weve described, isthis correct, that
there is no requirement that they purchase the teacher's
edition along with a student edition?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
evidence. Assumes that aschool makes that decision.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: Generaly when apublisher sdlls
materias to adistrict, there's ateacher's edition
with a certain ratio of student editions in dmost every
case. Soif it'saclass of 20, you get one teacher's
edition, if it'saclass of 30, you get one teacher's

24 MR. VIRJEE: Incomplete hypothetical. 24 edition. Sothe publishers sdll the materials to ensure
25 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 25 that the classroom can include a teacher's edition and
Page 67 Page 69
1 THE WITNESS: It'sjust too vague. 1t will 1 the number needed for the classroom.
2 depend on the criteriaasit's written for the 2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thisisamatter of publisher's
3 particular subject, so | can't speak specifically. 3 practice, or amatter of the way you approve -- or a
4 | provided you examples of what instructional 4 part of the process of approvd that you've been
5 drategies or support could be. In each evauation 5 describing?
6 criteriait may differ, but the premisesof it is 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumes factsnotin
7 support for the teacher to teach in the classroom as one 7 evidence. Also assumes that those are mutually
8 resource for them, and to, when applicable, extend out 8 exclusive.
9 beyond the activities of the materialsto help ddliver 9 MR. JACOBS: That wasn't avery good question.
10 the curriculum in the classroom, going beyond the 10 | agree with you.
11 maerids. 11 THE WITNESS: They're not mutually exclusive.
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Thereare at least some 12 MR. JACOBS: They are not mutually exclusive.
13 cases-- and I'll ask you about typicality in aminute, 13 | never redlized that.
14 but | want to set up the casefirst. 14 Q. Butarethey separately priced by the publisher
15 There are at least some casesin which proposed 15 inageneral case?
16 ingtructional materias include basic instructional 16 MR. VIRJEE: The teachers's edition and the
17 materids, plus other materias, for example, a 17 student edition?
18 teacher's edition, correct? 18 MR. JACOBS: Correct.
19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfacts. Also 19 THE WITNESS: Only in the caseif you had to
20 vague and ambiguous asto basic not including a 20 purchase additional teacher's edition or replace a
21 teacher'sedition. | think her testimony earlier was 21 teacher's edition.
22 that basic ingtructiona materials could include a 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Intheordinary case, if you
23 teacher's edition. 23  buy a set, however that's been defined, it will come
24 THE WITNESS: Basicingructional materidsdo | 24  with the teacher's edition?
25 include ateacher's edition. 25 A, Yes
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1 Q. Justsol'vegottheterm down, basic 1 for content alignment, grade-level content alignment, so
2 ingtructional materias includes ateacher's edition if 2 that al of those components could be used as needed if
3 oneisavailablefor -- associated with the student 3 thefull program was purchased.
4 edition, and it'safull year course of study. 4 If in that basic submission they also submit
5 Arethere any other elements in your common use 5 manipulatives, charts, things that reinforce the
6 of theterm basic ingtructional materias? 6 standards aligned components, that is also reviewed, but
7 A. Youkind of confused the matter with those two 7 itwould beidentified as support pieces.
8 issues, so you'd haveto restate that. Y ou've included 8 The basic materids to teach in the classroom
9 dudent edition with the definition of basic 9 cancomeinavariety of formats, so, for example, they
10 indructiona materials. 10 could include, and have in the past, everything for a
1 Q. I think we just covered this. Basic 11 full year course of study in aCD-ROM, and we've
12 instructional materials would typically include a 12 reviewed those materials at the state level from one
13 teacher's edition, correct? 13 disk. Or they may haveit in the format of a student
14 A. Yes 14 edition, traditional student edition, teacher edition.
15 Q. Anditreatesto materiasthat areintended 15 Or they may have a videotape and a support workbook that
16 tobeused acrossafull year course of study? 16 would comprise the full basic program.
17 A. Yes 17 The publisher determines the format in which
18 Q. Andasyou usethetermbasic ingtructiona 18 they want to submit their program, and so long asiit
19 materids, arethere any other componentsto the 19 meetsthe evaluation criteriaand aignment to
20 definition? 20 grade-level content standards and the Board approvesit,
21 MR. VIRJEE: Other than what she'stestified 21 it can be used by school districts.
22 to? 22 Q. Anditcanbe used by schoal digtricts-- to
23 MR. JACOBS: Right. 23 theextent this definition of basic instructional
24 THE WITNESS: Not that I'm aware of. 24 materials matters, it can be used as basic instructional
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andsotypically basic 25 materias? That's what you meant really by your --
Page 71 Page 73
1 instructiona -- typical case, basic instructiona 1 A | don't understand as long as it matters.
2 materias exclude certain supplemental materidsthat a 2 Q. Does the definition of basic instructional
3 publisher might propose along with a set of materials 3 materials bear on how Shiff-Bustamante funds are used,
4 for adoption? 4 for example?
5 A.  No 5 A Yes.
6 Q. Sohow doesthat work? A publisher says, | 6 Q. Andhow doesthat work?
7 want you to look at my student edition, my teacher 7 A. I think I've mentioned this already.
8 edition, my CD-ROM, my posters, can dl those be 8 Q. Now I'm understanding how basic instructional
9 categorized as basic instructional materias? 9 materiasrelate.
10 A. Yes 10 MR. VIRJEE: | guess| should make an asked and
11 Q. Anddo you haveflexibility in the approva 11 answered objection there.
12 processin categorizing proposed materials as basic 12 THE WITNESS: How do the two relate?
13 instructiona materials or not in the case where 13 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
14 materials are proposed along with, for example, a 14 THE WITNESS: For purposes of adoption of
15 textbook that clearly is part of basic instructiond 15 materials a grades K to 8 and 9-12 there's a definition
16 materids? 16 of basicinstructional materials, and it's defined as
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and anbiguous as 17 providing for afull year's course of study. That's all
18 to"you." 18 it states. It doesn't talk about format.
19 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 19 Schiff-Bustamante is used for the purpose of
20 THE WITNESS: No. 20 purchasing materias that have been approved by the
21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Why not? 21 State Board under the K-8 adoption process, which are
22 A.  Whenapublisher determinesthat theyre 22 basic adoptions typically.
23 submitting a program which is comprehensive, they 23 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: By "basic adoptions,” you did
24 identify at that time for the core subjects the 24 not meanto--
25 materials within the program that need to be reviewed 25 A. Basic materids, instructional materials,

19 (Pages 70 to 73)




Page 74 Page 76
1 adoption for afull year course of study. 1 Board and digned to grade-level content standardsin
2 | would just clarify that the Board has the 2 thecriteria
3 right to call for additional adoptions of materids, 3 Q. Letmestopyouforjustaminute Ifa
4 both basic and supplemental, but for the most part they 4 publisher submits aset of materials and says thisis my
5 arecdling onthetraditional cycles. Every six years 5 basicingtructiona materials and it includes some
6 there'stwo adoptions within acontent area, aprimary 6 componentsthat are -- let me back up a second.
7 and afollow-up, and the definition for those 7 Are publishersincented, in your view, to
8 submissionsfor the publishersis the definition of 8 propose materiasfor inclusion in aset of basic
9 basic. 9 ingtructiona materias?
10 That would aso be applicable to grades 9-12. 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 They would be producing basic instructiona materials. 11 to--
12 Districts would purchase those using Schiff-Bustamante. 12 MR. JACOBS: -- asopposed to support all
13 Q. Sothereisfunding available for the purchase 13 materias?
14 of basic instructional materiasthat is distinct from 14 MR. VIRJEE: I'm sorry. | apologize for
15 funding available for purchasing supplemental materials? 15 cutting you off. Objection. Vague and ambiguous asto
16 | needto get that predicate established. That's 16 “incented."
17 correct, right? 17 Incented specifically by the State, by the
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 18 marketplace, by --
19 to both -- funding for both and that they're mutually 19 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin.
20 exclusive. 20 MR. JACOBS: Incented by the funding streams
21 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 21 that areavailable.
22 MR. VIRJEE: She'sdready testified, for 22 MR. VIRJEE: Same objection.
23  example, that you can use funding for the purchase of 23 THE WITNESS: | couldn't answer that question.
24 both. | think she's asked and -- answered the question, 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Why not?
25 that your separation of the two isinaccurate. 25 MR. VIRJEE: | guessit would cal for
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1 Misstates her testimony. 1 speculation as to what would incent them.
2 MR. JACOBS: | think you understand my question 2 THE WITNESS: | don't know the motivation of
3 though. 3 every publisher.
4 THE WITNESS: Wéll, there's two opportunities 4 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: | didn't ask you that. But you
5 for districts to purchase support materials. If you 5 do have aview on the incentive system the State has set
6 want adefinition for that. 6 up withit's various funding streams, do you not?
7 MR. JACOBS: Uh-huh. 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumes factsnotin
8 THE WITNESS: Isthat correct? 8 evidence. Assumesthereisanincentive system.
9 MR. JACOBS: Lef'sget that. That's agood 9 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
10 idea 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isthere?
11 Q. Support materias definition? 11 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto
12 A. Supplemental materials. As| stated before, 12 "incentive system.”
13 for the basic instructional materials adoptions, al of 13 Q. BY MR. JACOBS:. Do you ever talk about
14 the materials submitted by the publishersis reviewed 14 incentives for various actions by school districts or
15 using the applicable evaluation criteria and to ensure 15 publishers when you have discussions about that?
16 content alignment. 16 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection.
17 There are components of the basic program that 17 Incentive for what?
18 districts have options to purchase or not purchase, and 18 MR. JACOBS: Y ou can answer my guestion.
19 those are identified which parts are core and standards 19 MR. VIRJEE: [f you understand it.
20 aligned and which parts might reinforce the curriculum, 20 THE WITNESS: I'm unclear about what you're
21 thegraphs, the manipulatives, et cetera. That's one 21 redly asking me. Havel had a policy discussion, a
22 option for districts to purchase, not only the basics, 22 persona discussion with someone about what drives
23 but supplementals. That would be the one opportunity 23 publishersto do what they do?
24 for them to do so within Schiff-Bustamante, but it must 24 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
25 be part of aprogram that's been approved by the State 25 THE WITNESS: Inwhat case?
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1 Q BY MR JACOBS: I'mwonderingif you've ever 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
2 considered -- let metell what you I'm driving at. Y ou 2 toscreen.
3 cantdl meif the questionishopeless. | don't think 3 Areyou asking what they do to ensure there are
4 itis. 4 no extraneous materias?
5 As| understand it, first of al, publishers 5 MR. JACOBS: | think that was your testimony.
6 areincented to propose materias for inclusion on the 6 MR. VIRJEE: I'm asking, was that what your
7 state adoption list because if those materias are 7 Question was?
8 adopted pursuant to the process that you've identified, 8 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
9 funding isavailable to schoal districts to purchase 9 THE WITNESS: Couple of procedures that we use.
10 those materids that would not otherwise be available; 10 Firg, the evaluation criteriais very explicit to the
11 isthat correct? 11 publishersthat they shall not include any extraneous
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 materials, and then secondly, the State Board of
13 to"incented," and also calls for speculation asto what 13 Education, upon recommendation of the curriculum
14 might incent someone or not. 14 commission, gppoints content experts from various grade
15 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin. 15 levelsand from university level to review the materials
16 MS. KAATZ: Join. 16 toensurethat it alignswith the criteriaand the
17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: You agreewith me, don't you? 17 standards, and no extraneous materials are included.
18 A. Firg, thisisonly thefirst phase at the 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by extraneous here, is
19 dateleve. It'saquality assurance phase. There's 19 there adefinition of extraneous?
20 no assurance for publishers that they're going to be 20 A. Theresnoone definition of extraneous. |
21 purchased. That isadecision that's made at the local 21 could provide you an example.
22 leves. 2 Q. Yes
23 Q. That wasn't my question. | think you 23 A. Thereisasecond-grade chapter in science on
24 understand it because you've been around policy circles, 24  magnetism and it meets acertain grade-level content
25 haven' you, for much of your career? 25 standard to ensure that children understand magnetism,
Page 79 Page 81
1 A. |think that would require meto give you a 1 what that processis. And on the pagethat that
2 subjective, personal opinion. 2 materia isprovided, thereis additional activities
3 Q. That'sdl I'masking for. 3 that don't relate to the theory of magnetism, there are
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 4  colorful picturesthat don't have anything to do with
5 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 5 magnetism, just kind of draws the eye but doesn't stick
6 THE WITNESS: Okay. The State ensuresthrough | 6 to the content, then that would be cited by the content
7 the evaluation criteriathat no extraneous materials are 7 experts as extraneous meterial.
8 included in the submissions. 8 And based on the determination of the
9 MR. JACOBS: That waswhat | was getting at. 9 commission, and the Board subsequently, if the Board
10 Q. How doyou dothat? 10 determinesthey will approve the program with the
11 A.  Therefore the publishers have an incentive to 11 conditional change to remove the extraneous materia,
12 provide exactly what the State is asking them to 12 thenthey would do so. Because the adoption of the
13 provide, and they provide what's called a standards map 13 materials are conditioned on mesting the Board's
14 to show how they've gotten there. So they competeusing | 14 criteriaand the grade-level content standards. So the
15 the reguirements the State has laid out, and if they're 15 Board may put conditions on the approva and ask the
16 successful, then they can compete in the marketplacein 16 publisher to remove dl extraneous materid that's been
17 Cdlifornia 17 cited by the content experts.
18 Q. Okay. Sothat wasthe screen. That was 18 Q. That'san example of a case where the materia
19 exactly what | was asking, and | just didn't have the 19 wasextraneousin that it did not relate to the content
20 vocabulary. 20 standards as such, correct?
21 A. | thought you were. 21 A. Theevaudion criteria, which includes the
22 Q. Whatisthat screen that you apply to achieve 22 consent standards alignment criteria
23 the objective that you just described in that last 23 Q. Inthecasewhereapublisher submitsfor
24 answer with respect to -- | think your word was 24 approva atraditional textbook, that is, basic
25 extraneous? 25 ingtructiond materials --
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1 MR. VIRJEE: Areyou saying those are the same 1 materiasfor approval.
2 thinginthat question? 2 And my question then -- and you said thereisa
3 MR. JACOBS:. No, different case now. Setting 3 processtofilter out extraneous materid, and that
4 up adifferent hypothetical. 4 process, asyou gave me an example, related to alignment
5 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Isthe textbook basic 5 with content?
6 instructiona material? 6 A. No.
7 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 7 MR. VIRJEE: That misstates the testimony.
8 Q. Butthepublisher has submitted additional 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How did| get that wrong?
9 materidsfor approval, such as aposter that is aligned 9 A. Theésalotinvolved inthe evauation
10 with the content standard, but is arguably extraneousin 10 process.
11 the sensethat you could impart the material inthe 11 Q. Fromthestandpoint of extraneousness?
12 textbook without the poster -- 12 A. Contentisavery broad term, so you'd have to
13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Misstates her 13 definethat for me.
14 testimony. 14 Q. Widl, the example you gave mewas apicture on
15 Q. BY MR JACOBS:. --isthereancother measureof | 15 apagein achapter on magnetism thet didn't relate to
16 extraneousness that would be applied to that issue? 16 magnetism, and the content advisor that you had review
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Misstates her 17 thissays, | don't understand why thisis here, thisis
18 tegtimony. Also vague and ambiguous. 18 supposed to be about magnetism, this pictureis
19 THEWITNESS: No. If it reinforcesthe 19 extraneous. Did | understand your testimony on that
20 curriculum and the content, and based on the best advice | 20 example correctly?
21 of the appointess and the Board concurs, wewouldmove | 21 A.  Right.
22 forward. It's based on the evaluation and the process 22 Q. Sol wantto changethe example alittle bit
23 asawhole. Theresno specific. Eachoneisa 23 and ask you if content was not the driver of the
24 case-by-casereview. 24 determination of extraneousness, are there other
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Right. Butisthereafilter 25 potentia driversfor the determination of
Page 83 Page 85
1 toavoid asituation in which the publisher is 1 extraneousness?
2 submitting awide range of media that happened, in fact, 2 A. Theevauation criteria determines that.
3 to be-- from a content standpoint are aigned with the 3 Q. Andarethere casss, then, or can you give me
4 standards, so that a wide range of mediais not 4 an example in which an extraneousness determination
5 automatically approved under the basic instructional 5 would be based on any of the factors other than content
6 materials category and therefore eligible in the 6 dignment?
7 ordinary case for Shiff-Bustamante funding? 7 A, Yes
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 8 Q. Pleae
9 She's already testified that a wide range of media can 9 A. Couldbeoneof the other categories I've
10 be submitted as a part of the basic instructional 10 previoudy mentioned.
11 program. 11 Q. Sogivemeafor example under program
12 MR. JACOBS: | think asked and answered is 12 organization where something would be determined to be
13 sufficient. I'm trying to understand a system here. 13 extraneous.
14 and | think that's a completely fair question. 14 A. Sametype of example, where the teacher's
15 MR. VIRJEE: | think the problem isthat you're 15 edition, the descriptions and strategies described do
16 confusing -- or a least your questions seem to be 16 not stay focused on the content that should be ddlivered
17 confusing extraneous versus supplemental. | think 17 inthe classroom, and based on the advice of the
18 that'sthe problem. I'mtrying to help you. 18 appointees of the State Board, they'll take that into
19 MR. JACOBS: Actually, that is helpful, more 19 account and determineif the material is extraneous and
20 helpful than the objection. 20 should beremoved or not. That's determined ultimately
21 THE WITNESS: | don't understand your question. | 21 by the State Board.
22 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Soyouanswered my question | 22 Q.  Andthen the statement would be true with
23 about incentives with an explanation from your personal 23 respect to assessment, universal access, or
24 gtandpoint why it is desirable from the publisher's 24 ingtructiona strategies and support for teachers?
25 standpoint, as you understand it, for them to submit 25 A. Yes.
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1 Q. Soiflunderstand, then, the way thisworks, 1 worksfor them, or it might be acombination.
2 thereisno criterion that is focused on, directed to 2 And in many submissions they will submit using
3 thepossibility that a publisher might submit for 3 different formats, and so long as the content is there,
4  gpprova awiderange of materialsin order to have more 4 it meetsthe evaluation criteria, and they've listed the
5 of itsofferings available for purchase using 5 prices of the separate components and it doesn't contain
6 Schiff-Bustamante funding where an educational expert, 6 extraneousinformation, it can be approved, and then it
7 say an advisor that you've contracted with, looks at 7 will then be offered to districts to make a choice which
8 thisset of materials and says, they're trying to throw 8 format will work for them and which price will work for
9 intoo much, they'retrying to throw in more thanis 9 them.
10 necessary in order to support instruction in the 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sothe one piece of that that |
11 classroom? 11 want to tease out is you said so long as the com --
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 something along the line of so long as the components
13 to"morethan is necessary to support.” Alsoincomplete 13 haveindividualy listed prices.
14 hypothetical. 14 MR. VIRJEE: That misstates her testimony.
15 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. What did you say on that score?
16 THE WITNESS: I'm confused by your question 16 MR. VIRJEE: Why don't you have her testimony
17 because you're combining extraneous with format in my 17 read back if you want to know what she said.
18 view. So could you clarify if you're talking about 18 (Record read.)
19 extraneous or format? 19 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Sothepart of your answer that
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | wasn't using theword 20 | wanttofocusonis, solong asthey've listed the
21 extraneous because | didn't want to be limited to what | 21 prices of the components.
22 understand to be defined -- or aterm of art in your 22 Is that something that you are able to require
23 process, that is, whether it's extraneous or not. 23 them to do asyou understand your powersin this
24 | understand your testimony to be that 24 process?
25 essentialy whatever the publisher submitsis reviewed 25 A Yes
Page 87 Page 89
1 under thesefive criteria? 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
2 A, Generdly. 2 THEWITNESS: Yes.
3 Q. Andthat therefore, if apublisher wantsto 3 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andwhat'sthevehiclefor
4 have what might be thought of as an expensive set of 4  that, for requiring individual componentsto be
5 materias approved along with what might be thought of 5 individualy priced?
6 asthecoreingtructiona vehicle, in the traditional 6 A. Approximately two months before they submit for
7 case, thetextbook, that thereisn't acriteriathat 7 the state evauation, they have to submit the price
8 kind of cuts-- that cuts off that wide range of 8 quotesfor the components that they plan on sdllingin
9 materids smply because -- on the grounds that that is 9 Cdifornia
10 morethanis-- inthe judgment of an educationd expert 10 Q. And specificdly they have to quote aprice for
11 looking at that range of material, morethanis 11 components as opposed to a package price?
12 necessary for instruction in the classroom? 12 A.  Theydoboth.
13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 13 Q. Andyou havethe power to require them to price
14 to"expensive' and "necessary for ingtruction in the 14 on acomponent-by-component basis?
15 classroom.” 15 A.  Yes
16 MS. ALTAMIRANO: It'saso been asked and 16 Q. Anddo youunderstand that power to be derived
17 answered asto pricing. 17 from your statutory authority, your regulatory
18 THE WITNESS: | can respond to your question as 18 authority, or both?
19 itrelaestoformat, and | cantypicaly -- | could 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor alegd
20 tell you typically that submissions are multivaried to 20 conclusion.
21 dlow for choice at the local level, and becauseit'sa 21 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
22 market system, that allows districts to purchase what 22 THE WITNESS: It's contained in statutory and
23 might be aless expensive CD-ROM containing the full 23 regulatory components -- reguirements.

NN
(G2

year's course of study because that works for them, or
it might be a hardbound student edition because that

NN
(G2

Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. TheNationa Association of
State Textbook Administrators, have you gone to meetings
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1 of that organization? 1 MR. VIRJEE: Same objection.
2 A. No 2 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
3 Q Have you -- is that because you couldn't -- why 3 THEWITNESS: No. Yestono. Yestotheno.
4 not? Why haven't you gone to meetings of the NASTA? 4 Q. BY MR JACOBS. Onemoretime. | am correct
5 A. Becausethe State'sinvolved in compressed 5 that addressing theissuethat | just described is not
6 adoption cycles now, and every meeting has been during 6 part of the mission of the curriculum frameworks and
7 oneof our major primary adoptions of instructional 7 ingtructiona resources division?
8 materials, so I've been unable to attend. 8 MR. VIRJEE: Same objection. Vague and
9 Q. Haveyou sent adesignee? 9 ambiguous and overbroad.
10 A. No, because those who have to be there also 10 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
11 haveto be part of the adoption. My manager would be 11 THEWITNESS: As dated, no.
12 theone, but she also oversees the instructional 12 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: No, I'm not correct or, yes, |
13 materias process. 13 amcorrect? Do you want to give me an answer with an
14 Q. Andthat personiswho? 14 explanation so we understand?
15 A.  SusanRios. 15 A. Yes Yourquettionissovaguethat | can
16 Q. Andwhat isher title? 16 answer specificaly but | cannot answer broadly.
17 A.  She'sthe manager for theinstructional 17 Q.  Sogivemeaspecific that you havein mind
18 resources unit. 18 when you say you can answer specificaly.
19 Q. Haveyou received any materias from the 19 A.  Partof our missionisto advise districts,
20 National Association of State Textbook Administratorsin | 20 which we do, based on our own policy at the division
21 the nature of reading reports or a monthly bulletin, 21 level and department leve four times a year that they
22 something like that? 22 arerequired to adhere to Education Code 60119, which
23 A. I'vereceived e-mails. 23 s, asl've gtated before, ensuring sufficiency of
24 Q. Isthatit? 24 materids based on the cycles of the frameworks. So,
25 A. That'sall | canrecdl. 25 yes, our missionisto hep inform digtricts of their
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1 Q. Haveyou--areyouaware of any discussion at 1 obligations.
2 theNational Association of State Textbook 2 Q. Whendidthis become part -- let me back up.
3 Administrators on the issue of textbook shortages? 3 This four times a year notice requirement, is
4 A. No, | haven't attended. 4 thatinregulation?
5 Q. Andnothingin the communications you've 5 A. No, that's department palicy, division policy.
6 received from them have been directed to that issue? 6 Q. Do youknow when that policy was adopted?
7 A. No. 7 A. No, | don't have the exact date.
8 Q. Doyou understand the mission of the curriculum 8 Q. Itpredaed your -- did it predate your
9 frameworksand instructional resources division to 9 employment by the division?
10 include addressing issues related to whether districts 10 A,  Yes
11 have made available to their students sufficient 11 Q. Sotoputitconversdy, it wasapolicy that
12 textbooks or ingtructional materialsin terms of 12 wasin place when you began working in thet division?
13 numerousity? 13 A, Yes
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 14 Q. Andthat waswhen?
15 to"mission." 15 MR. VIRJEE: When did she begin working in the
16 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin. 16 division?
17 THE WITNESS: Do you want to restate that? 17 MR. JACOBS:. Yes.
18 MR. JACOBS: Can you read it back, please? 18 THE WITNESS: In 1999.
19 (Record read.) 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | takeit that you send out
20 MR. VIRJEE: Also going to object aswith 20 some sort of amemo to the school districts four timesa
21 respect to the terms avail ability and "numerousity.” 21 year that advisesthem of this?
22 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin. 22 A. Yes.
23 THEWITNESS: No. 23 Q.  Andthe memo setsforth the noticed -- the
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: No,itis-- no, addressing 24  requirementsin terms of notice, correct?
25 that issueisnot part of your mission? 25 A. Thencticethat's required in the statute?
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1 Q Yes 1 Q. Arethereany other specificsthat you had in
2 A Yes 2 mind when you said you could answer my question about
3 Q. Anditsetsforth the findings that the 3 numerousity specifically but not generally?
4 districts are required to make as part of the hearing 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
5 process? 5 THE WITNESS: That's my response.
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let'stak about 60119 for a
7 Assumes those things are mutually exclusive. 7 few minutes.
8 THE WITNESS: The communication identifies the 8 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Arewe going to break for
9 requirements of the statute. 9 lunch a acertain time?
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doesit go beyond stating the 10 MR. JACOBS:. How about 12:30?
11 requirements of the statute? 11 MS. ALTAMIRANO: What timeisit now?
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 12 MR. JACOBS: 12:20.
13 THE WITNESS: No. There are four 13 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Thank you.
14 communications, and I'll need to clarify. Two arejust 14 (Discussion held off the record.)
15 about the statute, agenerd reminder that'sincluded 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Areyou aware of any evaluation
16 when we send out the assurance certification memos 16 that has been done by the Department of Education about
17 incorporated into that for the use of Schiff-Bustamante. 17 the effectiveness of 60119 in achieving the objectives
18 Soweremind districts that prior to the end of the 18 that are stated for it in the statute?
19 fiscal year, they need to hold their hearings, and at 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
20 the sametime they're asked for that prior fiscal year 20 tothe "effectiveness' and study -- or "evaluation.”
21 to assurethe use of Schiff-Bustamante. 21 THEWITNESS: No.
22 The other two communications are general 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Areyou -- haveyou personally
23 information memos that our office sends out on a 23 received any anecdota information that relatesto
24 biannua basis, which includes alot of information 24 whether 60119 is effective?
25 about recent board policies and new purchase lists. 25 And let me make that alittle more focused.
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1 It'salarge document of information, and it's dways 1 Haveyou received any anecdotal information about the
2 included and highlighted in the packet. 2 actua content of the public hearings or any particular
3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isthereanamefor that 3 public hearing that has been held pursuant to 60119?
4 packet? 4 MR. VIRJEE: Which question do you want her to
5 A. Information memo. Information update. 5 answer? It's compound.
6 Q. Doyouknow whether that information update is 6 MR. JACOBS: lItis. Let'sstart over again.
7 routinely made available on the Department of 7 Q. 60119 hasapublic hearing requirement,
8 Education's website? 8 correct?
9 MR. VIRJEE: The entire document? 9 A Yes
10 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 10 Q. Haveyou received any information about the
11 THE WITNESS: No, because some components of it 11 content of any particular public hearing that has been
12 arenct transferable to the web. It contains different 12 held pursuant to 60119?
13 materias each time, so some are in hardbound copy that 13 A.  What do you mean by "content"?
14 weinclude. For example, arecent adoption report. The 14 Q. | meanwhat the nature of the discussion has
15 Board completes an adoption report describing the 15 been beyond the simple findings that are required to be
16 programsthey approved or rejected. That's hardbound, 16 made pursuant to the statute.
17 sothat would be included in that particular information 17 A. Inwhat instance, from adistrict employee?
18 memo, soit'snot al on the web. 18 I'mnot clear.
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sosomedfitisroutingly -- 19 Q. Inanyinstance have you received any anecdotal
20 A. Itmaybe 20 information from any source about what actually happened
21 Q. Youdon'tknow oneway or the other what the 21 at a60119 hearing other than the findings themselves
22 routineiswith respect to it, is that what you mean by 22 being made?
23 "maybe'? 23 A. Yes
24 A. It'sonacase-by-case basis depending on the 24 Q.  What kind of anecdota information have you
25 packagethat's sent out. 25 received?
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1 A. [I'vehaddigtrict representatives call and talk 1 didyou mean?
2 about how they had a very spirited discussion about the 2 A. | wasntreferencing sufficient materias as
3 programsto approve for the district, that the public 3 part of the resolution as the discussion piecethat I've
4 testimony was dynamic and intense. 4 participated in, | was discussing with you anecdotally
5 Q. Yousad about programsto approve. Did you by 5 what I've been told about program discussions, which
6 that mean -- how did that relate to 60119 in terms of 6 fold into sufficiency as one component.
7 programsto approve? 7 But the anecdota information relatesto
8 A.  Wadl, for many districts, not al by any means, 8 district personnd who want to talk about those programs
9 theway that they will conduct their hearing or hearings 9 andthe discussion they're having at the locdl level and
10 istoinclude a discussion about which programs they 10 seek any additiona information from our office about
11 want to purchase for particular content areas, and so 11 theprograms. So, again, they'reinterrelated, but the
12 therewill beindividuals who will testify for and 12 anecdota that relates to me and my office is about the
13 against the programs they're considering at that time. 13 programsthey're considering.
14 Because part of the certification isto ensure 14 Q. Andyoumeantto-- and it did not include
15 sufficient materias within the cycles of the framework, 15 discussion about whether -- the anecdotal information
16 sothey are continually evaluating materials purchased 16 you'vereceived did not reate to the sufficient
17 for their schools within the district. So many times 17 materials component of that public hearing?
18 either one hearing or anumber of hearings will include 18 A. That'scorrect. I'mreferencing the fact
19 that discussion before they certify. 19 that'sthe obligation of the district while they're
20 Q. Withrespect tothetopic of sufficiency, asin 20 conducting the hearing. And in some casesthe ditricts
21 sufficient materials, in your last answer, have you 21 areaso holding the hearing as to what materialsto
22 received any information about the actual content of any 22 purchese.
23 public hearings pursuant to 601197 23 Q. | wanttomake sure we have acommon
24 A. No. 24  understanding about what information you haven't
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 25 received when you refer to sufficient materias.
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1 to"sufficiency.” 1 What did you mean when you said sufficient
2 THE WITNESS: No. 2 materias?
3 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Haveyou ever had any 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous,
4 discussions with your colleagues in the Department of 4 and aso calsfor alega conclusion to the extent
5 Education about the effectiveness of 60119 with respect 5 you're asking her to tell you what sufficient meansin
6 totheissue of sufficiency? 6 60119, whichis, I think, what she was referring to.
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 7 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
8 to"sufficiency.” 8 THE WITNESS: | haven't had discussions with
9 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jain. 9 anyone about sufficient materials anecdotally.
10 THE WITNESS: No. 10 Q. BY MR. JACOBS:. And by "sufficient materias,”
1 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: What did youmeanwhenyousaid | 11 what do you mean?
12 "aufficient"? | want to make sure there's no ambiguity 12 MR. VIRJEE: Same objection.
13  about sufficient. When | say the word sufficiency, I'm 13 THE WITNESS: | haven't had any discussion, so
14 referring back to your use of the word sufficient. In 14 | don't have any definition for you.
15 your answer acouple of questions and answers ago, what 15 MR. JACOBS: Wedl --
16 did you mean by sufficient? 16 THE WITNESS: | just don't have any.
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 17 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: | think thisisal very clear,
18 Depending in what context. 18 but we get alot of objections.
19 THE WITNESS: | can't respond. I'm not sure 19 If by sufficient you meant materials, do you
20 what you're asking meto do. 20 mean whether there are -- in akind of alay sense, you
21 MR. JACOBS: Can you read back her answer about 21 mean whether there are shortages of textbooks or
22 three or four questions ago in which the word 22 instructional materials with respect to -- shortages of
23 "sufficient” was used? 23 textbooks or instructional materials in any particular
24 (Record read.) 24 district?
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: By sufficient materials what 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
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now as to where you are talking about the word
sufficient. Assheuseditin her last answer, she was
talking about 60119. Are you now asking her -- and she
said that she's never had conversations with anybody
using the word sufficient or about sufficiency of
materials, so she has no context to put it in.

So what are you asking her, Michagl? | don't
understand.

MR. JACOBS: | think I'm asking not for the
statutory definition, I'm just asking what in her answer
she meant when she said, | haven't had conversations
about this topic, and the topic -- the words that you
used to describe the topic are sufficient materials.

MR. VIRJEE: | think she's answered that by
saying she can't say because she hasn't used the word
sufficient or the concept of sufficiency with anyonein
this area, so she can't say what she would mean by it if
sheused it.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Haveyou ever had adiscussion
with anybody about sufficiency of textbook?
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the meaning of sufficient materids asit relatesto
textbooks and instructional materials?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to the context in which you're using it.

THE WITNESS: Do | have an understanding asiit
relates to statute?

MR. JACOBS: No.

THE WITNESS: Asit relatesto my own persond
view?

MR. JACOBS: Personal view.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Overbroad. Vagueand
ambiguous.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: And objection. Inwhat
context aswell?

MR. JACOBS: Any context. Thisisnot that
hard.

THE WITNESS: | think it'sadifficult question
to answer, and I'm not comfortable answering aquestion
that'sin any context.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Why isit difficult? There's

21 MR. VIRJEE: Now we'retaking about a 21 anaspect of it that makesit difficult?
22 different question than 60119 or people at the schoal 22 A. It'sjusttoobroad. Thereisnothing! can
23 digtricts. 23 tell you. There'snothing | can respond with.
24 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 24 MR. VIRJEE: She said she doesn't understand
25 MR. VIRJEE: Now I'll object to the word 25 your question.
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1 "sufficient” as vague and ambiguous and overbroad. 1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Haveyou discussed -- hasthe
2 THE WITNESS: Have | had adiscussion with 2 Williams lawsuit been discussed at any meetings of the
3 anyone about sufficient materials? Could you clarify in 3 curriculum commission a which you've been present?
4 what context? 4 MR. VIRJEE: And | would object to the extent
5 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Andthetime, please. 5 thatit callsfor any attorney/client privilege
6 THE WITNESS: For the classroom, for the 6 information only.
7 digtrict? 7 THE WITNESS: Do you mean beyond the name of
8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: All I'mtryingtodo now isget 8 thecase?
9 avocabulary down. When | ask you have you ever had a 9 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
10 conversation with anyone about sufficient materials, 10 THE WITNESS: No.
11 what do you mean by sufficient materidsina 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wasthe name of the case
12 non-statutory sense? 12 brought up in curriculum commission meetings?
13 A.  Yes I'vehad conversations -- 13 A. It'sbeen brought up in the paper, and everyone
14 MR. VIRJEE: Hold on, because now he's asking 14 isaware of the case.
15 youaquestion about sufficient materials and he's using 15 Q. Doyou understand that one of the alegations
16 theterm, not you. So you asked the question, have you 16 of the caseisthat thereis-- that there are shortages
17 ever had adiscussion with someone, anyonein any 17 of textbooks and instructional materialsin classrooms
18 context about sufficient instructional materials? 18 inthe state of Cdifornia?
19 MR. JACOBS: | think you're making this more 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
20 difficult. 20 to "shortages."
21 MR. VIRJEE: I'm not intending to. I'm 21 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
22 intending to keep aclear record. I'll object to your 22 THE WITNESS: I'm aware of language in the case
23 useof theterm "sufficient materias' as vague and 23 that relatesto that issue.
24  ambiguous. 24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyour understanding aswe
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doyou haveanunderstandingof | 25 sit heretoday in this deposition of that dlegationis

27 (Pages 102 to 105)



Page 106

Page 108

1 what? 1 Q BY MR. JACOBS: Have you had any discussions

2 MR. VIRJEE: Object to the extent it would call 2 about that?

3 for any attorney/client information. To the extent 3 MR. VIRJEE: Same objection. Outside of the

4 youve had any conversations with counsel what may be 4 atorney/client relationship?

5 meant or not meant, of course you shouldn't provide 5 THE WITNESS: With who?

6 that. To the extent you have some knowledge otherwise, 6 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Asyou understand his

7 the paper or with colleagues, otherwise, | would be free 7 instruction, in which counsel for the agency,

8 toadlow her totalk about that. 8 defendants, | understand to be joining --

9 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 9 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Thank you.

10 THEWITNESS: Asit relatesto theway it's 10 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: -- who do you understand --

11 presented in the newspaper? 11 with whom do you understand discussions to be excluded

12 MR. JACOBS:. Sure. 12 by that instruction? I'm sorry, that's hopeless.

13 THE WITNESS: What defines shortage? 13 Y ou understand that you're receiving an

14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What's your understanding of 14 instruction not to reveal the contents of communications

15 theclam? 15 with certain lawyers, correct?

16 A. Oftheclam? 16 A. Thecasegenerdly, the details of the case,

17 Q. Uh-huh 17 vyes.

18 A. Thatindividual studentshave not had accessto 18 Q.  Wadl, you understand -- do you understand the

19 aparticular textbook, or they've been unable to use the 19 instruction to relate to discussions you have with your

20 textbook out of the classroom. 20 colleagues at which lawyers are not present?

21 Q. Haveyou had any discussions, other than with 21 A. Y ou're going to have to go back on that one.

22 your lawyer, as you understood who your lawyer was, have 22 Q. I'm asking you questions and you're getting an

23 you had any discussions about that claim with anyone? 23 instruction not to answer, and I'm trying to understand

24 MR. VIRJEE: Object to the extent that it would 24 what you are not answering because of the instruction.

25 cdl for attorney/client privileged communications. 25 MR. VIRJEE: The aobjection can be made clearer.
Page 107 Page 109

1 Y ou don't have to take his definition of your 1 My objectionisthat she should not disclose the content

2 lawyer, but can you answer otherwise. 2 of any communications that she had with any lawyers

3 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 3 regarding this case.

4 THE WITNESS: Asit relatesto the Williams 4 And to the extent that those communications

5 caseor shortage or sufficient? 5 werewithindividuals other than counsd, | have no

6 MR. JACOBS: | wastrying to work my way to the 6 problem with her answering those questions, except to

7 former by starting with the | atter. 7 the extent that they involve ingtructions or directions

8 Asit relates to the Williams case. 8 from counsd.

9 THE WITNESS: The Williams case, | have generd 9 MR. JACOBS: You sad any lawyer, but | don't
10 conversations about the main intent of the lawsuit, the 10 think you literally meant any lawyer, because if you and
11 three mainissuesthat are embedded in it, but no detail 11 | had had a discussion about this, that would not be
12 ofitor definitions of it or allegations specifically 12 privileged.

13 because I'm advised that the case information is 13 MR. VIRJEE: Any counsd representing any state
14 confidential, so | would not discussit. 14 entityinthiscase. Well do it that way.

15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Haveyou had any discussions 15 MR. JACOBS:. So you are including yoursdlf, for

16 about the dlegation in the complaint that the State 16 example?

17 does not have aproper system of oversight and 17 MR. VIRJEE: You bet.

18 management to ensure that students have access to 18 MR. JACOBS: We have anissue there.

19 textbooks or instructional materials? 19 Q. Yourebenginstructed now with respect to

20 A. | understand that's acomplaint. 20 conversations you've had with lawyers for state agencies
21 MR. VIRJEE: I'll object to the extent that 21 about this case, do you understand that?

22 would call for atorney/client privileged information, 22 A. Uhhuh

23 but only to that extent. 23 MR. VIRJEE: That would include in-house

24 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin. 24 counsd for the State Department of Ed, it would

25 THE WITNESS: I'm aware of that complaint. 25 include the Attorney Generd's office, would include my
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1 office or any other lawyers who represent any agencies 1 thelawsuit itself was brought up, have you had any
2 ordivisionsor branches or anything else of the sate. 2 conversationsin the last 14 months, which is when the
3 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Of coursewejoinin that. 3 lawsuit wasfirst filed, about whether procedures at the
4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Sonow I'mgoing to ask you, 4 Department of Education could be modified to strengthen
5 leaving that set of people and conversations aside, have 5 the mechanisms by which the state controls whether
6 you had any conversations about the allegation with 6 students actually receive access to textbooks and
7 respect to textbooks in the Williams lawsuit? 7 instructional materials?
8 A. Veylittle 8 MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'm going to object on
9 Q. Andtheverylittleincludes what? 9 official information privilegeto this. If any of these
10 A.  That there are three main topics of the suit. 10 discussions have been regarding confidential issues and
11 Q. Facilities, textbooks and teachers? 11 with the intent of generating information that's
12 A. Right. | think I've had oneto two 12 confidential within the Department among higher-ups
13 conversations about concerns about the state process 13 discussing poalicy, that remains confidential.
14 just generally, but no detailed conversations 14 MR. JACOBS: Do you want to give me some
15 whatsoever. 15 authority for that instruction?
16 Q.  Andthe concerns about the state process were 16 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Yes, Evidence Code Section
17 a&bout what aspect of the state process? 17 1040.
18 A.  Judthereference to the compliance process, 18 MR. VIRJEE: I'll also object to the question
19 that there was a process that was inadequate in the view 19 asvague and ambiguous.
20 of theplaintiffs. 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Areyouwithholding
21 MR. VIRJEE: Canwe-- before shesaysanything | 21  information?
22 more about what these conversations are, can we 22 First of all, answer the question.
23  establish who they were with so we make sure we're not 23 A. Let'sgoback. Could you restate the question?
24 invading any privileges? 24 MR. JACOBS: Pleaseread it back.
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Who werethey with? 25 (Record read.)
Page 111 Page 113
1 A, Mymanager of theinstructional resources unit. 1 MR. VIRJEE: I'm going to object as vague and
2 | believe I've had one conversation with the deputies of 2 ambiguous asto "access," and assumes facts not in
3 our department about the concerns. 3 evidence, that they need modification or strengthening.
4 Q. Andwhat wasthe substance of thefirst 4 Also vague and ambiguous as to "strengthening.”
5 conversation or the conversation with thefirst 5 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Joining. Plus officid
6 individud? 6 information.
7 A.  Geneadlyinforming my manager that therewasa 7 THE WITNESS: I've had conversations about our
8 suit that involved some of the proceduresin the sense 8 process because | do that continuoudly. That's my job.
9 of thework that's done by our department in that 9 Asitrdatesto thislawsuit, no.
10 particular division, but in the same board terms that 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wdll, what | asked you was
11 youwould read in the paper. She actualy doesn't have 11 apart from the lawsuit, and | asked you about the issue
12 alot of detail about the case. 12 that | understand you to have testified you have --
13 Q. Okay. And soyourerepresenting to me-- 13 let's create acategory called sufficient materials,
14 you'retedtifying that your conversation with your 14 which isthe category that you said you have not had
15 manager about this lawsuit was in general terms about 15 discussions about with digtrict officials or othersin
16 theallegations? 16 termsof 60119. Okay? With mesofar?
17 A.  Uh-huh 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
18 Q. Andthat you've had no conversation with your 18 to"sufficient materias."
19 manager about, for example, how proceduresin state 19 THEWITNESS: Yes.
20 government might be changed to address the concerns that 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And now I'm asking you whether
21 areraised in the lawsuit? 21 you have -- separate from the lawsuit, whether you had
22 A. No, I've had no conversations abouit that. 22 discussions with anyone at the Department of Education
23 Q. Andlet mejust follow that trail one more 23 about whether the Department's palicies or procedures
24 sep, whichis, separate and apart from the specifics of 24  might be adjusted to enhance the probability that
25 thelawsuit -- separate from the conversation in which 25 didtricts make available to their students sufficient
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materials?

MR. VIRJEE: Same objection. Vague and
ambiguous as to "sufficient."

MS. ALTAMIRANO: And objecting on officia
information privilege regarding any policy discussion
with higher-ups in the Department regarding possible
procedures to modify mechanisms in regards to school
digtricts.

THE WITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Areyou withholding any
information pursuant to the instruction from

Ms. Altamirano?

A. | don't understand your question. Withholding
information about what?

Q. Areyou-- by following her ingtruction, are
you not answering the question?

A.  You'reasking me aquestion that's not related
to the lawsuit, soit's not related to that. It's

related to general procedurd instructionsin our
department. That's how | answered that.

Q. So, in other words, her ingtruction did not
lead you to say no, where but for her instruction your
answer might have been different?

Her ingtruction did not cause you to answer my
guestion any differently than you would have answered it
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A.  Second paragraph?
Q. Ithinkit'sthe-- yeah, second paragraph.
Well, first full paragraph.

MR. VIRJEE: On page -- thefirst paragraph
starting under performing -- I'm sorry, that's not a
full paragraph. Thank you.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'll dso ask you about the
following two paragraphs.
A.  Okay.
Q.  Sotheparagraphs I'm asking you about start
with Ms. Griffith then invited Mr. Scott Hill. Do you
seethat?
A.  Yes
Q.  Andthenthe next paragraph is Chair Astore
noted? Do you see that?
A.  Yes
Q.  Andthenthe next paragraphis, Mr. Hill
encouraged the commissioners to continue. Do you see
that?
A.  Yes
Q. Doyourecal Mr. Hill's presentation, the
presentation that is -- that was made that is reflected
in these minutes?
A.  Generdly. Heprovidesaregular update to the
commission.
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had she not --

THE WITNESS: Do | haveto answer this?

MR.JACOBS: Yes.

THE WITNESS: Wedl, | think that you're asking
me to answer the question now again in relation to
something else.

MR. JACOBS: | think you're misunderstanding
what she thinks she's instructing you not to answer.

THE WITNESS: Privileged information is my
understanding.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And| get to ask you in this
privilege exercise that lawyers do whether the
instruction is changing your answer in any way from what
it might have been absent the instruction.
A. No.

MR. JACOBS: WEélI break for lunch.

(Lunch recesstaken.)
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let meshow you some minutes of
the meeting of the curriculum development and
supplemental commission dated May 18th-19th, 2000.
(Exhibit SAD-54 was marked.)

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Fed freetotake alook at the
overall context of the discussion, but I'm going to ask
you about a paragraph reporting on what Scott Hill had

to say on page 4.
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Q. Doestheregular update include periodic
reports on the topic of whether thereis -- as reflected
initem 4, whether there is adequate funding for
standards digned ingtructional materialsin the core
areas?

A. Rardy. I'd say thiswas one of the few times,
if ever dse.

Q.  Maeaning this may have been an exceptiona case
that he actudly brought these issuesto this particular
commission?

A.  Thisistheonlyincident | remember the
discussion occurring.

Q. Andleaving Mr. Hill out of it for aminute, is
that the only instance you can recall in the commission
of the topic of adequate funding for standards aligned
instructional materialsin the core areas being
discussed?

A.  Theyvebeen discussed in certain
circumstances, not exactly in this format.

Q.  Maeaning areport from Mr. Hill and thena
follow-up discussion?

A. No, not from Mr. Hill.

Q.  Maeaning correct in -- I'm sorry, we're losing
each other on yes and no again.

A.  Theway that it's been brought up in another
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1 contextisl provide the commission with alegidative 1 Callsfor speculation.
2 update and keep them informed of additional resources 2 THE WITNESS: That wasn't discussed --
3 that might become available for instructional materials, 3 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
4 and soit's come up in that context. And most recently 4 THEWITNESS: -- in definition. I'm not sure
5 inthelegidation, that would reauthorize the 5 what your definition is of sufficient.
6 Schiff-Bustamante funds to be continuously appropriated. | 6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Wadll, I'm asking you whether
7 Q.  What'sthe opposite of "continuously 7 that would in and of itsdlf address the gap in funding,
8 appropriated"? 8 whether that was the assumption, the assumption of the
9 A.  Wael, this conversation and these minutes by 9 discussion or whether in addition the amount
10 Mr. Hill relate to a discussion associated with the 10 appropriated on ayear-by-year basis for
11 sunset clause in the Shiff-Bustamante fund program in 11 Schiff-Bustamante needed to be increased?
12 particular, and that the discussion, in my view, my 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Vagueand
13 recollection, related to the perception that those funds 13 ambiguous.
14 were, in that four-year period, enough to provide 14 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
15 districts support in that one four-year period. 15 THEWITNESS: | don't recall adetailed
16 And the discussion partially centered on the 16 discussion about the level of Schiff-Bustamante being
17 issue of ongoing needs for districts and the importance 17 raised. | dorecal adiscussion by Chair Astore about
18 of the commission and the Department supporting the 18 her concernsthat reading language arts may co<t, in her
19 ongoing appropriations for funding. That's the context 19 view, $100 per student, and then her reference to at
20 of the discussion. 20 least four subject aress.
21 Q. Isityour testimony that the underlying 21 However, there's a generd understanding by dl
22 assumption in the discussion that's reported in these 22 commissioners, because they're involved in these cycles,
23 minutes was that if the issue of ongoingness, the 23 that digtricts aren't purchasing for every subject every
24 ongoing appropriation was addressed, that is, the 24 year. She'sbringing up the point that this cost is
25 appropriations was made ongoing, that there would be 25 associated with reading language arts, and so the
Page 119 Page 121
1 adequate funding for standards digned instructiona 1 bare-- kind of the focus on the funding is a perception
2 materidsinthe core areas, the topic referred toin 2 that she wanted to make clear for this particular
3 item4inthat paragraph? 3 subject, that in her view, $100 isthe cost. But no
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation 4 price has been set in that adoption at this point.
5 andlacksfoundation. Also vague and ambiguous asto 5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have any information on
6 "adequatefunding." 6 whether any analysis has been done to determine whether
7 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 7 the-- to guide the State in the appropriation of
8 THE WITNESS: | can't speak to the perspective 8 amounts under Schiff-Bustamante in terms of how much it
9 of thesetwo individuals that are commenting onit. 9 would cost per student to get any kind of qudity
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: It saysMr. Hill andthe 10 standards aligned materidsin place, quoting from the
11 commissioners discussed the following. 11 minutes of the discussion and with reference to Chair
12 A. Right. | can't speak to their perception. 12 Astore'scomments?
13 Q. You can speak to what was said though, right? 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
14 A. Ingenerd terms. 14 and cdlsfor speculation.
15 Q. Didwhat was said reflect aview that if the 15 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jain.
16 Shiff-Bustamante was made an ongoing appropriation, that 16 MR. VIRJEE: I'm not sure | understand your
17 that would address the issue of adequate funding for 17 question.
18 dandards aligned instructional materiasin the core 18 MR. JACOBS: | think the witness does.
19 aress? 19 MR. VIRJEE: You cantell him, if you
20 A. | think that the commission and Mr. Hill felt 20 understand his question.
21 it was absolutely essential that those funds continue. 21 THE WITNESS: Wéll, it'sthe legidature that
22 Q. Sothat wasanecessary step, correct? 22 determines the appropriations, not the curriculum
23 A. Yes 23 commission.
24 Q. Wasit sufficient? 24 MR. JACOBS: Could you read back my question.
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 25 (Record read.)
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1 THE WITNESS: My confusion isthat you're 1 A. | haveacopy of that report.
2 askingif an andysis has been done, which I'm not sure 2 Q. Doyouknow thetitle?
3 if you mean astate analysis or an analysis by the 3 A. Notoffhand. | don't recal the exact title.
4 commission, and then you're referring to Chair Astore's 4 Q. Didyoucirculateit to the commisson?
5 comments, so which part of that should | respond to? 5 A. No. The American Association of Publishers
6 MR. VIRJEE: I'll also object asvague and 6 did.
7 ambiguous asto an analysis done. 7 Q. Didyou provide any written analysis of the --
8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thefird part of your answer 8 drikethat.
9 wasthelegidature makesthis appropriation. And my 9 Have you seen any Department of Education
10 question iswhether there's been any analysis of the 10 analysisof that report?
11 issuethat Chair Astore was raising there, which is that 11 A. No.
12 in-- she'smaking a specific reference to reading and 12 Q. Didyou provideit to anyone under a cover
13 language arts, correct, that's your understanding of 13 memo?
14 what she was taking about? 14 A. Not that | recall.
15 A, Yes 15 Q. Andyouve seen no cover memo associated with
16 Q. Butthegenera issueishow much has been 16 thereport, acover memo internd to the Department?
17 appropriated for instructional materials purchases 17 A. No.
18 versushow much it actually coststo, in her words, 18 Q. Areyouaware of any consideration of that
19 quote, get any kind of quality standards aligned 19 report by the Department?
20 materiasinplace. 20 MR. VIRJEE: By the Department of Ed?
21 And my question is, are you aware of any 21 MR. JACOBS: Uh-huh.
22 analysisof that issue? 22 THE WITNESS: No.
23 A. Bywhom? 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Areyou aware of any
24 Q. Byanyone. 24 consideration of that report by any other state agency?
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 25 A. | beieveassociated with testimony at
Page 123 Page 125
1 to"analysis"" Written report, or just considering how 1 legidative hearingsin regards to the reauthorization
2 muchit cogts? It's vague and ambiguous. 2 of Schiff-Bustamante.
3 MR. JACOBS: Let's gtart with written report. 3 Q. Areyouthinking of someonein particular who
4 THE WITNESS: Not by the Department of 4 tedtified?
5 Education. 5 A. Therepresentative of the American Association
6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How about by anybody that 6 of Publishers.
7 youve become aware of? 7 Q. Soitwasn't--tothe best of your knowledge,
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 8 it wasn't referred to in any testimony by any state
9 Also vague and ambiguous asto "analysis' and "written 9 officiad?
10 report.” 10 A. No.
11 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 11 Q. Areyouaware of any comment on the report to
12 THEWITNESS: Not by -- any report by thestate | 12  the effect of whether it is accurate or inaccurate by
13 orthelegidature? 13 anyone?
14 MR. JACOBS: | literdly mean by anyone. 14 A.  Not by any department officia. | recall one
15 THE WITNESS: From which period? 15 comment.
16 MR. JACOBS:. That'sfar. Inthe years 2000 16 Q. Whichwas?
17 and 2001. 17 A.  When thetestimony was provided, one of the
18 THEWITNESS: | know of an industry analysis. 18 members of the Senate said, of course you think it costs
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. What isthat analysis? 19 that much.
20 A. It'sasurvey tha the American Association of 20 Q. Areyouawareof -- doyou have aview asto
21 Publishers conducted of its membersto get a generd 21 whether thereport is accurate or inaccurate, or both?
22 senseor estimate of costs, and as an industry 22 A. My pesond view?
23 organization they provide that information to those that 23 Q. Uh-huh
24 areinterested. 24 A. lthinkit'sinflated.
25 Q. Youreceved acopy of that report? 25 Q. Andisthat persona view -- what is that based
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1 on? 1 Q. Doyourecal what thetestimony wasin terms
2 A. History of price quotes that are submitted and 2 of price ranges?
3 arecent history on the price quotes that are submitted 3 A. Uhhuh Yes
4 for standards aligned adoptions, so both before 4 Q. Couldyoutdl us.
5 standards and after standards were adopted. 5 A. |gaveagenerd summary of the costs -- the
6 Q. Andcanyou describe what the conclusion of the 6 current genera approximate costs for K-8 instructional
7 reportis? ‘ 7 materidsinthe core content areas. | tarted with
8 A. No, I couldn't describe the details of the 8 history socia science with an approximate cost for the
9 conclusion. 9 student edition of between 35 and $40 per student. That
10 Q. Butyouhaveinmindthat it had akind of a 10 would include the teacher's edition, that's not extra
11 net dollar amount per student that was too high? 11 | testified that for science the cost was
12 A. It'smore complicated than that. The way they 12 approximately 40 to 45 per student, and then | testified
13 presented it, they broke it down into many different 13 that the price quotes for the recent math adoption,
14 charts and factors, so they were looking at scenarios 14 2001, were between 60 and 65 per pupil, and then |
15 based on information volunteered by their industry 15 tedtified that our estimate for reading language arts
16 membersfor certain content areas, certain grade-level 16 would be between 60 and $100 per pupil.
17 spans, what would happen if you tried to purchase 17 And | prefaced it with the fact that that was a
18 everything in one year, what would happen if you did it 18 broad range and we had not seen the price quote
19 overtime. Soitwaskind of broken down into different 19 submitted for this upcoming adoption.
20 scenarios, so | couldn't summarize that for you. 20 Q. Sothiswas sort of aforecast of what you were
21 Q. Butyouhavein mind that the amounts that they 21 anticipating?
22 had inserted for particular instructional materials 22 A. Yes
23 seemed high compared to what they were actually quoting 23 Q. Didyou testify about 9 through 12 pricing?
24 youin the adoption process for the corresponding 24 MR. VIRJEE: I'm going to object to thiswhole
25 materia? 25 line of testimony to the extent you're asking her to
Page 127 Page 129
1 A.  Mypersond opinionwasthey were dightly 1 recal what shesaid. Her testimony will speak for
2 higher than history has shown. But | haveto clarify 2 itsdf.
3 that they are adlso in the position of trying to advocate 3 MR. JACOBS: If it had been produced to us.
4 for the reauthorization of funding, and so therefore 4 MR. VIRJEE: | don't know that it has been
5 they would want to show policymakers the maximum 5 produced to you.
6 possible extent of what it may take or what they assume 6 MR. JACOBS: It sure hasn't
7 itwill take over time. 7 MR. VIRJEE: | havenoidea. Whether it's been
8 Q. Andwiththat answer in mind, are you aware, 8 produced or nat, it speaks for itsdlf.
9 then, of any independent andlysis of the issue that the 9 MR. JACOBS: Fair enough. Y our objectionis
10 report addressed that has been made available to 10 noted.
11 policymakersin the State of Cdifornia? 11 Q. Didyou tedtify about 9 through 12?
12 A. No, therésbeenno officid analysis. There's 12 A. No, | didn't testify to price quotes for grades
13 been verbd testimony by myself during budget hearings 13 9through 12.
14 astotheactud prices of materials that have already 14 Q. Didyou say anything about -- did you give any
15 been approved. 15 ddllar figuresfor 9 through 127
16 Q. Didyou--isthat dl that you -- isthat the 16 A.  Jud the gpportionments for the categorical
17 extent of the dollar amount information you conveyed in 17 programs, Schiff-Bustamante and state IMF funds.
18 that testimony, that is, here are some quotes, or did 18 Q. Maeaning you did the division of the -- you did
19 you go on to come up with some guidance in terms of what 19 the mathinterms of taking the total for those
20 that meant for appropriations? 20 appropriations and dividing them by the number of
21 A. No, it wasmore descriptive and informative in 21 student recipients of funds?
22 nature, so the information was about what exactly were 22 A. ldidntdoitquitelikethat. It wasan
23 the price ranges for certain content aress. 23 informational hearing. It wasjust generd information.
24 Q. Doyourecal -- | didn't mean to cut you off. 24 Q.  I'mjust trying to understand what you
25 A. No. 25 tedtified to about dollar amounts.
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A.  Generd dlocations, rough per pupil
expenditures.

Q. Doyourecall what you said about rough per
pupil expenditures?

A.  What | sad earlier in the testimony today.

What | indicated was the state IMF funds allocations and
the Schiff-Bustamante fund allocations.

Q.  Inother words, the amounts that you had in

mind when you spoke with the reporter were corresponded
with the testimony you're describing?

A.  Yes theydid.

Q.  Whenwasthetestimony?

A. Itwasthisspring. | couldnt recall the

exact date.

Q. Anditwas before what body?

A.  Theassembly budget subcommittee No. 2 on
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Q. Didthey ask youto assess -- did they ask you
how you would go about estimating how much they should
gppropriate in view of the cost information you were
providing and the adoption cycles and what that meant
for when districts, in fact, would need to make
purchases?

A. No,itwasn't that specific. They were

gpproving the current appropriations and they were not
intending, because it was an informational hearing, to
take action, so it was generd in terms of the

discussion.

Q. Didyouform an understanding asto how the
current appropriations related to the cost information
you were providing in terms of whether it was sufficient
or not?

A.  Wasl trying to determine that?

17 education. 17 Q. Didyoudoit for yoursdf because you wanted
18 Q. Who helped prepare your testimony? 18 totestify about it, or just for your own information?
19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
20 evidence. Also vague and ambiguous asto "helped 20 to"current appropriations.”
21 prepared.” 21 MR. JACOBS: The one that you were referring
22 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin. 22 to.
23 THE WITNESS: | prepared my own testimony. 23 MR. VIRJEE: Areyou talking about the IMF and
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou didthe-- you didn't 24 the current Schiff-Bustamante appropriations or just one
25 goto anyone elseto get the -- to get datain which 25 or the entire appropriations?
Page 131 Page 133
1 to-- onwhichto base your dollar amount testimony? 1 Q. BY MR JACOBS: What appropriations were
2 A. lgotitfrommydivison. Therecordsarein 2 actudly under consideration at that point?
3 myoffice 3 MR. VIRJEE: By this committee?
4 Q. Sointermsof how you did this, you looked at 4 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
5 the underlying documentation yoursdlf rather than go to 5 THE WITNESS: By the committee, both the state
6 somebody else for assistance? 6 IMF and the Schiff-Bustamante funds.
7 A. Widl, | asked my analyst, who works on the 7 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Sotheywerelooking at the
8 purchaselig, to give me the approximations. 8 reauthorization of Schiff-Bustamante?
9 Q. Thisisananayst who does-- ordinarily does 9 A. Theappropriationsfor the next fiscal year.
10 what? 10 Q.  Andhow did the amounts -- hasthat, in fact,
11 A.  Hesresponsble for updating and tracking the 11 been appropriated now by the legislature?
12 submission quotes, the biannual updates of those quotes, | 12 MR. VIRJEE: For which fiscal year?
13 and ensuring that the purchase lists are up-to-date, and 13 MR. JACOBS: The one you werejust talking
14 dso that they're on the web and sent to dl didtricts. 14 about.
15 Q. Now, doyou know what the amount isfor reading | 15 THE WITNESS: As soon as the governor signsthe
16 and language arts? 16 budget.
17 A. No. 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Aretheamountsthat arein
18 Q.  Whendo you expect to know that figure? 18 that budget different on a per student basis from what
19 A.  Itwill bewithin about the next 60 days well 19 you discussed with the reporter?
20 be compiling that information. 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
21 Q. Doyou haveany information yet that tells you 21 Lacksfoundation.
22 whether it's more toward 60 or more toward 100? 22 THE WITNESS: What | discussed with the
23 A. No. 23 reporter wasfiscal year 2000/2001, so it would differ
24 Q. Inthehearing, did they ask you questions? 24 because we're talking about 2001/2002 fisca year. And
25 A Yes 25 intaking into account inflation and cost-of-living
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1 adjustments, | would have to assume it would be higher. 1 the Department of Ed?
2 It hasgrown over time, but at thistime | could not 2 MR. JACOBS: Correct.
3 tel you what that amount is until the budget is signed 3 THE WITNESS: What do you mean "advocacy''?
4 by the governor. 4 MR. JACOBS: Urgings.
5 Q. BY MR JACOBS. Soyouhaventrun--evenin 5 THE WITNESS: Urgingsto?
6 anticipation of the possibility that would be signed, 6 MR. JACOBS: To anyone. Weve had discussion
7 you haven't done your own mental caculation of whether 7 with other officias about what the process might look
8 per student amounts, given dso, | assume, the increase 8 like. | imagine that that advocacy could be directly
9 inthe student population, are, in fact, going up? 9 fromyou to the legidature if you were testifying, or
10 A. No, haven't seenthefind figures. 10 it could be you to other officias in the Department
11 Q. Eventhough it's been submitted to the 11 who, inturn, will make budget-related presentations or
12 governor? 12 submissions.
13 A.  Wemake no assumption until the budget is 13 MR. VIRJEE: And by increases you mean not
14 signed, so wewouldn't analyze it until the budget is 14 just -- just asking for clarification -- not just an
15 signed. 15 increase, but areauthorization of an amount as well?
16 Q. Do you happen to know how the gross amounts, 16 Are you including that or not?
17 the gppropriations under both state IMF and 17 MR. JACOBS: | would assume that
18 Schiff-Bustamante differ 2001 to 2000 over 2000/2001? | 18 reauthorization isincluded in an increase.
19 MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'm going to object. This 19 MR. VIRJEE: | just want to make sure,
20 calsfor speculation because the problem we're having 20 otherwiseit would be vague and ambiguous.
21 hereisthat the governor can pencil things out, so 21 THE WITNESS: For purposes of the fiscal budget
22 she'snot going to know even what the gross amounts 22 2001/2002, we provided information, | did, at the
23 would befinally. 23 request of our deputy for governmental affairs, and gave
24 MR. JACOBS: I'm not asking for that. | think 24 the members of that committee -- in particular they
25 it'sclear. 25 requested genera information about the apportionments
Page 135 Page 137
1 THE WITNESS: | am assuming you're asking that. 1 andthegenera price quotes for the content areas that
2 MR. JACOBS: I'm asking what's on his desk. 2 | mentioned.
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That speaks for 3 | dso provided them information on the
4 jtsalf. 4 curriculum frameworks, how the cycleswork, and then
5 THE WITNESS: | can't speak to what the 5 gave them information about how funding choices would
6 governor's action will be, so | can't spesk to an 6 include ditricts holding funds over so that they could
7 andysisbased on the apportionments that went to his 7 make the appropriate choices as they fdt they needed to
8 desk. 8 for particular subject areas. And that was the extent
9 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Isthat secret from you? 9 of thediscussion.
10 A. No. | cantdl youthey're not less than the 10 Asyou could tel from my testimony, the per
11 current apportionment, but at this point | haven't seen 11 pupil costs generdly were well within the
12 thefinal version of the budget as of today to be able 12 apportionment, so there wasn't any advocacy and there
13 totell you how much higher it is. 13  wasn't any request to testify in aparticular way, it
14 Q. How about yesterday? 14 wasto provide information.
15 A. No, I canttel youeither. | dont havethe 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Asyou digtinguish providing
16 information. 16 information from advocacy as you just distinguished in
17 Q. Notthatit'ssecret, you just literally 17 your last answer, | mean to adopt that in this question.
18 haven't received it? 18 Are you aware of any advocacy by anyonein
19 A. Right, | just don't have the information until 19 the-- let'stakeit from the administrative branch --
20 | get the budget. 20 the executive branch of state government to the
21 Q. Areyouaware of any advocacy by the Department 21 legidative branch, are you aware of any advocacy that
22 for increasesin the total amount of funding under both 22 those amounts should be increased?
23 Schiff-Bustamante and state IMF in the 2001/2002 budget 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Lacks foundation for
24 over 2000/2001? 24  whether sheld be aware of that.
25 MR. VIRJEE: For clarification, the department, 25 THEWITNESS: Intermsof legidation, a
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1 hearing? 1 informational hearing.
2 MR. JACOBS: Any context. 2 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: With, inyour view, no intended
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Overbroad. 3 policy impact?
4 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any advocacy to 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
5 increasethe per pupil apportionment. | am aware of 5 to"intended policy impact.”
6 advocacy officidly from the Department supporting the 6 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin.
7 reauthorization of the Schiff-Bustamante instructional 7 THE WITNESS: It was an opportunity. One
8 materidsfund. We haveletters onfileto that effect. 8 member requested additional information about the
9 And I'm aware of the support of education 9 process, 0 | provided information about the process.
10 organizations and the American Association of Publishers 10 The only discussion that | recall in detail was
11 to support reauthorization of Schiff-Bustamante, and 11 adiscussion about the amount of time publishers were
12 that bill currently is the same apportionment that 12 taking to produce their materials. And thentherewasa
13 existsannualy. 13 discussion about research and development time that
14 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Wecameacrossapressrelease 14 publishers needed. There was quite abit of discussion
15 from now Lieutenant Governor Bustamante advocatingwhat | 15 about that.
16 | understood to be from the press rel ease an actud 16 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do youhaveapersond view as
17 increasein afairly substantial way in the amounts 17 to how you would go about ng the sufficiency of
18 available under Schiff-Bustamante. 18 the state dlocations for textbooks; that is, do you
19 Areyou aware of that press release? 19 have amethodology in mind as to how you would run those
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Whatever 20 numbersin view of thefact that, as you testified,
21 Mr. Bustamante said will spesk for itself, and you don't 21 there'sthisadoption cycle and districts aren't
22 haveto assumethat the way he's characterizing it is 22 necessarily purchasing awhole new set of books each
23 correct. 23 year?
24 THE WITNESS: | haven't seeniit. 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Areyou aware of any 25 to"sufficiency.” Also callsfor speculation. Lacks
Page 139 Page 141
1 interaction with the lieutenant governor's office -- 1 foundation and callsfor an expert opinion beyond which
2 interaction between the Department of Education and the 2 thiswitnessis not competent to testify.
3 lieutenant governor's office on whether the amounts 3 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
4 gppropriated under Schiff-Bustamante needed to be 4 THEWITNESS: First of dl, were able to base
5 increased? 5 our understanding of prices on the most favored nations
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vagueastotime. 6 clause, and so the very lowest price nationaly that the
7 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any. 7 materias are offered is what Californiawill receive.
8 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Andl takeit fromwhat you 8 Andthere are other states that actually have caps on
9 waere saying then about the information you were 9 theprice of the materials to be sold, and when that
10 providing and the relationship between per pupil amounts 10 occurs, California bendfits from that cap aswell. So
11 onthecost side and per pupil amounts on the 11 that's one assurance that we know that publishers are
12 appropriations side, that you thought one could 12 not charging more in California for materias than they
13 reasonably -- that atake-away from your testimony, a 13 aeinother gates.
14 reasonable take-away from your testimony, was that the 14 Secondly, | would be looking at the history of
15 amountswere, infact, sufficient? 15 thequotes, which are usudly consistent and with a
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 16 smadl range. They're not wildly different. Y ou're not
17 to"amounts' and sufficiency, only because, again, that 17 goingto seeredly low prices and then redlly high
18 doesn't deal with theissue of the reauthorization of 18 prices, you're going to see arange.
19 the Schiff-Bustamante, which she's testified about. 19 And that assumption, on my part, persondly, is
20 MR. JACOBS: Assuming reauthorization. 20 that the publishers have two congtrictions that guide
21 THE WITNESS: There was no assumption made by 21 their submissions, oneisthe lowest price offered in
22 the members of the committee or myself that | was 22 other states, and two is the competitive market and the
23 dating anything in regardsto increasing or decreasing 23 fact that they must stay within arange in order to
24 theamount. | was providing information about the 24 remain competitive in California. And that has, in my
25 factual prices and the apportionments. It was an 25 view, guided them in maintaining prices for Cdlifornia.
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1 Q BY MR JACOBS: Sothat goestothe 1 therefore they will budget to determine their greatest
2 publishers -- that goes to the question of whether it's 2 needsover time.
3 reasonableto project going forward what the cost per 3 Q. Soasbeween -- so within the range of
4 student of instructional materials -- of approved 4 purchasing dl books each year and purchasing one-sixth
5 ingtructional materialswill be, correct, that's the 5 of the books over six years, do you have arule of thumb
6 component of the caculation? 6 astowhat districts should expect to be -- what kind of
7 A. Thatcouldbe. That could be part of the 7 purchasing cycle districts should expect to be on?
8 caculdtion. 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
9 Another factor to keep in mind, and it'san 9 to"purchasing cycle." Also assumesthat the range
10 important example for reading language arts, in the past 10 would be within one versus one-sixth. Also incomplete
11 we had two types of adoptions for reading language arts, 11 hypothetical, and also calls for expertise beyond which
12 we had basic reading language arts and then we had 12 thiswitnessis not qudlified to testify.
13 English as asecond language, separate list, separate 13 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin.
14 codts. This particular adoption requires the publishers 14 MS. KAATZ: Join asto the vagueness objection.
15 tofoldinthe materias for English as asecond 15 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Let mestart over because part
16 language, English language learners within the basic 16 of that was helpful. Do you have arule of thumb asto
17 program so there's even greater access for al students 17 what districts -- what kind of purchasing cycle
18 inthe classroom. 18 digtricts should expect to be on?
19 It has a very specific requirement of an 19 A.  Theyshould be on the curriculum frameworks and
20 additional 30 to 45 minutes of material embedded in the 20 adoption cycle using State Board approved purchase
21 text or the CD-ROM, whatever format they'reusing. That 21 ligts.
22 will impact price because they have incorporated what 22 Q. Andwhat doesthat mean, then, in practical
23 you used to be purchased separately into one full 23 termsof adistrict looking, say, that is making
24 program for all students. And with the enormous numbers 24 purchases for the 2001/2002 school year in K through 8?
25 of English language learnersin Cdlifornia, that will be 25 A.  Wdl, theresmorethan onelist. They cycle
Page 143 Page 145
1 verybendficid to them in the sense of not having to 1 on, they cycle off.
2 purchase additional resources to supplement the basic 2 Q. Meaning that there's aperiod in which a
3 program. 3 previoudy approved textbook in a previous cycle remains
4 So that will impact the price, in my view, ina 4 onthelist after the most recent adoption cycle?
5 reasonableway. It might be dightly higher, but in my 5 A. That'soccurred, especialy recently with the
6 own personal view, it may not be as high as having to 6 compressed adoption time lines.
7 purchase two separate books or two separate programs. 7 Q. Isthereanamefor that sort of window?
8 Q. How would you go about determining what a per 8 A.  Waell, there's not a name for that window, but |
9 sudent expenditure amount would be in view of the fact 9 cantell you the name of the adoption that occurred
10 that adoptions occur in cycles; in other words, | take 10 immediately after the state approved content level
11 it that you would not take -- let'sjust say core 11 standardsfor each grade. The State Board, by
12 subjectsfor aminute. Y ou would not add the cost of 12 authorization in the statute, called for what's called
13 thefour core subject items that you testified abot, 13 an additional adoption process because they wanted to
14 which was 35 to 40 for history and social sciences, et 14 ensurethat all districts had a chance to purchase off
15 cetera, you would not sum those and say that each year 15 recent lists reflecting the new content standards that
16 we should be expecting districts to spend the sum of 16 were adopted 1997, 1998.
17 thosefour on a per student basis, correct? 17 Those lists, those standards aligned materials
18 A. That'scorrect. 18 that were reviewed in avery short period, compressed
19 Q. Becauseyou would expect that they would make 19 periodin'98, '99 were added to a current list, a
20 purchasesin, say, one subject one year and another 20 current list that was six years long, and that would
21 subject another year? 21 dlow districts, while we were completing the adoptions
22 A.  Wewould makethat assumption becausetherésa | 22 we're under now, to purchase materials that were
23 sx-year cycle. Those materias are recent, up-to-date 23 standards aligned in two subjects. Math K-8, that list
24 materidsthat can be purchased through the six-year 24 isgood until 2003. Reading language arts, that list is
25 cycle. They don't need to purchase every year, 25 good until 2005.
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Along with that, we just completed the math K-8
adoption, which would be considered your primary
adoption for asix-year, seven-year -- Six-year cycle.
That list commenced January 2001 and expires June 30th,
2007. Sodigtricts can purchase from the'99 list and
they can purchase from thisnew list. Sothey havea
lot of opportunity there.,

For reading language arts, we're in the fina
stages of that adoption, which will be completed January
10th, 2002. | know that date. So they will then have
two lists to purchase from.

And what that meansisthat the State assumes
those dates alow for those materials to be purchased
when needed, and then they're no longer considered
current; that is, they don't have an opportunity to
purchase from it any longer and they need to move within
the other cycles.

So ther€'s two opportunities for those two
subjects.

Q. Wha you'vetaked about so far is purchasing
that's being driven by approved adoptions, whether of --
what wasit cdled again?

A.  Additiond adoption.
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it out there is that it's about 2 percent annually that
districts spend to replace materias that have been lost
or stolen or damaged. That's avery genera estimate.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Butit'sa2 percent of their
total expenditures on instructiond materias; that is
the 2 percent of what?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous on
"ingtructional materials."

Areyou talking about that particular program
they're purchasing from that vendor, or generaly?
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What isthe 2 percent of?
A.  Morefrom the vendor, the contract.
Q. Soisityour understanding that typically a
district entersinto a contract with avendor that
includes provisions for purchasing replacement
materials?
A.  No,it'snot that they necessarily have to
build it in, they just find the activity associated with
replacement requests runs about 2 percent.
Q. Peryear?
A. Right. | just want to clarify. That may not
include disposables in which they're purchasing to
replenish. It'srea specific to lost, stolen, damaged.

24 Q. --theadditional adoption or the regular 24 Q. Doyou-- doyou have any dataon actua
25 adoption? 25 experiencein the state of Cdiforniaof districts on
Page 147 Page 149
1 A. Primary adoption. 1 replacement?
2 Q. Another driver for purchasing by the districts 2 In other words, | takeit 2 percent is, asyou
3 iswhat might be called ashrinkage in their inventory 3 say, agenerd view. Do you have any information about
4 of textbooks, right, meaning lost or destroyed? 4 whether some districts are above that or below that?
5 A. Wedcdlitreplacement costs. 5 A. No
6 Q. Doyouhavereplacement costs data? 6 Q. Areyouawareof anyonein the state government
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 7 who collects that information?
8 MS. KAATZ: Join. 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
9 MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'll join. 9 to"state government." Also callsfor speculation.
10 THE WITNESS: Y es, we have information of an 10 THEWITNESS: No.
11 edtimate of the annua replacement costs, but it's very 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have any information
12 generd. 12 about any guidance that is given to schoal districts by
13 MR. VIRJEE: | want to make sure you understand 13 the Department of Education about managing their
14 my objection. Areyou asking about the cost, do they 14 textbooks and instructional materials so that they are
15 have dataabout the cost to actually do the replacing of 15 at or below some normative amount of replacement
16 aparticular text, or what the experience iswith 16 expenses?
17 replacing over some period of time, or what? | don't 17 A. No.
18 know. 18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
19 MR. JACOBS: Let's see what you meant. | 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Areyouaware of any technical
20 suspect you meant the latter, right. 20 assistance that the Department of Education givesto
21 THE WITNESS: | would base the estimate on what 21 school digtricts as to how to manage their textbook
22 theindustry generaly would respond with in regards to 22 inventory?
23 making asade with a client and maintaining that 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
24 contract with the client and providing support for that 24 to managing textbook inventory.
25 client over time. And the general kind of view out of 25 THE WITNESS: No.
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Areyou aware of any guidance
that the Department of Education givesto schoal
districts about purchasing software for assisting in the
management of textbook inventories?

MR. VIRJEE: Same objection.

THE WITNESS: Can you repeat the question?
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | canrewind afew questions
back. Areyou awarethat there are software packages
that are vended to school districtsthat are designed to
assist in managing the inventory of textbooks?
A. Yes
Q. Do you give any guidance to schoals, you
meaning the Department of Education now, give any
guidance to school digtricts that relates to the
purchasing of such software?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Cdlsfor speculation.

THE WITNESS: No, were not alowed to endorse
aparticular product.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Not alowed by what?
A.  Wedon't take positions on products that are
sold by publishers or other vendors.
Q. Doyouhaveany kind of -- do you play any role
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on theligt, so they would contact us.

Q. Do you provide any guidance to school districts
to the effect that we don't endorse any particular
software package, but you should seriously consider
implementing some software to help you manage your
textbook inventory?

MR. VIRJEE: Does Sherry Griffith do that?

MR. JACOBS: The Department of Education.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation.

THE WITNESS: No.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do you have apersona view
whether it isagood ideafor districts to adopt such
software?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Incomplete
hypothetical. Overbroad with respect to what district
in what situation.

THE WITNESS: My personal opinion isthat
digricts are -- range in size and staffing patternsto
the point that in some digtricts, particularly asmall
digtrict, it would not be necessary for them to use
software. They would have agood curriculum coordinator
or budget manager that would be doing that. In other

24 adlinthe-- strike that. 24  didrictsit may work in their favor to have that type
25 Suppose that adistrict came to you and said, | 25 of system.
Page 151 Page 153
1 wanttogototheright personto find out if the 1 Personally | think it would be challenging
2 Department of Education has any information at all about 2 because you're working with so many different vendors at
3 software for the management of textbook inventories, 3 somany different timesthat it may not be conducive if
4 would you be able to point that person in any particular 4 you're constantly updating it. So | think there are
5 direction? 5 sometechnical mattersthat areredly localy
6 A. Yes I'drefer themtothelist of thosethat | 6 determined.
7 know sdll that software. 7 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Moving away from software to
8 Q. Isthatalistthat you maintain, that the 8 issuesof the sort that you just identified, like
9 Department maintains? 9 whether there is abusiness manager and how that
10 A. It'sapretty shortligt. It'snot hard to 10 business manager might go about ng the practices
11 cdl up. 11 inthat district with respect to textbook inventories,
12 Q. Andyoucal it up from memory? 12 doesthe Department provide any technica assistance of
13 A. Nottheentirelist by memory, by | know a 13 that nature to school districts to strengthen their
14 couple of the companies. 14 ability to manage their textbook inventory?
15 Q. Asdefrom-- well, how do you happen to know 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
16 about those companies? 16 Lacksfoundation. Alsovague and ambiguous.
17 A.  Becausetheyve provided usinformation about 17 THE WITNESS: We don't provide technical
18 their products to explain to us how they work and to 18 assistance on inventory.
19 dlicit information about our purchase lists, because 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And by inventory, how about
20 they would have to interface with the State's posting of 20 other aspects of the administration of textbooks other
21 purchaselists asit relates to how they would organize 21 than the process of sdecting from the list which
22 thedatafor adigtrict in determining how they want to 22 textbooksto buy?
23 make choices. 23 A.  Inour biannua updates we provide districts
24 It's also impacted by the publishers that are 24 information about what the current statutes and
25 participating in that, so they may want to know whois 25 regulations dlow for them at thelocal level. For
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1 example, if they receive addivery from avendor and 1 dready asked her about and she's testified about?
2 themateridsare not of the same quality that were 2 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Do thevendorsdo that?
3 approved at the sate level, we ensure that they're 3 A. | can'tspesk to every vendor, but a number of
4 awarethat they have the right to penalize that vendor 4 them do advise their clients on what would be an
5 and recelve damages for the fact that they were not of 5 appropriae approach to take to ensure they have
6 the qudity that was expected. 6 replaceables, disposables replenished. They would bein
7 Q. Anyother assistance that you provide of 7 the paosition to advise them since they work directly
8 that -- that fits within my previous question, or is 8 withthem.
9 that-- 9 Q. Andareyouy, infact, awarethat that occurs,
10 MR. VIRJEE: Other than what she's testified to 10 or you believe that this probably occurs given the
11 today? 11 sdf-interest of the vendors?
12 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 12 A.  Anecdotaly, digtricts will indicate that
13 THE WITNESS: Could you be more specific? 13 theyreworking with a particular vendor and working out
14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | can giveyou another for 14 acontract that meets the needs of their district and
15 instance. Do you collect and disseminate any best 15 schools.
16 practicesinformation about how to managetheprocess, | 16 Q. | think I'm asking about something alittle
17 asopposed to the content selection now, the process of 17 different. When | asked you about whether it was
18 purchasing and distributing and then collecting at the 18 appropriate for a software package to be ingtalled, you
19 end of the year textbooks and instructional materials 19 pointed to the possibility that in smaller school
20 from students? 20 districts, if they have an effective business manager
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Overbroad and 21 and acurriculum coordinator, that that -- to expand
22 incomplete hypothetical. 22 dightly upon your answer, | took your answer to be that
23 With respect to the purchasing issue, she's 23 inthose smaller school didtricts, if those people are
24 been testify about that al day. 24 operating effectively, then a software package may not
25 MR. JACOBS: | mean best practicesintermsof | 25 beworth the cost in terms of enhancing the
Page 155 Page 157
1 administration, that process. 1 administration of textbooksin that district.
2 MR. VIRJEE: On how to go about purchasing? 2 Am | summarizing what you meant to say
3 MR. JACOBS: Yeah, | think so, but not from the 3 correctly?
4 sdection standpoint, from the standpoint of -- 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Her testimony speaks
5 THE WITNESS: A contract? 5 foritsdf. That'samisstatement of her testimony.
6 MR. JACOBS: From the standpoint of, wein the 6 THE WITNESS: | think there are a number of
7 Department of Education have collected some best 7 variablesinal digtricts for how they select
8 practices about, for example, how you make sure you get 8 materids.
9 dll the textbooks back from the kids at the end of the 9 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Isoneof the variables one of
10 year. Here are some good ideas for you to consider 10 the effectiveness of the administration of textbooksin
11 adopting in your school district. 11 that district?
12 Q. Haveyou done assistance of that sort? 12 A, Itmaybe
13 A.  No. 13 Q. Andiséeffectiveness of the administration of
14 MR. VIRJEE: "Y ou" being the Department of Ed? 14 textbooksin any district an issue that, to your
15 MR. JACOBS: Correct. 15 knowledge, the Department of Education has addressed?
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
17 Lacksfoundation. 17 to"addressed.”
18 THE WITNESS: No. 18 THE WITNESS: Could you be more specific?
19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Areyou aware of anybody who 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | cangiveyou another for
20 has collected and disseminated so-called best practices 20 ingtance. InLos Angeles areport waswritten called no
21 information about the administration of textbook 21 bang for our books. It was areport that critiqued the
22 purchasing, inventorying, distribution and collection? 22 LosAngeles school district's administration of its
23 MR. VIRJEE: Anybody in the Department of Ed? 23 textbook purchasing, inventorying, distribution,
24 MR. JACOBS: Anybody from any source. 24 collection.
25 MR. VIRJEE: Other than the vendors you've 25 Have you ever seen that report?
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1 A No 1 A. Notintheway that you're phrasing the
2 Q. Areyouawareof any other critiques? Areyou 2 reguest.
3 awareof any critiques? 3 Q. Wha areyouthinking of that -- are you
4 MR. VIRJEE: Sdf or otherwise? 4 thinking of arequest that was approximate to the way |
5 MR. JACOBS: Yesh. 5 phrasedit?
6 MR. VIRJEE: Becausethat wasredly a 6 A. |gerequestsdl thetimefor al different
7 df-critique. ‘ 7 typesof matters related to instructional materials.
8 MR. JACOBS: Sdf or otherwise, fair enough. 8 Q. Likewhat, that doesn't go to the selection
9 Of aschool district's admin -- I'll usethe 9 within the frameworks and the adoptions of textbooks?
10 shorthand "textbook inventory” to refer to themechanics | 10 A. | don't think you can separateit.
11 of purchasing textbooks, distributing them to students, 11 Q. Wdl, |l was. | wasasking about administration
12 collecting them at the end of the year, buying the 12 of textbook inventory, so | guess| could ask you that
13 replacements. That'swhat | mean by textbook inventory. | 13 way.
14 THE WITNESS: No. 14 Have you gotten requests for assistance with
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Yourenot awvareof anysuch | 15 respect to the administration of textbook inventory as|
16 critiques? 16 defined it afew minutes ago?
17 A. No. 17 A. Asl sad, | didnot. | have not gotten
18 Q. Letmejust ask thisquestion in thisway one 18 questionsthe way you phrased it.
19 lasttime, are you aware of any technical assistance 19 Q. Andyoudidnt mean the phrasing of 2 percent
20 provided to school districts by the Department of 20 versus 10, you meant the way | phrased --
21 Education to enhance the effectiveness of their 21 A. Thewholeinventory process youvejust laid
22 administration of their textbook inventory? 22 out. I'vediscussed particular aspects of purchasing
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 23  maeridswith digtricts, various aspects of it.
24 THE WITNESS: As| daed before, we provide 24 Q. But, for example, you haven't been asked, how
25 biannud updates to inform districts of their rights and 25 can we reduce the amount of money were spending on
Page 159 Page 161
1 theresponshilities of publishers when they make a 1 replacement maerials?
2 decision to purchase a the locd level, what they 2 A. No
3 should expect the publishers to do asit relates to the 3 Q. Anddo you have any understanding as to whether
4 dautes and regulations when those materias are then 4 thereisaparticular resource in the Department that is
5 presented to them for purchase. We keep them informed 5 directed to serving as aresource for districts on that
6 of that process and what their rights are if those 6 administrative issue?
7 provisions are violated. 7 MR. VIRJEE: The administretive issue being
8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthat'sthe extent of what 8 replacement of textbooks or --
9 you regard as technical assistance with respect to the 9 MR. JACOBS: That'sfair.
10 administration of textbook inventory? 10 MR. VIRJEE: That was your last question.
11 A. Ifadigrict cals my office, I'm going to 11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let'sdgart with replacement.
12 provide technical assistance. 12 Isthere any particular expert in the Department who you
13 Q. Adidrict calsyour office and says, we heard 13 regard as aresource on how to reduce the amounts that
14 that we should be spending, by industry norms, about 2 14 digtricts are spending on replacements?
15 percent on replacements, and we're spending 10 percent, | 15 A.  No, thefunding islocaly controlled.
16 canyou give us any help, would you bein a position to 16 Q. Andareyou aware of any other -- of aresource
17 respond to arequest like that? 17 outside the Department, other than the software vendors,
18 A. | wouldtroubleshoot and explore with them, 18 that you could direct adistrict to if it was looking
19 hear @out their particular case, give them whatever 19 for expertise on how to reduce the amount they're
20 assigtancel could, direct them to any other support | 20 spending on replacement?
21 could, remind them of other funding sources, refer them 21 A. | might refer them to organizations that
22 toalist of possible software vendors. | would try to 22 address good budgeting practices, good management
23 givethem everything | could think of that might assist 23 practices. Without qualifying the reference, | may do
24 themintheir processif they requested that. 24 that.
25 Q. Haveyou ever gotten such arequest? 25 Q. What organizations do you have in mind?
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A.  Orl wouldjust refer them, if necessary, to
their county office of education who oversees and
ensures compliance with budgeting. So | wouldn't
particularly pick any group or organization, but I'd
givethem alaundry list of options to seek additiona
advice alittle more close to home, closeto what is
going on for them at the local level.

And | would also advise them during their
public hearing, when they're inviting the community and
teachers and parents and others to come forward, to
solicit from them what they feel would work in reducing
the number of lost books and damaged books, and how can
we get the parents involved in making sure the kids get
the books back to the classroom. | think I'd use the
community to assist me as adistrict.
Q. But, infact, you haven't had that interaction
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MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "state educational system."

THE WITNESS: Those that audit for compliance
withholding hearings may see documents that demonstrates
evidence they held the hearing.

MR. VIRJEE: I'maso going to object onthe
grounds that it calls for speculation and lacks
foundation as to who does what.

MR. JACOBS: I'm only asking what you know.

MR. VIRJEE: Whenever you get a chance.

MR. JACOBS: Timefor abreak? Yeah, let's go.

(Recess taken.)

(Ms. Kaatz not present.)
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Hasthe Department of
Education, to the best of your knowledge, provided any
assistance or guidance to the school districtsin how to

17 with the digtrict, where someone has asked you that 17 go about preparing for the 60119 hearing, aside from the
18 question or, unsolicited, you have suggested to the 18 gpecific statutory requirements related thereto?
19 didtrict, you ought to involve the community in 19 MR. VIRJEE: And aside from what she's already
20 helping-- 20 testified to about sending the materialsto them?
21 A. | adwaysadvisethat in any of the requests 21 MR. JACOBS:. Uh-huh.
22  that we get. 22 THE WITNESS: In relation to what we send, we
23 Q. Butl takeit that you've had no conversaion 23 will include encouragement in those materialsto recruit
24 about how to reduce replacements, for example, and 24 asmuch public input as possible, so we will include
25 thereforethat particular guidance, well, you ought to 25 some additional support for that. But outside of those
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1 involvethe parentsin figuring out how to get the books 1 four notifications, no.
2 back at the end of the year, you haven't beenina 2 (Ms. Kaatz entered the room.)
3 position to provide it because the topic hasn't come up? 3 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Isthereanyonethat you can
4 A. Notinthat particular way. 4 think of in the Department who is particularly expert on
5 Q. Do you receive any information about the 5 how 60119 has, in fact, been implemented at the school
6 results of the 60119 hearingsthet are held in terms of 6 digtrictlevel?
7 thefinding that is made about sufficient materials? 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
8 A. Doesmy office receive the results? 8 Lacksfoundation.
9 Q. Yes. 9 THEWITNESS: No.
10 A. No. 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: We talked about the 2-percent
11 Q. Doyouknow of anyonein the Department who 11 replacement figure because we were embarked on an
12 does? 12 exercisein figuring out what the math would look like
13 MR. VIRJEE: Can you repest the question? What | 13 to determineif the per student allocations were
14 wasit you're asking for? 14 sufficient to purchase sufficient numbers of textbooks.
15 MR. JACOBS: Yeah. 15 | want to return to that topic.
16 Q. Youtaked before about the findings. | think 16 Do you have an expectation asto -- let'stake
17 we have a common understanding that under 60119 17 reading and language arts, and let's assume that we are
18 didtrictsare required to hold hearings and make 18 onacyclethat started with the primary adoption
19 findings about whether they have sufficient materials, 19 process. Do you have an expectation about how often
20 right? 20 digtricts would purchase anew set of reading and
21 A, Yes 21 language artsinstructional materias?
22 Q. Myquedtionisif adistrict madethefinding 22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
23 that we don't have sufficient materials, are you aware 23 to"new set."
24 of anyonein the state educational system at the state 24 MS. ALTAMIRANO: And aso time period.
25 level who would be informed of that conclusion? 25 MR. VIRJEE: Let metell youwhat I'm --
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1 MR. JACOBS: Okay. 1 Q. Andhow doesthat then relate -- how does thet
2 MR. VIRJEE: In other words, adifferent set, a 2 then convert into an answer to the question, isthere a
3 different version of ingtructional materias as opposed 3 generd ruleor arule of thumb about how often the

4 toaset which could befor aclass or aschool or 4 digtrict would then go through that cycle with respect

5 anything like that? 5 toanew version or awhole new adoption of a set of

6 MR. JACOBS: Yes, theway Mr. Virjeeis 6 materias?

7 interpreting it, that is, anew version because of the 7 A. Wadll, | can't say ther€'s just onerule of

8 passage of time as opposed to a new set because there 8 thumb, but | would say every six yearswould be

9 aremorekidsthat need copies of the book or the 9 generdly because that's the cycle, every six to seven
10 materids. 10 years.

11 THE WITNESS: | can provide you agenera 11 There will be cases, because we have what's
12 understanding, not specific to districts because they're 12 cdled the follow-up adoptions, where additional choices
13 all different in their procedures for reviewing. 13 areavailable. They may decide that in the follow-up
14 Generdly they're on their own cycle, but they 14 adoptions, which is about two to three years after the
15 usudly complement and mirror the cycle that the State 15 primary, that there's some additional materias that
16 isunder, and we conduct, typicaly, aprimary adoption | 16 they think arereally grest and they'd like to pilot
17 annualyinasubject. Just the cycleswork out to 17 those, so they may add another choice to the mix for
18 includeall of the subjects that we adopted. The ones 18 maybe different grade levels.
19 I'vementioned in the beginning of the day we're 19 So they're looking at the whole spectrum of
20 adopting traditionally annualy. 20 gradeleve needs, materials that are available, the
21 The didtricts are looking ahead to the 21 choicesthey have, their budget, which can be held over
22  maeriasfor that subject that will be approved, the 22 annudly and then --
23 new list coming out, and then they just, by nature of 23 Q. "Over annualy" meaning they could not purchase
24 the system, will begin to communicate with the 24 inthe then current year, but make the purchase in the
25 publisherswho will cometo them, they will beginto 25 following year?
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1 daerminether piloting schedule, they will determine 1 A, Widl, for example, let's say they purchase

2 when they want to form their evaluation committees at 2 history socid science in '99 when those books were

3 thelocd leve to review the materias that will be 3 approved, costs 35 to $40 a pupil but they had $75 a

4 approved, and so they're planning that out anywherefrom | 4 pupil, save that money for the next year and purchase

5 asix-month period to atwo-year period, depending on 5 science, save that money because you have additiona

6 thedistrict, to conduct their own loca review of the 6 fundsleft, purchase math. Y es, you can accrue the

7 materidsthat have been approved by the State. 7 funds and then use the resources to purchase the next

8 Q. BY MR JACOBS. That have been or areto be? 8 content area.

9 A. Widl, theyredwaysinacycle, sotheyre 9 Q. Andthesx-year or seven-year cycleinterms
10 probably preparing for the upcoming list to be ready for 10 of purchasing that you're describing is the cycle that's
11 that, and they may also be piloting math that was just 11 driven by the six-year cycle the State is on for the
12 approved. Soif they're thinking ahead, which most of 12 readoption of materias?

13 them should be and they are, they have the pilot going 13 MR. VIRJEE: I'm going to object to thiswhole
14 oninmath, becausein January 2001, for example, we 14 line of questioning as an incomplete hypothetica with
15 just approved those materids, so they're piloting them 15 respect to the district decides, the district, the

16 thisyear, and they're beginning, in anticipation, to 16 number of students, that there is some specific rule or
17 determinewho will be on their English language arts 17 generd rule of thumb.

18 evauation committees and forming that committee or 18 MR. JACOBS:. Go ahead.

19 committeesin anticipation of the Board's action in 19 THE WITNESS: | think that the cycleisa

20 January 2002. 20 genera cycle of adoption and sdlection.

21 So they're continuoudy forming committee, 21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andit'sasix- or seven-year
22 evaluaing materias, making recommendations to the 22 cycdeinthe generd case?

23 loca board, the Board's holding hearings, the Board's 23 A. Uh-huh.

24  determining which materiasto buy, thenumbersneeded. | 24 Q.  If somebody asked you what usually occurs, you
25 That would be kind of atraditional cycle. 25 would say it'sasix- or seven-year cycle?
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1 A Uh-huh, and those materials are considered 1 that'sright.
2 recent and current. 2 Thedistrict is calling you up and saying, do
3 Q. Withinthat period of time? 3 you have any advice for us, we have an expanding student
4 A. Ubhuh Yes 4 population, but for your adoption cycle, you,
5 Q. Andsowhenyouretaking about adoption in 5 Ms. Griffith's, but for your adoption cycle and the fact
6 let'sjust cdl it year zero, then you -- in calculating 6 that you're about to adopt a new set of textbooksin the
7 what the digtrict would need to be spending ontextbooks | 7 coming year we would be buying more copies for this
8 with respect to any particular topic, let's say reading 8 expanding student population, but we don't want to spend
9 and language artsjust to pick one for sake of 9 the money on those additional copies because those
10 discussion, agenera rule would be a 2-percent 10 additional copieswill be superseded shortly by your new
11 replacement expense year by year over the six-year 11 adoption.
12 period, theninthelast year or maybe the next year, 12 A.  Whatwould say to them?
13 the seventh year, there would be a purchase of an 13 Q. Yes
14  entirely new set of materids for reading and language 14 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Object. It will cdl for
15 ats 15 speculation because there's no showing that thisis
16 Do | accurately capture here the purchasing 16 within her purview at dl.
17 cycleasyou understand it? 17 MR. VIRJEE: Also object asan incomplete
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 18 hypothetical.
19 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. 19 THE WITNESS: Well, sinceit's hypothetical, |
20 THE WITNESS: I'd say that's agenerd cycle, 20 would first ask what happened at their public hearing
21 but as| mentioned, they may have purchased in 21 andwhat kind of plan did they develop to ensure they
22 mid-cycle. | mean, there's no way to know except at the 22 had materias for the pupils, and if they haven't held
23 digtrict level and based on the hearing that they've 23 ther hearing yet, and that's kind of what they're
24 held what their decisions have been. 24 looking to do and they're seeking advice, | would ask
25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS. Sole'stakethemid-cycle 25 themtolook at the options they have within the formats
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1 purchasing decision. | want to understand how that 1 of the program that they purchased or the other options
2 might affect ongoing purchases. 2 available from the vendor that would allow them to
3 If you -- it's not in this article, but | have 3 ensurethey have the materids.
4 read other articles that report school district 4 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Canl stop you there and ask
5 officias say, yes, we have not purchased more copies of 5 you what you have in mind by those options?
6 atextbook to meet our expanding student population 6 A. Forexample in many of the programsincluded
7 because we know next year the State is going to do an 7 aewhat are caled blackline masters, and blackline
8 adoption and we don't want to purchase books that are 8 madters are the masters that you can reproduce from. |
9 going to be superseded by an adoption cycle. 9 guessthey used to cal them ditto sheets. But many of
10 First of al, do you understand that to be 10 the programs have a very rich component of those. And
11 something that occurs at the schoal district level, the 11 because | wouldn't know their situation, so thisisall
12 kind of decision that they might make? 12 hypothetica, | would say what are your optionsin
13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 13 regardsto ensuring that the program that you've
14 Incomplete hypothetical. Calls for speculation. 14 purchased has materias that you can provide all
15 THE WITNESS: In my persona view, they may 15 students, and then | would probably ask them to try to
16 make those decisions based on the cycles. 16 ensurethat they had aplan that was approved by the
17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: If somebody caledyouupand | 17 local governing board to ensure that there was adequate
18 said, thisis our situation, do you have advice to give 18 coverage of the curriculum in the classroom and the
19 tothat school district in that situation? 19 materias necessary to meet that curriculum.
20 A.  What'sthesituation? 20 | think there would be alot of other factors
21 Q. Sotheyrenot purchasing additional copies of 21 thanjust theingtructiona materidsin that decision.
22 atextbook -- and now I'm going to just start over again 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isthisanissuethat you have,
23  because | think | might have confused it by saying what 23 infact, had discussions with others about, that is, how
24 about a purchasing decision made mid-cycle. Now | 24 purchasing decisions might be affected by -- of the kind
25 redlizethisisn't amid-cycleissueat all. | think 25 that | described, the incremental copies, might be
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1 affected by the adoption cycle the State is on? 1 from Ms. Jeffus (ph.) about the school library survey.
2 A. No 2 Can you tdll uswhat the school library survey
3 MR. VIRJEE: When you say "others," are you 3 is?
4 talking about school districtsin your hypothetical or 4 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Areyou looking a some
5 just anybody? 5 minutes?
6 Q. BY MR. JACOBS:. Let mereask it. Haveyou 6 MR. JACOBS: | don't need thisoneasan
7  discussed with your colleagues or with the commissioners | 7  exhibit.
8 theissue of how the adoption cycles might affect 8 MS. ALTAMIRANO: But it's possible for
9 decisions by schooal districts not to purchase additional 9 Ms. Griffithto look at it?
10 copies of textbooks in the -- in the shadow period 10 MR. JACOBS: Yeah. Sure.
11 before the adoption of anew set of materias? 11 MS. KAATZ: Inyour question what isthe third
12 A. No. 12 word, school library --
13 Q. Isit aproblem that you're -- isit an issue 13 MR. JACOBS: Survey.
14 that you are aware of actually exists? 14 MS. KAATZ: Survey. Thank you.
15 A. No. 15 MR. VIRJEE: Eventhough in adifferent format,
16 Q. Andyou've never had conversations with school 16 they'rethe samething?
17 districts about that problem? 17 MS. DUFFY: Theyrethe same.
18 A. No, I havenot. 18 THE WITNESS: Okay.
19 Q. Doyou callect -- strike that. 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Sowereonthe survey
20 Do you have a press clipping service that 20 question?
21 provides you with articles about textbook issuesin 21 A. Yes
22 Cdifornia public schools? 22 Q. Whatistheschool library survey?
23 A.  The Department has a press clipping service 23 A. It's a survey conducted by my steff to
24 that scans for al education articles in the state, 24 determine the number of new materiasthat are being
25 sometimes national, and I'm on that link and | review 25 purchased by schools for school librariesin particular,
Page 175 Page 177
1 that daily. 1 andthe media equipment that would be purchased for
2 Q. Sohaveyou seen articlesin which schoal 2 libraries and agenera estimate of the copyright date,
3 didrict officids have said, we're not purchasing 3 therecency (sic) of the copyright dates of the
4 additional copies now because there's an adoption coming 4 materiasthat they are purchasing, because thereisa
5 up and we don't want to purchase at this point? 5 genera edtimate of the average copyright date of abook
6 A. | haven't heardthat particular reference. 6 inalibrary of Cdifornia, and one of the goas of the
7 Q. Let'stakealook at another article. Well 7 satelibrary funds and the classroom library funds that
8 make some copies, but for now I'll just hand it over to 8 areavailableistoinfuse support into schoolsto
9 you. Thisisan article dated December 20, 2000. It's 9 updatetheir library materials and their lists to
10 an Associated Presswire and it quotes you as saying, 10 reflect more current materials.
11 many districts have been saving textbook funds for -- 11 Q. Soontheissueof morecurrent materias, this
12 A, Canl seit? 12 aspect of the survey is designed to analyze whether
13 Q. Yeah | wantto putiton therecord. 13 libraries making purchases today are purchasing newer or
14  -- textbook funds for the new math book lit, said 14 older materids?
15 Sherry Skelly Griffith of the Department of Education, 15 A. Toassesstheimpact of that.
16 theexecutive director for the curriculum commission. 16 Q. Thissurvey, isit mandated by some statutory
17 MS. KAATZ: Isthisgoing in asan exhibit? 17 directive you received?
18 MR. JACOBS: Wewill in asecond. 18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation
19 In terms of interrupting the flow, can we come 19 andcdlsfor alega conclusion.
20 back tothisand | can ask about something else while 20 THE WITNESS: | don't have the language
21 that's being copied? 21 memorized, but there's general intent in the program to
22 MR. VIRJEE: Sure. No problem. 22 assessthe program's effectiveness.
23 MS. KAATZ: Sure. 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: One of theissuesweve been
24 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inthismeeting of November 24 asking people about is -- that 1've been asking people
25 28th of the curriculum commission there was areport 25 about among your colleaguesiswhat independent ability
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you have to initiate surveys of this sort.
Was this a survey that you were given specia
gppropriation to conduct?
A.  No.
Q. Youwererelying on your existing staff?
A.  Wadl, yes. Therésaconnectiontothelibrary
grantees and our office directly. Because they're
submitting library plans, we're aware of what they're
doing because for them to receive the funds, they have
to submit aplan.
Q. Soisthesurvey based on areview of the plans
that have aready been submitted to you?
A.  That'spart of thereview.
Q. Areyou actudly going out to the schoal or
schoal digtricts and asking them questions?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
Areyou saying are you going on-site to ask
those questions?
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | meant, are you conveying
guestions for information to them?
A.  Aspart of aregular survey review. But they
have alot of the information embedded in the library
plan that's approved by the State, so there wouldn't be
areason, except for maybe clarification.
Q. So as| think of asurvey, thereisnt aform
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school-by-school or school-library-by-school-library
basis?

MR. VIRJEE: As opposed to digtrictwide, you
mean?

MR. JACOBS: Yesah. Exactly.

THEWITNESS: Yes.

Q. BY MR JACOBS: Sodo you haveinformation
about what is being done under these programs at the
leve of granularity of schoal library by school

library?

MR. VIRJEE: | think that's the question you
just asked.

THE WITNESS: | can't spesk to dl the details
that they're submitting today without the information in
front of me, but, yes, they are schoal library plans.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: In addition to the copyright
date, what eseis being assessed as part of the survey?

MR. VIRJEE: What isin the school library
plan?

MR. JACOBS: No.

Q. What dseisbeing assessed as part of the
survey?

A.  Genedly it would be the number of volumes
they've purchased for their libraries, any media support
that they have purchased for their libraries, for
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that you're sending out to the districts and asking them
to complete as part of survey?

MR. VIRJEE: Unlessyou includethat as part of
what's embedded. | think she just answered that.

THE WITNESS: | can't recdl if therewas an
additional survey forms that were sent out. What I'm
indicating isthat theres alibrary plan that's
submitted, and then my staff reviews the plan to ensure
compliance with the requirements of the program, and
that contains alot of information, so the survey is
partialy based on that information. It may be based on
follow-up aswell.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sotoputitinthe negative,
you don't have information on school libraries that
haven't submitted plans under these -- in order to
receive funding under these particular alocations for
schoal libraries?
A.  Wdl, actudly, thisisavoluntary grant
program, but my staff are so committed to getting these
funds out that they individualy caled every district
to ensure that they submitted a plan, so, yes, we have a
plan for every ditrict in Caifornia.

(Exhibit SAD-55 was marked.)
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Doesadigtrict's plan
describe, in the ordinary case, what is being doneon a
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instance, if they wanted to use technol ogy-based
materialsin the library, what they've purchased, types
of books they've purchased might be there.

Q. Isoneof theintended outputs of this survey

or review of these plans to determine whether there
is-- to determine the degree of variation in new
library resources among the schoal librariesin the
state?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "new library resources."

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

MR. VIRJEE: Assumes facts and vague asto
"intended outputs."

THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the question.

(Record read.)

THE WITNESS: I'm not sure what you mean by
"variation."

MR. JACOBS: To determine whether some schools
have very limited plans to buy new materials for their
libraries as opposed to other schools that have more
aggressive plans.

THE WITNESS: No, that's not the purpose of the
survey. They receive the same per pupil apportionment,
so that wouldn't be the purpose.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Do the plans permit your staff
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1 todeterminethelevd of staffing in school libraries? 1 MR. VIRJEE: What question are you asking her?
2 I'll amplify that with afor instance. | took 2 What question is pending?
3 adeposition of aschool principal afew weeks ago who 3 MR. JACOBS: The question about surveys.
4 wasfacing theissue next year and had the issue this 4 MR. VIRJEE: And she says she doesn't know how
5 year whether to keep the library open because they had a 5 you're using the word "access," and you said as she used
6 budget issue about whether they could afford a staff 6 it and you're pointing to away that she didn't use,
7 personinthelibrary. 7 sol think that's the problem here.
8 Isthat issue one you can analyze from the 8 MR. JACOBS: Fair enough.
9 information you have available? 9 MR. VIRJEE: She'sasking for clarification on
10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Areyou 10 what you mean by "access."
11 asking isthere staffing information provided? 11 THE WITNESS: | need clarification about what
12 MR. JACOBS:. Yes. 12 type of survey you are requesting information on.
13 THE WITNESS: It may be ancillary to the plan, 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let'sstart over again. In
14 but it is not the focus of the plan because the funds 14 looking at these minutes, it states, as | read, that
15 areintended for books and technol ogy-based materials 15 Mr. Hill encouraged the commissioners to communicate on
16 for students. That's the purpose of the two programs. 16 thistopic. And thewords are deficiencies and gapsin
17 Therestwo, there's the state library fund and 17 issues surrounding quality textbooks.
18 theresthe classroom library fund. For example, the 18 As you read these minutes sitting here today,
19 classroom library fund is for literature and other 19 what do you understand access to qudity textbooksto
20 materids you wouldn't necessarily be purchasing under, 20 meanin that context?
21 for example, Schiff-Bustamante, supportsthoseneedsin | 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
22 the cdlassroom, dong with other resources. 22 Thesearen't her words. She has no ideawhat Mr. Hill
23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sticking with the idea of 23 meant.
24 surveysfor aminute, are you aware of any surveys that 24 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
25 have been conducted that are directed to analyzing 25 MR. JACOBS: | think you can still answer.
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1 whether studentsin the state of California have access 1 THE WITNESS: | can't spesk to the way that he
2 toinstructional materials? 2 waspresenting this, in what context. It could be
3 MR. VIRJEE: Can you repest that question? 3 defined in many different ways.
4 (Record read.) 4 MR. JACOBS: Pick ane.
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 5 MR. VIRJEE: Y oureasking what it meansin
6 to"survey." 6 thiscontext, and she'stelling you she doesn't know.
7 I'm assuming you're asking in addition to 7 MR. JACOBS: Shesadit could bedefinedin
8 anything she's aready testified to. 8 many different ways, I'm asking for one.
9 THE WITNESS: Could you be more specific about 9 MR. VIRJEE: Waysinwhich it could be defined?
10 access. I'm not sure what you mean. 10 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wadll, accessisaword you used 11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Overbroad. Callsfor
12 before, and so I'm trying to use your vocabulary. 12 gpeculation.
13 Referring to Exhibit 54, which are the minutes 13 MS. KAATZ: Join.
14 from the May 18th-19th, 2000 mesting. It states, 14 THE WITNESS: What is the question now?
15 Mr. Hill encouraged the commissioners to continue to 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: How would you -- what is one
16 communicate with Deputy Superintendent Hernandez about | 16  definition that you believeis potentially applicable to
17 wherethe deficiencies and gaps il areinissues 17 theword access or to the phrase deficiencies and gaps
18 surrounding access to qudity textbooks. 18 inissues surrounding access to quality textbooks?
19 A. Thoseaent mywords. 19 MR. VIRJEE: Cdlsfor speculation and
20 Q. No, | know, but you were at that meeting. 20 overbroad.
21 MR. VIRJEE: What's your question? 21 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin.
22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: You used accessin adifferent 22 THE WITNESS: | can give you one explanation
23 context, and since you seem not to like that word, | was 23 how to define.
24  referring back to the minutes. 24 MR. JACOBS:. Shoot.
25 A. |justwantto beclear -- 25 THE WITNESS: We reviewed submissions and there
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1 aeddficiencies and gaps found in the materids that we 1 awareness, and I'm going to make the assumption she
2 review, that is, the State, the State Board of 2 meansin particular those involved in this process,
3 Education, and those materials are not approved because 3 policymakers, that there had been alag in funding for a
4 they have deficienciesin content, gaps in understanding 4 number of years.
5 how to ddiver that content, so that's one way of 5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthat had led to what?
6 definingit. 6 A. A misunderstanding about the need.
7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Arethereanyother waysthat | 7 Q.  Theneed for what?
8 you can think of as you sit here today? 8 A.  For additiona funding.
9 A. Deficiencies in the sense of access to the 9 Q. Inordertodowhat?
10 materidsat the-- | don't -- at the Satelevd, a 10 A. Purchase materids. And what shehasdoneis
11 thelocd level? 11 talk about the awareness, because this conversation was
12 Q. Ithink were playing games alittle bit, in 12 predicated on the importance of Schiff-Bustamante and
13 part because of the objections. 13 reauthorizing Schiff-Bustamante.
14 Isn't it clear that the context here, that the 14 Q. Purchase materiasin order to give students
15 issue here under discussion, was whether students had 15 accesstoinstructional materials, correct?
16 accessin terms of whether the digtricts were purchasing 16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
17 and making available to them the instructional materids | 17 totheword “access.”
18 that had been approved by the State? 18 MS. ALTAMIRANO: And callsfor speculation.
19 A. | cannot ascertain that from Mr. Hill's 19 THE WITNESS: No, sheisadministrator. She
20 comment. 20 understands the need to purchase materials for pupils,
21 Q. Wéll, from the context when Chair Astore 21 soshe'stalking about that need.
22 sad-- 22 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And areyou aware of any
23 A, Fromher comment | cantell you what | think 23 surveysthat assess whether that need isbeing met in
24 she was making a statement on. 24 the state of Cadlifornia?
25 Q. Whichwas? 25 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection. Vague asto what
Page 187 Page 189
1 A. That'snot Mr. Hill's comment. 1 meeting and asto "surveys."
2 Q. Farenough. Well talk about her comment 2 THE WITNESS: | aready answered that.
3 then. 3 MR. JACOBS: | don't think so.
4 A. Shewass, again, talking about the perception 4 THE WITNESS: | referenced areport that was
5 that there was alot of funding, and reminding the 5 done by the private industry association, the American
6 audience that there had been alag in funding for many 6 Association of Publishers, where they've given an
7 yearsprior to Schiff-Bustamante. 7 estimate of what they think the need is.
8 Schiff-Bustamante by the State was an infusion 8 Q. BY MR. JACOBS:. That wason acost basis,
9 of fundswhich has now brought those funds up per pupil, 9 right?
10 but shewas also cautioning the audience that in her 10 A. Correct.
11 edtimateit will cost at least $100 per student for 11 Q. Theydidn't go out and survey in terms of what
12 reading language and arts, and | know it'sreading 12 isactudly in the hands of students?
13 language arts because she's the chair for reading 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation
14 language arts and she's directly involved in that 14 onwhat they might have done.
15 process. 15 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: The report does not so reflect?
16 Q. Andshewassaying that Schiff-Bustamante had 16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The report speaks for
17 brought thelevel of funding up in order to achieve what 17 itsdlf.
18 objective? 18 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumes she said 19 THE WITNESS:. Not that I'm aware of.
20 anything about the objective. Assumesfactsnotin 20 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: So areyou aware of any such
21 evidence. 21 survey, that is, asurvey that --
22 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection. Cdlsfor 22 A. No.
23 speculation asto what she was intending. 23 MR. VIRJEE: Again, | restate the same
24 THE WITNESS: My understanding, just from these 24 objections. Vague and ambiguous as to "survey" and
25 minutes alone, isthat she feels that there's not enough 25 "access”"

48 (Pages 186 to 189)



PBoo~w~ounswneR

T &
oM WN

Page 190

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Areyou aware of any surveys
that have been conducted by -- in other states about
what is, in fact, in the hands of students?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "survey."
MS. ALTAMIRANO: And callsfor speculation.
THE WITNESS: I'm not specifically aware.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Soyoure not aware that
Nevada, for example, has conducted a survey to determine
whether -- the degree to which students have -- each
student has his or her own copy of instructional
materials?
A.  No, I'mnot aware of that survey.
Q. Isthat something that -- in terms of your
understanding of the allocation of responsibilitiesin
the State Department of Education -- start over.
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to "survey techniques."

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: What type of survey techniques
are you speaking of, aloca district board would survey
their needs?

MR. JACOBS: No, how the State might perform
surveysif it wanted to answer the question what's
really happening in schoals, are kids getting textbooks.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "survey."

And, again, other than what she's already
testified to? She aready talked about this.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Andl join.

THEWITNESS: I'm till unclear. Y ou want to
know is anyone knowledgeable about survey techniques
generally?

17 Is there somebody else who you regard as more 17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isthere somebody that you
18 knowledgeable about what other -- about how you measure 18 would go to in the Department who you would regard as
19 whether -- I'm going to break this down a couple of 19 having become or, in fact, charged with becoming
20 different ways. 20 particularly expert about how to survey what is going on
21 Let's start with this one, who in the 21 attheloca school leve for the Department?
22 Department is most knowledgeable about what other states 22 A.  For the purpose of accessto instructiona
23 do to ensure that the need for instructional materials 23 materids, or for any purpose?
24 s, infact, met by that State's system of 24 Q. That might beone. | meanthat asafor
25 administration of the public school system? 25 example of the kind of survey that might be conducted.
Page 191 Page 193
1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 1 A. Wehaveanumber of people who do different
2 to"need for instructional materials' as meant, and also 2 datarunsfor different purposes, beit fisca or based
3 cdlsfor speculation. 3 onour daarequirementsin law. Theresno one
4 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Il join. 4 particular person.
5 MR. VIRJEE: And also vague and ambiguous asto 5 Q. Andnoonewho you regard as-- if we definea
6 "most knowledgeable" Astowhat component part or the 6 survey in adightly narrower way than | think we've
7 entiretopic? 7 beenusing it so far, as a process by which one solicits
8 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join again. 8 information from the surveyed party, here, the school
9 THE WITNESS: Therée's not arequirement that 9 digtrict, and then analyzes the responses, | take it
10 anyonein our department have a knowledge of what other 10 that using that definition of survey, you're not aware
11 daesaredoing. 11 of somebody in the Department who you regard as
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isthereanyonewhointhe 12 particularly expert about those techniques?
13 generd sense haskind of madeit an areain which that 13 MR. VIRJEE: So you've actudly defined the
14 person has become kind of expert looking a what other 14 survey for the first time as actudly soliciting
15 datesaredoingin thisarea? 15 information from the school districts about what they're
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 16 doing?
17 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 17 MR. JACOBS: Uh-huh.
18 THE WITNESS: No, they're far too busy for 18 THE WITNESS: What they're doing in what area?
19 that. 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Let'staketextbooks. Let's
20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andintermsof survey 20 change our facts alittle bit, and instead of doing a
21 techniquesfor ng what is actually happening at 21 schoal library survey, now you're doing a textbook
22 theschool district or school leve, isthere anyone 22 survey, but you're not doing it by looking at plans that
23 that you know of in the Department who is particularly 23 have been submitted, you're doing it by going out and
24 knowledgeable about survey techniques? 24 asking information from the school districts.
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesthoseare
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1 mutualy exclusive and that one is away of conducting a 1 Schiff-Bustamante and how they are preparing to purchase
2 survey and another isnot. Vague and ambiguous. 2 from each of the content aress.
3 MR. JACOBS: Just asked the question. Go 3 And my comments were based on the fact thet as
4 ahead. 4 digtricts plan and budget -- and this was a significant
5 THEWITNESS: Y ou're using theterm "survey,” 5 new primary adoption of math programs, for the first
6 and there are numerous functions in our department that 6 timeever, agebrafor the middle grades -- that they
7 require compliance, certification, assurances, data 7 wereanticipating and, in our view, reserving fundsto
8 callection. Thereisn't one person | couldtell you is 8 make purchases from this brand-new list.
9 akey expertin what you're terming survey. Okay? 9 Q. Youusedtheword"survey" in your answer.
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Okay. Let'sgo back tothis 10 A.  Uh-huh
11 article, New books seen astool to improve math 11 Q. Wha, inthat context, did you mean by survey?
12 learning, and were now using adightly different 12 A.  Wehave conducted an informal survey, it's not
13 version asthe exhibit. Weve marked that document as 13 atutorily required. When the districts assure the use
14 Exhibit SAD-55, and | want to ask you questionslikethe | 14 of Schiff-Bustamante, we ask which subject areathey
15 ones| asked you before about the other article in which 15 werepurchasingin that particular year. Some
16 you were quoted. 16 volunteered to provideit, some did not.
17 This article, dthough it doesn't put what you 17 As part of the assurance, which actudly we
18 saidin quotes, it states as follows, many districts 18 have not had as avoluntary item, we ask to check off
19 have been saving textbook funds for the new math book 19 one of three boxes, did you fully expend your money this
20 list, said Sherry Skdly Griffith of the Department of 20 year, did you partially expend your funds this year, or
21 Education, the executive director for the curriculum 21 didyou not expend your fundsthisyear. Andthey're
22 commission. 22 reminded they have aright to carry those funds over.
23 So my first question is, is that quotation 23 Q. Andby"funds' wereyou referring to just
24 accurate? 24 Shiff-Bustamante or IMF?
25 MR. VIRJEE: Did she say those exact words? 25 A.  For purposesof the assurance, just
Page 195 Page 197
1 MR. JACOBS: It'snot in quotes, although it's 1 Schiff-Bustamante.
2 framed asaquote. 2 Q. Let'sgo back to how we might calculate the
3 Q. Didyou say that in words or substance? 3 relationship between available resources and expected
4 A Yes 4 expenses on the part of the school districts.
5 Q. Didyouimpart additional information to the 5 So far we have the school districts purchasing
6 reporter in the conversation than reflected in this 6 textbooks, as| build my model using the information
7 atice? 7 youve provided, | would take the K through 8 core
8 A Yes 8 content subject area costs that you've described, and
9 Q. Whatdidyoutdl them? 9 those are four -- you testified about four programs,
10 A. | talked about the new math programs that the 10 right?
11 Board approved. 11 MR. VIRJEE: Four --
12 Q. Didyou say anything else about how districts 12 MR. JACOBS: Four content areas, four subject
13 wereusing funds? 13 aress.
14 A. |just generdlyindicated that many districts 14 THE WITNESS: Testified to?
15 had been anticipating the new list, and they were 15 MR. JACOBS: | was referring to the testimony
16 prepared to move forward in sdecting fromthat lis now | 16 you testified to about before to the legidative
17 that it wasout. 17 committee.
18 Q. Andwhat did you -- what were you referring to 18 THE WITNESS: Yes, | identified the four core
19 when you conveyed that districts were saving textbook 19 content areas.
20 fundsfor the new math book list? 20 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Thereare other subjectsthat a
21 A. That they've been accruing funds from the two 21 school district would, in the general case, be expected
22 dedicated sourcesthat they carry over, and so they are 22 to purchase textbooks or other instructional materials
23 prepared to use those funds to purchase from the list. 23 for, correct?
24 This stemsfrom a survey that our office did in regards 24 MR. VIRJEE: Aside from the core content areas?
25 to the assurances that are conducted for 25 MR. JACOBS: Yes.
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1 THE WITNESS: They may. They wouldn't be using 1 isadopting. Isthat what you're talking about, did the
2 Schiff-Bustamante for those purchases. 2 Board adopt?
3 Q BY MR. JACOBS:. They could use state IMF? 3 MR. JACOBS. Yes.
4 A, Yes 4 THE WITNESS: Could you repest that again.
5 Q. Andthey could use other funds available to 5 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: If | seehistory and science
6 them? 6 and math and reading and language arts, | seethat list
7 A, Yes 7 of four subject areas, we're covering K through 8, are
8 Q. Pursuanttowhatever restrictionsthere are as 8 there materids for each grade leve that were approved?
9 wediscussed this morning? 9 A. Yes withaclarifying comment, that werein
10 A. Yes 10 the midst of reading language arts of this primary
11 Q. InKthrough 8, other than history and socia 11 adoption, but, yes, in every grade level, materias have
12 sciences, science, math and reading and language arts, 12 been gpproved.
13 do you have agenera understanding of what other 13 Q. Andwould it be, then, your expectation that in
14 subjectsaschool district would be purchasing textbooks 14 the generd case aK through 8 school would purchase --
15 orinstructional materiasfor? 15 would base its purchasing decision on the entire school
16 A. Yes 16 population for those four subject areas?
17 Q. Whaisthat? 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
18 A.  Youmean the subjects themselves, what they 18 Lacksfoundation.
19 ae? 19 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
20 MR. JACOBS: Yes. 20 MR. VIRJEE: Also compound.
21 MR. VIRJEE: Other than what she's dready 21 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
22 tedtified to? 22 THE WITNESS: It's going to depend on the
23 MR. JACOBS: Other than those four. 23 didtrict. Some of the submissions that are approved by
24 MR. VIRJEE: So repeat what you've said before. 24 the State Board are grade spans. For instance, they may
25 THE WITNESS: We conduct adoptions for dl the 25 purchase one program for K-3 and purchase another
Page 199 Page 201
1 subjects, and the additional subjects include visua 1 program, same content area, State Board approved, for
2 performing arts, foreign language and health. 2 4-6, so they may have more than one review going on for
3 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Isit your expectation that 3 thosegrade spans. Typically you'll see alarger number
4 districts would purchase instructional materials in each 4  of the approved programsin aK-6 span or aK-5 span,
5 of those three areas for dl -- leaving aside the issue 5 and then you have your middle grades concentration.
6 of whether it's one per student, would you expect them 6 So when they review materias for gpprovd at
7 to be purchasing materials for all of their studentsin 7 thelocd level, it will depend on the grade spans
8 those three areas? 8 theyrereviewing at thetime, but it's likely that
9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 9 they'rein sync with the cycles, so they're going to,
10 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Or would it be the case that 10 over time, approve for dl the grade spans, but it will
11 visua performing arts might be a subject that's only 11 depend on the submissions that are approved and their
12 delivered to some students? 12 needs.
13 A. | can't speak to what every district is doing 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I think | have adightly
14 inthose subject areas. They may be purchasing those 14 smpler question. We have aK through 8 schooal,
15 materias, and they might also be using other 15 hypothetically, that has 500 kids. Divided among the
16 supplemental materials. 16 eight grades, would you expect there to be materiasin
17 Q. Let's go back for a minute to the four 17 the history and socia science category off the approved
18 subjects. Did you approve kindergarten-level materias 18 list for dl 500 kids?
19 inthose four subject areas? 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
20 A, Yes 20 tomateriasfor al 500 kids.
21 Q. Andto cut to the chase, did you approve for 21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Asopposed to, for example, we
22 eachyear of K through 8 for all four subject aresas, for 22 don't teach history and socid sciencein thefirst
23 dl years, dl subject areas? 23 grade, therefore, we don't need to purchase for the
24 MR. VIRJEE: The core subject areas? 24 first grade.
25 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Makeit clear that the Board | 25 MR. VIRJEE: Same objection.
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1 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Alsoit'sanincomplete 1 MR. VIRJEE: State content standard?
2 hypothetical. It's hypothesizing that first grade with 2 MR. JACOBS: Content standard, yes.
3 thosefacts. 3 THE WITNESS: Wéll, recently the state did
4 THE WITNESS: Again, I'd have to go back to 4 agpprovevisua performing arts, which are voluntary, and
5 format, because, for example, in the primary grades, K-3 5 that was conducted in the last three months, that
6 inparticular, thereisless use of an actual hardbound 6 approval.
7 textbook because small children are not carrying around 7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: But nonethdessthereissucha
8 different hardbound textbooks for every subject because 8 standard, and whether it's voluntary or not, doesit
9 they'reinacontained classroom. 9 haveacontent prescription for each grade of K through
10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: That'swhy I'm deliberately not 10 8?
11 getting at the issue of whether thereisliterally one 11 A. No,it'saranged differently, it's arranged by
12 copy for each student, but rather whether, in making 12 drandsof visud performing arts. It's differentin
13 their purchasing decision and looking at the approved 13 that way. It's based onwhat is grade level appropriate
14 list, the district would be contemplating, in the 14 indance, what is grade level appropriate in music, what
15 generd case, purchasing instructional materials that 15 isgradeleve appropriatein art. It'smore of the
16 aredirectedto all the studentsin that K through 8 16 guiddlines, if you were going to teach for part of aday
17 schoal. 17 or aweek, what would be developmentally appropriate for
18 A.  Waél, aspart of their annual public hearing 18 that subject.
19 process, again, they're ng the needs of their 19 Q. How about for foreign language, are there
20 didtrict as awhole and which schools and which grade 20 foreign language content standards for each grade K
21 levelsand which content areas they need to focus on, so 21 through 8?
22 that would be part of their assessment of their needs. 22 A. No.
23 Q. Isityour expectation that in the genera 23 Q. What grades are there content standards?
24 case, with respect to the materials you've adopted or 24 A. Therearenot state level content standardsin
25 are proposed for adoption by the State Board in the case 25 foreign language.
Page 203 Page 205
1 of reading language arts, that districts are ng 1 Q. Sowha areyou adopting -- what isthe
2 those needs on the assumption that they are going to be 2 adoption cycle for those materials measured against?
3 teaching dl four of those core subjectsto dl of K 3 MR. VIRJEE: What isthe adoption cycle
4 through 8 students? 4 measured against?
5 MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'm going to object on the 5 MR. JACOBS: The adoption process.
6 basisof speculation asto what these districts are 6 THE WITNESS: The curriculum framework and the
7 actualy doing when they make those decisions. 7 chapters of that framework and the evaluation criteria
8 THE WITNESS: Wadll, again, local didtricts 8 that's embedded in that framework would guide the
9 determine curriculum and the delivery of curriculum. 9 publishers on how to produce foreign language materials.
10 Thegradelevel contents standards guide the State as a 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And the curriculum framework is
11 whole and guide districts, guide the assessments, and 11 not grade by grade?
12 the gtandards that are expected to be taught in those 12 A, Well, every framework is alittle bit different
13 gradeleveswould be the ones expected to be covered. 13 depending on if it has standards or does not have
14 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'mgoing to withdraw my 14 sandards. And for those that don't have standards,
15 previousquestion. | got the answer to how to ask the 15 thenitisbased on, typically, how to begin teaching
16 question. 16 the subject and then building upon that subject. Andin
17 Do the state content standards have standards 17 some cases, such as foreign language, the most recent
18 for each of these four areas for all of K through 8? 18 work, which we just approved the foreign language
19 A, Yes theydo. 19 framework, addresses how children can enter the subject
20 Q. Okay. Sonow let's ask the same question about 20 at any gradelevel and be able to begin to learn the
21 thesethree other topics, content areas, visual and 21 basic foundation of the language.
22 peforming arts, foreign language and health, do the 22 Soit's not grade level specific becausein
23 dae standards have avisud -- let'sjust take visud 23 Cdiforniaforeign language is primarily taught at the
24 peforming arts. Isthere akindergarten visual and 24 secondary level and is used as part of the requirements
25 peforming arts standards? 25 for the UC and CSU for entry, so in the earlier grades
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1 thereisno requirement for foreign language. 1 guidanceit receives from the State when it's making its
2 Sointhe earlier grade leves the curriculum 2 textbook and instructional materials purchasing
3 framework focuses on how to enter the curriculum at any 3 decisons.
4 age, so that ateacher who has the opportunity to teach 4 Wheat | understand o far is that the district
5 asecond language or foreign language would be able to 5 would, inthe general case, be planning to purchase
6 utilize the framework at that -- at any grade level and 6 instructional materials for the four core subject areas
7 saythisishow to begin to teach the beginning phases 7 that we've described for each student in the school, and
8 of thelanguage. 8 thereason for that is that the content standards have
9 Q. Addefrom the content standards and the 9 gradeby grade K through 8 direction?
10 curriculum framework, are there any other state -- is 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 there any other state guidance to districts about what 11 to"for each student in the schoal "
12 students should be taught? 12 MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'mgoing tojoin.
13 And I've got to fix this question alittle hit. 13 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And that'sfair because I'm not
14 I'mtaking about general subject areas now, not you 14 trying to ask you now about whether that literally means
15 shal teach kids about the following public hedlth 15 one copy for each student, but rather that it would be
16 issue, for example. So I'mtalking about topics like 16 inbuying materiasin order toimpart that content to
17 foreign language or visua performing arts. 17 each student in the entire schoal.
18 Other than content standards or the curriculum 18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
19 framework that you described, isthere other state 19 evidence. Assumesthat that would be the only way to
20 guidance to digtricts about what should be taught? 20 impart the content.
21 A.  Thedaewide assessment system. 21 MR. JACOBS: Now I think you understand what |
22 Q. Foreignlanguage, does the statewide assessment 22 meanthere.
23 system give guidance to districts -- or cregte 23 THE WITNESS: Can you restate the question?
24 incentives for districts to teach foreign languagesin 24 MR. JACOBS: Yeah.
25 K through 8? 25 Q. I'mtryingto put ourselves hereinthisroom
Page 207 Page 209
1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 1 inthe position of a school district, trying to
2 to'"create incentives." 2 understand what it needs to do by way of purchasing
3 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isitdirected to theteaching 3 textbooks and instructional materids.
4  of foreign language in K through 8? 4 And what | understand so far isthat the
5 A. No, wedon't assessforeign language at the 5 digtrict would be planning to make sufficient purchases
6 datewideleve. 6 toalow the school to teach al of the studentsin K
7 Q. Soinadditionto thefour core subjects, are 7 through 8 inal four of the subject aress.
8 there any other -- I'm being too clipped. 8 MR. VIRJEE: I'll object as vague and ambiguous
9 Wetalked about how digtricts are guided 9 with respect to the word "sufficient.”
10 pursuant to the content standards for the four subjects, 10 THE WITNESS: Firgt, they're developing local
11 thefour core subjects, right? 11 policy guidelines for their curriculum, they're doing
12 A Yes 12 that by district and by school, and they would include
13 Q. Andthenwetaked about the curriculum 13 that as part of their decision-making process for
14 framework, and at least for visua and performing arts 14 purchasing instructional materias, how they're going to
15 and foreign language, you explained that that is not 15 déliver the curriculum in the classroom, and which
16 directed to thisiswhat you shdl teachin 16 materials would support that effort and which materials
17 kindergarten, thisis what you shdl teachin first 17 would provide support for the teacher.
18 grade, et cetera? 18 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Butintermsof doing the math
19 A. Forthemost part. Ther€sgreater emphasisif 19 here, | understand your testimony to be that in the
20 it'straditionally taught, for example, at the secondary 20 genera case, you would not expect the district to be
21 levd, the framework will focus on the guidelines and 21 saying with respect to any grade or any of the four core
22 the approachesto take there. It's geared to meet the 22 subject areas, we don't need to purchase materials for
23 needsof all teachersin K-12. 23 that grade because as we hear what the Stateistrying
24 Q. Solet meput thisback in the context of a 24 to persuade usto teach, we don't need to teach that
25 didtrict trying to meet what it understands to be the 25 subjectinthisgrade.
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MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. | think
those are two different questions. Question one being
whether we need to purchase materiasin order to teach
it, and question two being whether we need to teach it,
so I'll object as compound.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: | jain.

THE WITNESS: Could you define further what you
mean by teaching the content?

MR. JACOBS: | must be making this more
difficult than it needs to be.

THE WITNESS: Thereason | ask for
clarification is there are different requirementsin
different grade levels, soit'sjust too broad.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wedl, you've explained that if
| goto the purchase list, | will seeinstructional
materials that are -- whether or not they span more than
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So the assessment system is connected to the
standards, the curriculum framework, the instructiona
materials, assessment, and then you have accountability,
and you're ng the achievement levels of those
students. Soit'sdl related.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Soif you had been at that
hearing and alegidator had said I'm trying to run the
numbers here, whether we're providing sufficient amounts
under Schiff-Bustamante and the state IMF, and | come up
short because if | multiply four subjects by your

averages and assume that these are going to be bought on
aper student basisfor dl of the studentsin akK

through 8 school, you would regard it as one plausible
response to that legidator to be I'm not surethat in
grade"X" they'd actudly need to be purchasing anything
in that subject area?

17 onegrade or not, there are materials in each of the 17 A. | wouldn't respond that way.
18 core subject areas for each grade K through 8, correct? 18 Q. Sowhynot?
19 A. Programs have been approved that cover every 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Incomplete
20 gradelevd. 20 hypothetical. Callsfor speculation.
21 Q. Andthoseinclude-- when you say "programs 21 THE WITNESS: It's not that smple. | mean,
22 have been approved," you mean you've approved something | 22 you have cycles and you have materials that are already
23 that'sresulted in items being on the price list? 23 inplacein particular grade levelsthat are current, so
24 A,  Yes 24 except in some cases, you're not going to be purchasing
25 Q. SowhenI'm building my budget, | haveto build 25 all four content areas, regardless of the grade leve.
Page 211 Page 213
1 my budget on the assumption that I'm purchasing 1 You'renot going to do that in K-8.
2 materids that address each of the four subject areas 2 Q. BY MR JACOBS: Sothat'soneanswer tothe
3 for each grade K through 8? 3 legidator, is, youre not going to be purchasing al of
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Incomplete 4 those materials each year, right?
5 hypothetica. Assumesfacts not in evidence. Assumes 5 A. Tha'scorrect.
6 that you need to purchase any materiasin order to 6 Q. Andsohesays, okay, | gotit, but now let's
7 teach the frameworks and the standards. Thet's part of 7 spreaditout, and | still can't makeit add up; that
8 the problem of your question. 8 s, | assumethat I'm going to be purchasing one core
9 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Also clarification, you said 9 subject in year one, the second core subject in year
10 pricelist. Didyou mean purchase list? 10 two, et cetera. You'vetold metherésasix- or
11 THEWITNESS: Wecadl it pricelist. 11 seven-year cycleto thesethings, so | have -- arguably
12 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Okay. Thank you. 12 | havetwo yearsthat are non-purchase yearsin that
13 THEWITNESS. Thereasonthisisuncleartome | 13 scenario, but | still don't see how we have enough
14 isthat thereis greater emphasisin certain content 14 money. What would your answer be?
15 aeasin certain grades, so how they ddliver that 15 A. | don'tknow what your evidence would be.
16 curriculumwill depend on theloca district. So, for 16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
17 example, and reading language arts are the focusin 17 evidence. Assumesit would add to be that way.
18 gradesK-3inavery concentrated way, and then the 18 Incomplete hypothetical. Also vague and ambiguous asto
19 assessment system beginsin grade 2, and that'saso in 19 what would be necessary to impart the instructional
20 reading language arts and math, and there are certain 20 program.
21 dandardsthat are expected to be assessed in those 21 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
22 subject areas. So dl of those factors will play into 22 THEWITNESS: The source of funding is
23 thedecisonsthat are made at the local level asto 23 dedicated and it's used for the purchase of certain
24 where they put their resources, where they have the 24 materias, but the delivery of the curriculum to meet
25 greatest need. 25 thegradeleve standardsis determined at the local
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1 level, so they can use those materials to meet that need 1 dsovague and ambiguous as to whether you couldn't do
2 gradeby grade. They can also provide additional 2 it
3 resources and support in the classroom to meet that 3 MS. KAATZ: Join.
4 need. 4 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
5 And then what will be the true test of the 5 THEWITNESS: | didn't say any of those things.
6 achievement isthe assessment that's conducted second 6 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wel, am| incorrect?
7 grade on, which will assessif the grade-level content 7 MR. VIRJEE: | think shejust --
8 standards have been met. 8 THEWITNESS: They're not statements that I've
9 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: So I'm the hypothetical 9 made, so| can't agree to those statements, no.
10 legislator again in that hearing and | respond to you, 10 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Inwhat way isit incorrect
11 you mean, Ms. Griffith, you can't really tell us whether 11 that you have not yourself run the math, as| stated in
12 these amounts are sufficient or not. What is your 12 any previous question?
13 answer? 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and anbiguous as
14 A. It's out of context. | can't answer that 14 to"runthe math," and also vague asto time.
15 without knowing the context of what the discussion is 15 She's dready said that if what you mean by run
16 and what sufficient means. 16 themathisfigure out what these work out to be pupil
17 Q. So you can't tell me even how you would go 17 by pupil, she said she doesn't have that information
18 about calculating that because it's a matter of local 18 yet. It'svague astotime and vague asto "run the
19 decision-making and trade-offs of priorities and how the 19 math."
20 content is actually going to be imparted in the 20 THE WITNESS: | need to know what you mean by
21 classroom? 21 "runthemath." Run the math on what's been expended
22 MR. VIRJEE: Shejust said she didn't 22 under the assurances that we conduct, which is required
23 understand how you used the word sufficient. 23 by law, or do you mean run the math on what one
24 Q. BY MR. JACOBS:. Somehow | have afedingthat | 24 particular district would have this year? I'm unclear.
25 if you werein alegidative context with an assemblyman 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wel, | mean analyzing the
Page 215 Page 217
1 asking you that question, you wouldn't say to him, | 1 questionthat israised by your chair's comments at the
2 don't understand what you mean by sufficient. 2 May 18-19, 2000 mesting.
3 MR. VIRJEE: I'm going to object to that as 3 A. Canl seethisdocument again?
4 argumentative and an incomplete hypothetical and assumes 4 Q. Yes Exhibit54.
5 facts completely not -- there's no foundation for that 5 A. Frstthechair didn't ask meto run any
6 atal. Shemay, infact, say exactly that. 6 numbers.
7 MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'mgoingtojoinin that 7 Q. |Iredizethat. But now I'm asking whether you
8 objection. 8 haverunthenumbers. And | think you testified earlier
9 THE WITNESS: Y ou're going to have to repeat 9 that you havent.
10 that. 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What | understand from your 11 to"runthenumbers” Vagueastotime. And her
12 testimony isthat not only have you not run the math to 12 testimony from earlier will speak for itself.
13 determine whether under the state IMF or 13 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
14 Schiff-Bustamante the funding levels are sufficient to 14 THE WITNESS: I've provided dl factud
15 enablethe districtsto give each student what, in your 15 information related to price submissions, price quotes,
16 judgment, is appropriate accessto instructiona 16 per pupil expenditures, everything that is currently
17 materias, but that -- not only have you not actually 17 available. The databasesthat are availableto my
18 runthat math, but that you couldn't run the math 18 knowledge, I've provided that information.
19 because so much of the decision-making is up to the 19 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: I'msorry, I'mnot tryingtoin
20 locd digtrict and ther€'s so many choices that the 20 any way suggest that you didn't comply with the
21 didrict hasto make. 21 direction fromyour chair, nor that you've in some way
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 22 failed your statutory or regulatory responsibilities.
23 towhether or not the materias would be sufficient. 23 A. Nooffensetaken.
24 Also vague and ambiguous as to "appropriate access.” 24 Q. Sinceyourethepersonintheseat of -- in
25 Also vague and ambiguous as to "running the math." And 25 the spot of taking in thisinformation about costs of
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textbooks and you have an understanding about how
textbook adoption relates to curriculum frameworks, |
think you're one of the peaple who would bein the best
position to tell us how we would go about ng
whether the amounts under Schiff-Bustamante and state
IMF are sufficient to meet the reasonable needs of
digtricts to purchase textbooks and instructional
materials.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
as-- I'msorry.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And sowith that as background,
| understand that you actudly haven't done that
mathematical exercise of taking the number of subjects
inwhich adistrict would reasonably be anticipating it
needs to purchase materials for, multiplying that over
the number of -- that proportion of K through 8 that
would actually need instruction and related materials,
and then measured the cost of that against the per
student allocation?

MR. VIRJEE: Y oure asking whether she's done
that?

MR. JACOBS: | understand you not to have done
that.

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "sufficient to meet the reasonabl e needs of the
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MR. JACOBS: Under Schiff-Bustamante and state
IMF. I'm sorry, not in those subject areas, but the
amounts that are allocated in Schiff-Bustamante or state
IMF.

Q.  Now, I'mgoing to the next stage and I'm

saying, have you ever put dl that together to determine
whether, given the fact that thereis a cycle and given
the fact that you might be making purchases for one
subject in one year and another subject in another year,
whether the amounts that are alocated under
Schiff-Bustamante and state IMF are sufficient by any
measure of sufficiency?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "sufficiency." She's dso asked and answered the
guestion probably three or four times now saying these
decisions are made at the locdl level and that they're
each unique, digtrict to district, and therefore you
cannot do that.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THEWITNESS: | can indicate what the State has
done. The State has more than doubled the allocations
for instructional materials purposes since '98, '99. At
the 9-12 leve, the per pupil amount hastripled. The
sources combined are not below the cost of one subject
areaat thistime, so that information | have.
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district."

THE WITNESS: First of dl, we don't need to do
that because they're not purchasing materials all in the
same content areas annually, so there's been no request
to run the numbers because it's not done that way.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Right. But that's why we then
went to the next level and explored what the cycle
period would be, and you testified it would be six or
seven years. And then we explored how many subjects a
district would expect to make purchasing decisions
abouit.

A. Correct.

Q. And as your chair noted, there is a need for at
least four subject areas?

A.  Andshesdiscussing the increase in the

funding.

Q. Right. And sowe have at least four subject

areas, we have six or seven years, we have the issue of
whether it applies to every student K through 8, we've
explored that, and we've explored the cost of the
materials for those subject areas. Y ou testified about
that. We've explored your understanding of the amounts
that are allocated in each of those subject aress.

MR. VIRJEE: The amounts that are allocated

n--
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Q. BY MR.JACOBS: If | understood what you
conveyed about the per student amounts, though, unless|
misunderstood something, it was $42 for
Schiff-Bustamante per student K through 12, and then for
state IMF, 31 K through 8, and 20 9 through 12 on an
gpproximate basis; isthat right?

A. Yes

Q. Andl takeit, then, that what you're saying is

if you look at the current cost of history and social
sciences for K through 8, that is below the sum of 42
and 31?

A. Yes

Q. Andsoif your -- what your testimony is

driving at then, | take it, isthat if the school

district purchased only history and socia sciencesin,
say, year one, the allocation would be sufficient?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to what her testimony isdriving . She's answering
your questions.

THE WITNESS: | indicated whét the prices are
of the materialsin K-8.

MR. JACOBS:. Uh-huh.

THE WITNESS: | indicated that they have not
exceeded the per pupil, | didn't say particularly for
history social science, | just said generaly. | said

56 (Pages 218 to 221)



OCO~NOOOIT,WNPEF

Page 222

that the funding levels have more than doubled, and that
it's highly unlikely that al the content areas need to

be purchased in one year, and these are local decisions
that are made, the funding accrues, the interest is used
for the dedicated purpose, the decisionislocal.

Q. BY MR JACOBS:. Andsoif thelegidator said
to you, | hear all that, but now I'm just looking for

the bottom line, Ms. Griffith, are we appropriating
enough money in these two funds, can you tell methat,
or what would it take for you to tell me that?

Would you be able to answer that question?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation. Callsfor an expert opinion beyond
the expertise of this witness.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: Could you repeat the last part of
the question.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS. What would it take for you to
tell usthat?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.

THE WITNESS: | can't answer that.

Q. BY MR JACOBS. Soif thelegidator said to

y -

A.  I'd haveto know the specifics of the question

and what they're requesting and adeguate time to analyze
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set forth in the introduction to Section 60119 of the

State Education Code.

A.  That connectionisalocaly determined

connection in line with the cycles of the frameworks and

the adoptions which are on asix-year cycle, so they are

continuoudly evauating that at the locd level and

using those dedicated funds and other sources to make

those purchases.

Q. So,again, I'mthelegidator and | ask you, so

you can't tell me, Ms. Griffith, even what variables|

would need to supply you with in order for you to tell

me whether we are appropriating enough money under these

categories now?

A.  Theycouldtel meadl kinds of varigblesand |

could provide my best expert opinion.

Q. Andwhat arethose variables that you need?

A.  Whatever they are asking me for, but the

variables are as varied in every district as you could

come up with.

Q. Soyoucant actualy tel me, the hypothetical

legidator here, whether we're gppropriating too much?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Call for speculation.

Also vague asto "too much." Also calsfor an

opinion -- an expert opinion which thiswitnessis not

competent to give.
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it and report back accurately.
Q. I'mthelegidator now. | can giveyouthe
time, but | want to know, Ms. Griffith, what you need to
know in order for you to complete the question for you?
A. | cannot answer that.

MR. VIRJEE: Same objections.

THEWITNESS: | need to know whet the variables
are before I'm going to analyze the data to report back
to any policymaking body.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS:. Andwhat arethe variablesyou
need to know?

MR. VIRJEE: Other that what she's dready
testified to?

THE WITNESS: | need to know what you want to
know.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | want to know the bottom line,
Ms. Griffith, are we in the state legidature
gppropriating enough money under those categories?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "enough.” Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation,
and also cdls for an expert opinion which this witness
is not competent to give.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: Enough for what?
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Enoughto meet the objectives
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MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: For the samereasons, whichis
that it's al amatter of local decision-making and a

lot of individual choices?

A.  Areyou asking meif | think it'stoo much?

Q.  Could you tdl me whether it was too much?

A. | couldnt tell you that.

Q. Couldyou tdl mewhat | would need to tell you
asalegidator in terms of additiona parametersto the
guestion to tell me whether it's too much?

MR. VIRJEE: Same objection. Calsfor
speculation. Vague and ambiguous asto "too much.”
Cdlsfor an expert opinion which thiswitnessis not
competent to give.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: | would have to know the
variables in which you're asking the question.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: And | takeit, then, that
you've never sat down with your colleagues and said, you
know what, we've got to come up with a plan that
includes funding and includes other factors to make sure
that every student in the state of California has what

we as educational professionasregard as sufficient
access to high-qudlity instructional materials?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
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1 to"sufficient.” Incomplete hypothetical. 1 supportsthat effort and that responsibility for core
2 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin. 2 governing boards, but they're till responsible for
3 THE WITNESS: Wereright inthe midst of 3 ensuring that they utilize the resources they have
4 implementing the program that began in'97, '98, and 4 availableto them to ensure sufficient materials are
5 part of that is the implementation of the use of the 5 availableto their pupilsinther district, and they
6 fundsthat have doubled, and part of that isthe 6 needtoinvolvethe public in making that decision.
7 officid department support for reauthorization of those 7 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyour answer to my question
8 fundsto be used on a continuous basis, which we believe 8 about setting forth a plan had various components,
9 would support that effort on a continuous annual bas's, 9 including the increases in funding that you described.
10 adlowing for the accrual of those funds, allowing for 10 My question to you is, when thoseincreasesin
11 thosedecisionsto belocd, and ensuring that there are 11 funding were sought, was there any underlying anaysis
12 materials available that have been approved by the State 12 that supported the increases in terms of need?
13 and have been under arigorous review and are standards 13 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection. Vague and
14 digned. 14 ambiguous asto increasesin funding.
15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What do you mean by "support 15 Areyou talking about the reauthorization of
16 that effort"? 16 Schiff-Bustamante, because that's what she's been
17 A.  Wesupport that effort by the reauthorization 17 testifying to?
18 of the funding source. 18 MR. JACOBS: | don't think so. I'mtalking
19 Q. No, by"support" did you mean meet the needsin 19 about the program you started in '97, '98.
20 order to achieve or did you mean help? 20 THE WITNESS: | wasn't working on that program
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 21 atthattime, sol couldn't spesk to the direct
22 to"support.” 22  assessment that was conducted or policymaking,
23 Areyou talking about in conjunction when he 23 decison-making process t thetime. | know that the
24 used the term support the reauthorization? 24 funds have more than doubled for per pupil spending.
25 MR. JACOBS: | think your exact words were 25 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andyou've never seenan
Page 227 Page 229
1 support that program. 1 andysisinthekind of mathematical sensethat weve
2 THE WITNESS: Our division and the curriculum 2 been discussing of what districts need to buy as against
3 commission are both involved in supporting the entire 3 per student amounts that are available that underlay the
4 accountability structure that's been set up in 4 recommendation that those amounts be increased?
5 Cdiforniafrom beginning to end. And our rolein that 5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
6 isthe development of the curriculum frameworks and the 6 Alsovague and ambiguous.
7 approval of ingtructional materidsto ensure that there 7 THE WITNESS: Y ou mean at the time of the
8 aremateridsavailable for purchase and that the funds 8 deveopment of thelegidation?
9 we support would be continuously appropriated on an 9 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Youve never seen andysis--
10 annual basisto ensure that. 10 Now | don't understand your question.
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Isityour professiona 11 A. Youreasking about an analysis, so | need to
12 judgment that if the existing funding levels plus 12 know in relation to what action. Wasit legidation
13 inflation are appropriated on an annual and continuing 13 that passed, AB 2041?
14 basis, that it will be -- that funding should no longer 14 Q. Yes
15 bealegitimate explanation for why the standards set 15 A. That wasthe bill, Schiff-Bustamante.
16 forth at the beginning of Section 60119 is not met by a 16 Q. Welltakethat one.
17 school district? 17 A. No, | haven't seen that andysis.
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 18 Q. Andhaveyou seen any andysisin that kind of
19 toexisting funding sources and assumes facts not in 19 mathematica sense that we have been discussing that
20 evidence. Assumesthat ever was alegitimate reason. 20 supports the recommendetion to reauthorize
21 Alsovague and ambiguous asto "legitimate.” 21 Schiff-Bustamante on an ongoing basis?
22 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Andit calsfor alegd 22 A. I'veseentheindustry's anadysis of what they
23 conclusion. Join asto therest. 23 fed it coststo purchase materias across K-12, as|
24 THE WITNESS: The hearing requirement is based 24 tedtified to earlier.
25 on more than the dedicated funding sources, but that 25 Q. Andthat'sintermsof such analysis?
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1 A. [I'velistenedtotestimony at the hearings, the 1 arts.
2 policy hearings, senate education hearingsin 2 And just so you can understand, normally
3 particular. 3 publishers are given 30 months, 24 to develop the
4 Q. Didthat hearing include someinput in which 4 materials and then we review them for six months at the
5 the expected costs against available funds were 5 datelevel. The compressed time lines required that
6 assessed? 6 the complete process be done for history socia science
7 A. No. W, yes, my reference to the comment 7 and science in 12 months and for reading language arts
8 made by the chair to the industry representative, of 8 and math in 18 months, so we're at the final stage of
9 courseyou think it will cost more. 9 that last adoption, reading language arts. Thisisthe
10 Q. Right. I thought you might be talking -- first 10 review process that's beginning in August.
11 of dl, | thought it was an assembly committee and now | 1 Q. Once those compressed adoptions are completed,
12 thought you just said senate. 12 will all your adoptions be on atypica schedule?
13 A. No,it'sAssembly Bill 50 Hurstberg (ph.). It 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation
14 reauthorizes Schiff-Bustamante, the program itself and 14 astowhat might happen in the future.
15 continuoudly appropriates. That's separate from the 15 THE WITNESS: Actudly, the Assembly Bill 2519
16 informationd hearingsthat | testified at on the 16 legidation does expire, in other words, the compressed
17 process generally and the price quotes. That was an 17 adoption cycle expires, and then unless other subsequent
18 assembly budget hearing. This was a senate education 18 legidation is passed, we will go back on the 30-month
19 committee meeting in which they passed Assembly Bill 50, 19 cyclefor dl subjects.
20 theHurstberg Bill, whichis going to go to thefiscal 20 Q. BY MR. JACOBS: Andwhat isin the queue for
21 committee and then go to the governor. 21 review after -- isthere anything in parallel going on
22 Q.  And at that meeting, you were in attendance? 22 right now in addition to the compressed adoptions?
23 A. lwas No, actudly, I'm sorry, | observed 23 A. On average we're conducting anywhere from two
24 that ontelevision. 24 tofive adoptions a year and, for example, in 2002,
25 Q. Sothat was-- obvioudly you didn't testify in 25 whichredly begins earlier, but we will complete
Page 231 Page 233
1 that context? 1 reading and language arts, and then in the summer of
2 A. Ourlegidative representative did testify. 2 2002 we will have completed the follow-ups to primary
3 Q. Anddidyour legidative representative provide 3 adoptions, so thisisthe second round of opportunity
4 any andytical support in terms of the cost and expense 4 for publishersin visua performing arts, in history
5 factors weve been discussing? 5 socid science and science. So those primary adoptions
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 6 that kicked off with the inception of the content
7 to"analytical support." 7 dandards, we're now entering the follow-up adoptions
8 THE WITNESS: The bill went very quickly. 8 for those subjects.
9 Therewas strong support registered, and the bill was 9 Q. Andthefollow-up adoptions are additive of the
10 quickly passed. It wasn't an extensive hearing. 10 previous adoptions?
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: What other adoptions are 11 A.  Yes weadd additional choices for districts.
12 scheduled for the forthcoming several years? 12 Q. Soranging from basic ingtructional materials
13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 13 to supplementa?
14 Over what time period? 14 A. No, it'sthe same criteria used for the primary
15 MR. JACOBS: | said for the forthcoming several 15 adoption, so whatever was alowed during that
16 years. 16 submission, it'safollow-up to that. It'sat this
17 MR. VIRJEE: Severa being -- meaning six? 17 point in those adoptions a basic adaption, and it gives
18 They'reall going to be readopted. 18 new publishers an opportunity to submit, and it provides
19 THE WITNESS: They're aways continuously going 19 an opportunity for publishers who were rejected to
20 through that. 20 correct their materials and assure they're content
21 MR. JACOBS: Maybe| should break it down. 21 digned and accurate. They can resubmit during that
22 Q. You'reonacompressed schedule for certain 22 timeframe
23 adoptions? 23 Q. Ifl understand theidea here, it wasto, on a
24 A.  Yes, right now were completing the final 24 compressed basis, get some approvals completed so that
25 compressed time line adoption, which is reading language 25 districts could more quickly purchase textbooks that
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were aigned with the content standards?

A. Yes

Q.  And now the second phase is to expand the range
of choice available to districts by providing an
opportunity for additiona publishers or existing
publishersto resubmit?

A.  Yes, it'salways conducted, not just during the
compressed timeline. We aways conduct two adoptions
in the six-year cycle for every subject.

Q lsee

A.  All subjects.

Q. Andyou cal those two adoptions?

A Primary and follow-up.

And 0 ther€'s primary and follow-up in the
usud cycle, and there's primary and follow-up with
respect to the compressed schedule?

A. Y es, in both.
(Recess taken.)

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Returning to Exhibit 54,
please. At thetop of the page --

MR. VIRJEE: Which page?

MR. JACOBS:. Paged4. The pagewewere
discussing before.
Q. --thereisareferenceto the recent ACL
lawsuit submitted regarding responsibilities for
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A.  No,it'sinformation for local communities.

Q. Andtheanswer is, no, my office does not
review school accountability report card?

A.  Wedo not review the school accountability
report cards.

Q. Haveyou had any discussions about whether the
schoal accountability report cards are a-- are accurate
in reporting on the textbook issues that they're
supposed to cover?

A.  Accuratein wha way?

Q. Accuraeintermsof providing an accurate
picture of the textbook and instructional materials
situation a a particular school.

MR. VIRJEE: Has she had any discussion with
the school districts about that?

MR. JACOBS: Any discussions with anyone about
the accuracy of SARC's as they relate to textbooks.

THE WITNESS: Accuracy related to what they
state they have?

MR. JACOBS: Yes.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: I'll object onlack of
foundation as to whether she actually knows what the
report cards are reporting regarding textbooks.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: The question simply is whether
you've had discussions with anyone about whether they're
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up-to-date text.

Did Deputy Superintendent Hernandez mention
that lawsuit?
A. | would assume so since the minutes reflect
that.
Q. Youdontrecdl it?
A. | dontrecal any detail about that
discussion.
Q.  Soyoudon't -- do you recall whether there was
any discussion about the lawsuit?
A. | don't think there was any discussion about
it. It'stypicd for the deputy superintendent to give
uskind of alaundry list of issuesthat are current or
are occurring that impact the Department in some way,
but there would be no discussion of the actua lawsuit.
Q. Asweunderstand Ed Code Section 33126 --
A.  Whereare you reading from?
Q. Myownnotes. Thisisthe school report card
provision that requires schools to meet various
requirements in terms of salf-reporting, and one of the
topicsistextbooks.

Does your office have any involvement in
reviewing school accountability report cards?
A.  For the purpose of?

Q. I guessfor any purpose.
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accurate. And | think the answer is no, | haven't
discussed that topic.

MR. VIRJEE: Why don't we just let her answer
the question.

THE WITNESS: First of dl, | need to know what
you mean by "accurate,” because whatever the district
has purchased in their report, and they are expected to
be reporting accurate factual information, would be
accurate. There would be no reason to assume they're
not accurate.

Q. BY MR. JACOBS: But you haven't had any
discussions about that topic; isthat correct?

A.  There hasn't been any reason to have a
discussion.

Q. Because no one's said to you, this school
accountability report card with respect to textbooks is
inaccurate?

A. It's adisclosure statement by the district.

Q. And, again, you've had no discussions with
anyone about whether there is any issue about whether --
in terms of policy issue with respect to whether the
SARC's coverage of textbooks is in any cases inaccurate?

MR. VIRJEE: I'm sorry, could you repesat that
guestion, because the policy issue was a different one
than their actual accuracy, as| understand it.
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1 MR. JACOBS: | changed the question alittle 1 thosefactors, that would not be reported to you in the
2 hit. Let mewithdraw the question. 2 ordinary course of business?
3 Q. Oneof the purposes of the school's 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
4 accountability report card isto provide information to 4 Callsfor speculation. Assumesfacts not in evidence.
5 loca communities about conditionsin the school, 5 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
6 correct? 6 THE WITNESS: My understanding would be they
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 7 work directly with the district on those matters.
8 Cdlsfor alega conclusion. 8 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andtheanswer is, no, it would
9 THE WITNESS: There are anumber of factors 9 not, inyour course of business, be reported to me?
10 that arerequired to be reported on the report card, 10 A. No,itwould not be reported to me.
11 yes. 11 MR. VIRJEE: Or you. Just teasing.
12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Butthe policy objectiveisto 12 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Hasyour office ever engagedin
13 provideinformation about conditionsin the schools to 13 anyreview of aset of CCR reports with aview toward
14 theloca community, correct? 14 andyzing the information on those reportsin order to
15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Lacks foundation. 15 assessthe availability of textbooks?
16 Cadlisfor alegd conclusion. 16 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection. Could you limit it
17 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Jaoin. 17 astotime.
18 THE WITNESS: My understanding isit'sto 18 MR. JACOBS: While you've been there.
19 report about the district asawhale. I'm not clear on 19 THE WITNESS: No.
20 what you mean by "conditions." 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
21 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wel, oneaspect that is 21 Lacksfoundation.
22 supposed to be reported on isthe ratio of textbooks per 22 THE WITNESS: No.
23 pupil inthe year the textbooks were adopted, are you 23 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Sojusttoask thisquestiona
24  aware of that? 24  little more pointedly, the CCR notification of findings
25 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection. Thestatute spesks | 25 for the Oakland Unified School District, 1999 to 2000,
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1 foritsdf. 1 stated some schools have operated for three to five
2 Q. BY MR. JACOBS; Areyou aware of that? 2 yearswithout books, which personaly | taketo bea
3 A. I'mawareof the generd provisions of the 3 rather extreme case of atextbook availability issue.
4 reporting requirements. 4 That finding was not reported to your office?
5 Q. Andhaveyou had any discussions, then, about 5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
6 whether schoal didtricts salf-assessments, as reflected 6 evidence.
7 inthe school accountability report card with respect to 7 Y ou don't have to assume that's what the CCR
8 textbooks, are or are not accurate? 8 report says.
9 A No. 9 THEWITNESS: No, | don't have any knowledge of
10 Q. Do you receive any information, you meaning 10 it
11 your office, receive any information from the 11 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.
12 coordinated compliance review process asit relates to 12 MR. JACOBS: Let me ask you about another
13 textbooks? 13 document that we will mark as the next in order.
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 14 (Exhibit SAD-56 was marked.)
15 Lack foundation. 15 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andthese are minutes of the
16 MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join. 16 January 17th to 19th, 2001 meeting. And because it was
17 THE WITNESS: No, there wouldn't be areason 17 along set of minutes, we've just given you page 1 and
18 for that. They would be utilizing our information to 18 page 14 to 15, because | only want to ask you about item
19 conduct their reviews. 19 Hinthe minutes, the presentation by the AAP.
20 Q. BY MR JACOBS: And0justtotakea 20 Soif you could take alook at that discussion.
21 hypothetica case, if the CCR observed that -- observed 21 A. Uh-huh
22 whether students have textbooks in the classrooms, the 22 Q.  Andthe minutes state that the representative
23 physica condition of textbooks and the currency of such | 23 of the AAP reported on afunding gap of $1.2 billion.
24 textbooks, and that that observation was theré's a 24 Do you seethat?
25 problemin this school district with respect to any of 25 A Yes
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Q. Andthenit says, commissioners discussed the
need to send amessage in support of the survey to
increase funding to purchase textbooks and instructional
materials, and then there's adiscussion about --
there's a sentence about a discussion about the media or
medium for instructional materials, and then theré'sa
motion to support AB 50 to continue the $250 million
under Schiff-Bustamante which was unanimously approved.
Do you seethat?
A. Yes
Q. Inthediscussion at the commission, was there
any critique of the AAP conclusion?
MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
to "critique."
THE WITNESS: No, it was a presentation,
information purposes only.
Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Wasthere any discussion of
whether the commission should solicit other studies
directed to the questions the AAP study was directed to?
A. No.
Q. Wasthereany -- hasthere ever been such a
discussion in which you've participated?
A. Regading studies?
Q. Yes
A.  Of what type?
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MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection. Calsfor
speculation.

THE WITNESS: Well, the survey just recently
cameout. And there's-- there are discussionsin
different arenas about issues, but there's no
requirement that someone analyze someone el se's study
that | know of. And the Department would not beina
position to be analyzing another -- someone's study,
particularly a private industry study, unless there was
some legidative mandate to do so.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: Andcan | unpack that question
alittle bit. The answer you gave meis consistent with

the answers I've received from others of your

colleagues, which is we can't undertake astudy -- in

this context it's a study about funding -- unless we get
alegidative mandate to do so.

MR. VIRJEE: That misstates her testimony.

MR. JACOBS: How?

MR. VIRJEE: Shedidn't say they couldn't
undertake a study without alegidative mandate. That's
not what she said.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: So couldyou?

MR. VIRJEE: Could who, inwhat context,

undertake what? And also vague and ambiguous asto

"study.”

O©CoO~NOOITA~WNPE

Page 243

Q.  Of whether thereis afunding gep of the sort
described in the AAP study.

A. No.

Q. Whynot?

MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
Lacks foundation.

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Join.

THE WITNESS: Would you like meto explain?
Firgt of al, there's no motion here to advise anything
to the State Board on this matter. They discussed
sending a message, they took no action.

Secondly, the purpose of the curriculum
commission, whileit may involve funding, is primarily
focused on curriculum and the frameworks that surround
the content standards and curriculum strategies, et
cetera. So any effort in this arenawould be advice to
the State Board because they are the advisory body to
the State Board, so they wouldn't necessarily be
conducting studies as it relates to fisca
apportionments.

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: But outside the particular
context of the commission itself, why hasn't there been
adiscussion -- and if there hasn't been adiscussion,
presumably there hasn't been any particular action -- to
determine whether the AAP study is accurate or not?
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She's aready talked about, for example, an
informal study, survey that was done with respect to use
of funds. That was not legidatively mandated. She
testified to it today.

THE WITNESS: The question is, could we conduct
astudy of this particular study?

Q. BY MR.JACOBS: If for somereasonit's
impolitic to do a study that critiques a private study.

The question is an important one, isit not?

The question whether thereis afunding gap?

MS. ALTAMIRANO: Objection to the use of
"impolitic,” whether that's the real issuein the case.
The answer actualy calls for speculation.

THE WITNESS: Wéll, | can speculate that the
important priority would be, in my view, that | would
need to have the variables involved in the situation,
calling for an assessment or analysis based on those
variables.

Thissystemisfluid inits operation, it's
moving forward continuoudly. The Schiff-Bustamante
funds which have recently gone into effect arejust
really taking effect. With that doubling of the funds,
we are seeing enormous activity in the purchasing of
instructional materials, but until we get through the
cycles of these aress, | persondly believeit's
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1 difficult to assessthat. 1 expendthisfisca year the gpportionment provided to
2 If you look at our informal survey, districts 2 youfor that fisca year, did you partialy expend that
3 havenot fully expended every single part of their funds 3 gpportionment, or did you not expend the funds at all.
4 inany one given year, and our anaysis of that is 4 Q. Anddidany of the responsesinclude comments?
5 becausethey, as| said, are working within the cycles 5 A.  No
6 and they anticipate their purchases and they purchase 6 Q. Andthesummary that you'rereferring to
7 what they need and then they move forward in the next 7 describes how many districts answered in which box?
8 cycleto purchase the next content area. It isn't 8 A. Fortwofisca cycles, yes.
9 becausethey don't want to use the money, it's because 9 Q. Anddoyouaso havetheorigina reports?
10 they'reusing it well, they're managing it well. 10 A. Yes
11 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: That informal survey that you 11 Q. Soif onewanted to test whether adidtrict's
12 referred to, has that been embodied in areport? 12  assertionsthat, well, we ran out of money were
13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 13 literally true, one could go back to the report, to you,
14 to"report.” 14 for example, and find out whether they'd expended al
15 THE WITNESS: We've provided it individually, 15 ther Schiff-Bustamante funds?
16 you know, separate paper, not within areport. 16 A. Inthebroadest sense, yes.
17 Q. BY MR.JACOBS: | don't follow. Y oumean the 17 MR. VIRJEE: | hateto cut you off, but it's
18 individua survey -- 18 after 5:00.
19 A. If someonerequestsit, we've provided it to 19 MR. JACOBS: Thank you very much.
20 them asinformation, background information. 20 THE WITNESS: Thank you.
21 Q. Andthe"it"iswhat? 21 (The deposition concluded &t 5:04 p.m.)
22 A. It'sathree-page summary. 22 ---000---
23 Q. Of what you gleaned from the voluntary 23
24 responses to your questions? 24
25 A. Uh-huh. Wéll, it gleans from two things, one 25
Page 247 Page 249
1 isjust apercentage comparison between the first year 1 Please be advised that | have read the
2 of Schiff-Bustamante and the second year, and how many | 2 foregoing deposition. | hereby state there are:
3 digtricts partialy expended, fully expended or did not 3
4 expend. 4 (check one) NO CORRECTIONS
5 And then the second component is the informal g CORRECTIONSATTACHED
6 survey which asks what content areas did you expend in, 7
7 and then that data was interesting data, does not give Date Signed
8 youthe detail of what's going on at the local leve, 8
9 per s, but it was enlightening to see what areas there 9
10 were concentrations in the first couple of years. SHERRY GRIFFITH
11 And, as expected, history socia science and 10 . o
12 science, therewasalot of activity in those areas CeseTitle  Williamsvs State, Volume |
13 because those lists had been approved. E Date of Depos_t_l_oor&}\f\_/edn@day, July 25, 2001
14 Q. | misunderstood something from earlier that 13
15 you-- | now realize | misunderstood something. 14
16 Theinformal aspect of this was about the 15
17 content areas in which the purchasing had been directed 16
18 to? 17
19 A, Yes 18
20 Q.  Andhow did you characterize the nature of the 19
21 question about how Schiff -- the extent to which 20
22 Schiff-Bustamante funds had been expended? %
23 A.  Theéesthree boxes on theformand it says, 3
24  did you in such-and-such year, thetwo yearsthat wehad | o4
25 dready -- we were working on assurances, did you fully o5
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